

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

2022-2025



Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA)
Provincial Collective Agreement

www.bcnu.org



BETTER FOR NURSES. BETTER FOR PATIENTS.

Territorial Acknowledgment

The BC Nurses' Union respectfully acknowledges the unceded lands of the Indigenous peoples in the area now known as British Columbia. We are grateful to the traditional stewards of the lands and waters for their role in caretaking and fighting for the land from which we all benefit.

The United Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples, the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada's 94 calls to action, and the 24 recommendations in the province's 2020 report *In Plain Sight: Addressing Indigenous-specific Racism and Discrimination in B.C. Health Care*, collectively acknowledge the important the task that lies before us as we work to ensure there is an end to discrimination in the workplace and to disrupt the colonial systems that Canadian health care was built on.

This is not an easy task, and it will take time. However, we hope the changes in this collective agreement will help ensure that Indigenous members are able to utilize their skills and knowledge to provide culturally safe care to Indigenous patients, clients, residents and their communities



Contents

| A Message from the NBA Chief Negotiator | . 5 |
|--|------|
| A Message from the BCNU President | . 8 |
| 2022-2025 NBA PROVINCIAL COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT | |
| Wages and Premiums | . 11 |
| Leaves and Flexibility | 14 |
| Nursing Supports/Other Gains | 16 |
| Diversity, Equity and Inclusion | 17 |
| Health and Safety | 19 |
| Benefits | 21 |
| Other | 22 |
| Housekeeping | 23 |
| GREENSHEETS | |
| Tentative Agreement | 24 |
| Article 1.01 - Preamble | 25 |
| Article 1.02 - Definitions | 26 |
| Article 2 - Purpose of Agreement | 28 |
| Article 5.02 - Union Deductions | 29 |
| Article 6.08 - Copies of the Provincial Collective Agreement | 31 |
| Article 6.10 - List of New and Terminating Employees | 32 |
| Article 11.04(G)(X) - Benefit Entitlement | 33 |
| Article 11.04(G) - Casual Employees - Benefit Entitlement - Vacation Pay and Paid Holidays | 34 |
| Article 13.06 - Seniority Lists | 35 |
| Article 17.01(D) - Postings | 37 |
| Article 18.09 - Voluntary Demotion | 38 |
| Article 25.06 - Requirements of Work Schedules | 39 |
| Article 25.09 - Voluntary Shift Exchanges | 41 |
| Article 27.04 - Application | 43 |
| Article 28 - Night, Weekend, Super Shift Premium | 44 |
| Article 29 - On-Call, Call Back, and Call-In | 47 |
| Article 30 - Responsibility Pay | 51 |
| Article 31 - Non-Discrimination, Respectful Workplace and Complaints Investigation | 52 |
| Article 32.0X - Critical Incident Support | 54 |
| Article 32.0X - Psychological Health and Safety | 55 |
| Article 32.01 - Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee | 57 |
| Article 32.03(D) - Safe Workplace | 59 |
| Article 33 - Leave - Compassionate | |
| Article 37.04 - Domestic and Sexual Violence Leave | 62 |
| Articles 30 - Leave - Daid Holidays | 64 |

| Article 43.01 - Special Leave | . 67 |
|--|------|
| Article 43.02 - Personal Leave | 69 |
| Article 54 - Isolation Travel Allowance | . 79 |
| Article 57.05 - Registration Fees | . 81 |
| Article 57.06 - Business Allowance | . 82 |
| Article 61 - Effective and Terminating Dates | . 83 |
| Article 63 - Wage Schedules - A.1 | 84 |
| Article 63 - Wage Schedules - A.2 to A.4 | 86 |
| Special Wage Rate Schedules for Pine Free Clinic Nurses | . 88 |
| MOA Re: Year 15, 20, 25 and 30 Add Pay | 89 |
| Article XX - Ceremonial, Cultural, Spiritual and Compassionate Leave for Indigenous Employees | 100 |
| Deletions - Article 28.04 - Working Short Premium and Article 60 - Direct Patient Care Staffing | 102 |
| General Housekeeping | 103 |
| APPENDICES AND MOAs | |
| Appendix A.1 - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Administration | 106 |
| Appendix A.2 - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Regional Representation | 108 |
| Appendix AA - MOA Re: Job Sharing | 110 |
| Appendix EE - Integration of Licensed Practical Nurses into the NBA Provincial Collective | 113 |
| Appendix II.1 - MOA Re: Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee | 114 |
| Appendix KK - MOA Re: Professional Responsibility Process | 116 |
| Appendix QQ - MOA Re: Clinical Mentorship | 120 |
| Appendix W - Re: Full-time Steward and Steward at Large Positions | 122 |
| Appendix XX - MOA Re: Preceptor Premium | 128 |
| Appendix XX - MOA Re: 2023 Wage Schedule Adjustments | 130 |
| Appendix XX - MOA - Amendment to Appendix U.I Health and Welfare Benefit | 132 |
| Appendix XX - MOA - Staffing Replacement | 133 |
| Appendix Y - MOA Re: Pension for Retirees | 135 |
| MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment | 136 |
| MOA Re: Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group | 138 |
| MOA Re: Gender Diversity and Inclusion | 140 |
| MOA Re: Joint Provincial Health Human Resources Coordination Centre (PHHRCC) | 142 |
| MOA Re: Provincial Occupational Health and Safety (Switch BC) | 144 |
| MOA Re: Recruitment and Retention of Indigenous Employees | 146 |
| MOA Re: Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples and Eliminating Indigenous Specific Racism in Healthcare | 148 |
| MOA Re: Extended Work Day/Compressed Work Week | 150 |
| MOA Re: Local and Provincial Emergencies | 160 |
| MOA Re: Pandemic Information Sharing Forum | 161 |

The NBA Chief Negotiator

Dear BCNU members of the Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA),

I am pleased to provide you with the outcome of the recent round of negotiations that impact your provincial collective agreement. In this package you will find the terms of settlement for the 2022-2025 NBA contract. We have included every article, appendix, and memorandum of agreement from the



bargaining table. These materials stand as testament to the effort, commitment and resilience shown by those elected to represent you at the bargaining table who have listened to your concerns and have delivered on your requests.

Specifically, the committee focused its efforts on addressing members' top five priorities:

- improvements to wages and premiums,
- · minimum nurse patient staffing ratios,
- greater flexibility and leaves,
- · workplace safety, and
- · improvements to benefits.

This round of bargaining presented an unprecedented opportunity for our members to make history and set an all-time record for investments in nurses in BC. We have bargained increased income for NBA members, making them the highest paid nurses within the Canadian Federation of Nurses Unions (CFNU). We have obtained this by including changes to the wage grid, imposing five additional increment steps (10, 15, 20, 25 and 30), enhancing existing premiums and creating two new ones to the agreement, and ensuring that all members have their college fees fully reimbursed by the employer starting immediately and continuing into the future.

In addition to increasing our members' wages, we have also delivered on your second request – establishing minimum nurse-to-patient ratios. The NBA has been attempting to implement minimum nurse-to-patient ratios for decades and we are excited to have reached a historic agreement with the government that will link directly with negotiated language to recruit the nurses needed to meet this goal. Through this agreement, we have secured an unsurpassed investment in nursing and established BC as the first province in Canada to have nurse-to-patient ratios. We will seek to start the implementation process immediately following ratification.

Minimum nurse-to-patient ratios in combination with the extremely competitive income increases in this agreement will assist in recruitment and retention of nurses as quickly as possible. This will result in improved workload, quality of care, job satisfaction and nurse safety as demonstrated in both Australia and California.

This round of bargaining provided a meaningful opportunity to demonstrate a genuine commitment to the Truth and Reconciliation work required to improve our health-care system. Through new contract language, we address the pervasive and ongoing harms of colonialism experienced by Indigenous members of our communities, both in nursing and at-large. We are strengthening awareness of the diversity of our membership and have achieved language that champions inclusivity and equity as foundational tenets throughout the provincial contract.

We have negotiated improved contract language that positively impacts the following priorities for nurses:

- · Increased scheduling flexibility and access to leaves,
- Workplace safety,
- Improved elbow-to-elbow support through the creation of 150 new mentorship positions,
- Access to union representation through the creation of more Full-time Steward and Steward At-Large positions with increased pay,
- Increased number of EDMP representatives,
- Ability to bank overtime by increasing the limit to 150 hours, and
- Improved language regarding dual postings for RPNs.

In this package you will also find a copy of the signed agreement reached between the NBA and the provincial government guaranteeing a further contract commitment of \$100-million dollars in one-time funding. This money will positively impact nurses in the following ways:

- Meaningful support for members' mental health and well-being through the establishment of a nurse support fund,
- Funding for nurses laddering from LPN to RN and RPN,
- Funding for increased opportunities for employed student nurses (ESNs), and
- Funding for additional nurse leadership positions.

In closing, I would like to recognize the members of the 2022-2025 NBA bargaining committee. I feel fortunate to have worked with a team of diverse, thoughtful, passionate nurse leaders from all sectors, designations and constituent unions, from every corner of our province:

- · Aman Grewal, RN, President, BCNU
- Rise Ford, LPN, Long-term Care, BCNU
- · Jereme Bennett, RN, Community Care, BCNU
- Gerrie Miller, LPN, Community Care, BCNU
- Roy Hansen, RPN, Acute Care Large, BCNU
- Kath-Ann Terrett, RN, Acute Care Large, BCNU
- Annelise Henderson, RN, Acute Care Medium, BCNU
- Candi DeSousa, RN, Acute Care Small, BCNU
- Nicole McIntosh, RPN, Member Representative, Health Sciences Association of BC
- Alyson Warner, Staff Representative, Health Sciences Association of BC
- Carol Kenzie, Hospital Employees' Union (HEU) Representative, Small Union Spokesperson

It is thanks to their solidarity, patience and unwavering focus on making health care better for our nurses that this deal has come to fruition. I would also like to extend my thanks to all of our members who took the time to send emails, lobby MLAs, respond to the bargaining survey, participate in worksite or regional activities, and tell their stories to highlight the key issues to our government and employer representatives. This is the best agreement ever negotiated by the NBA. If ratified, we will make history in this country being the first to implement nurse-patient ratios while being home to the highest paid nurses in the country.

The ratification vote takes place online from April 20-27. Between now and then, I encourage you to take the time to review the language enclosed, send any questions to our bargaining@bcnu.org email address, attend one of the many virtual hybrid events scheduled between now and the close of voting on April 27.

In solidarity,

Jim Gould

NBA Chief Negotiator

BCNU Interim CEO

The BCNU President

Finally, nurses are getting the respect they deserve.

On behalf of your bargaining committee and council, I am pleased to announce that a tentative agreement has been reached with BC's health employers.

This historic tentative agreement comes after months of intense discussions, and we are confident it targets the key priorities outlined to us by thousands of nurses in BC. In addition to record-setting compensation, the terms of settlement includes significant improvements in other priority areas, including improved flexibility and leaves, new and enhanced premiums and funding to promote workplace safety.

Since the outset of bargaining, we emphasized that nurses' current workloads are untenable. Many of you told us you were strongly considering leaving the profession due to a lack of work-life balance and impossible working conditions. Whether in acute care, long-term care or community care, nurses of all designations are at the breaking point as they try to hold up a health-care system in crisis.

We know the state of the health-care system has left many of you feeling exhausted, burnt out and morally distressed. Let me be clear: we have heard you.

I and the rest of the bargaining committee, along with our chief negotiator and BCNU interim CEO Jim Gould, brought your stories and your sacrifice to the table, and we strongly believe that this collective agreement is a sign that the government is finally paying attention.

We also know you had our backs while we were at the bargaining table. In communities across the province, nurse's voices were louder than ever as they stood up for their patients, their colleagues and themselves to demand that the government make health care better.

Your efforts have not gone unnoticed. I am constantly inspired by the professionalism and passion demonstrated by so many of you each and every day, despite the challenges you are up against.

This is a collective agreement you can be proud of. It recognizes your dedication and sacrifice, and opens the door to the renewed investment in nurses that we have been calling for.

Finally, I am proud to report that our Nurses' Bargaining Association negotiators have reached a groundbreaking commitment from the provincial government to support mandatory minimum nurse-patient ratios, a staffing model BCNU has been advocating for more than 25 years.



This is the beginning of a new chapter, and I am excited to help lay the groundwork that will help retain the nurses we have in the system today and recruit the nurses we will need in the future.

I invite all of you to take the time to read the details of the collective agreement, visit our BCNU Member Portal for updates, and attend one of our NBA ratification sessions either in-person or virtually. Each town hall will offer the chance to hear directly from NBA Chief Negotiator Jim Gould, where you can ask questions and learn what the contract will mean for you.

Secure, online voting will take place between 12 noon on April 20 and 12 noon April 27. Every member covered by this collective agreement has an opportunity to vote.

Thank you,

Aman Grewal

President, BC Nurses' Union

aman Grewal

2022-2025 NBA Provincial Collective Agreement



Wages and Premiums

APPENDIX XX - MOA Re: 2023 Wage Schedule Adjustments (Pg 130-131)

ARTICLE 63 - Wage Schedules - A.1 (Pg 84-85)

ARTICLE 63 - Wage Schedules - A.2 to A.4 (Pg 86-87)

Wage Grids (Pg 93-99)

MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment (Pg 136-137)

Wage increases follow the government mandate which, with cost-of-living adjustment included, means a general wage increase (GWI) for everyone covered by the collective agreement of approximately 12 to 14 percent by April 1, 2024.

The wage increases are retroactive to April 1, 2022.

- Year 1: April 1, 2022: Increase rates of pay by an average of 3.82%
 - The average increase of 3.82% consists of a \$0.25 per hour increase and then a 3.24% general wage increase (GWI) to be applied across all rates of pay.
- Year 2: April 1, 2023: Increase rates of pay by 5.5%
 - An additional GWI of up to 1.25% in accordance with the Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) MOA.
- Year 3: April 1, 2024: Increase rates of pay by 2%.
 - An additional GWI of up to 1% in accordance with the Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) MOA.

In addition to these wage increases, effective April 1, 2023, a new wage schedule adjustment will provide increased hourly wage rates for nurses between steps 4 and 9 on the NBA wage grid.

The agreement contains a new Step 10 wage grid increment across all levels and, in acknowledgement of long service, additional increments have been added at 15, 20, 25 and 30 years.

The addition of these wage grid increments will result in significant wage increases for many nurses and reflects the respect and recognition they deserve for their continued years of service.



ARTICLE 28 - Shift Premiums

28.01 Evening and Night Shift Premiums

(a) Evening

Effective April 1, 2023: \$1.40/ hour (0.70 increase) Retro April 1, 2022 (0.35/hr).

(b) Night Shift

Effective April 1, 2023: \$5.00 (1.50 increase) Retro April 1, 2022 (0.75/hr).

28.02 Weekend Shift Premium

Effective April 1, 2023: \$3.50/hour (1.20 increase) Retro April 1, 2022 (0.60/hr).

28.03 Super Shift Premium

Effective April 1, 2023: \$1.85/hour (0.85 increase) Retro April 1, 2022 (0.40/hr).

28.04 Working Short Premium

This article has been deleted.

28.04 Short Notice Premium

This Article number has been adjusted due to the deletion of the Working Short Premium. The premium remains unchanged.

28.05 Regular Premium (NEW)

Effective April 1, 2023: \$2.15/hr for each hour worked excluding overtime.

28.06 OR/PAR/ER/ICU/CCU Premium (NEW Article)

Effective April 1, 2023: \$2.00/hr (from \$50/month). This Article has been expanded to include nurses working in Psychiatric ER. (Pg 44-46)

ARTICLE 29 - On-Call, Call-Back and Call-In

Effective April 1, 2023: \$7.00/hour for the first 72 hours, then \$7.50/hour above 72 hours. (Pg 47-50)

ARTICLE 30 - Responsibility Pay

Effective April 1, 2023: An in-charge nurse will receive responsibility pay after 2 hours instead of 3 hours. The responsibility pay has increased from \$1.25/hour to \$2.50/hour.

Effective April 1, 2023: For small employers, a nurse designated in charge of a worksite will receive a special allowance of \$18.75/shift.

(Pg 51)

APPENDIX XX - MOA Re: Preceptor Premium (NEW)

Effective 120 days post-ratification

In recognition of their greater responsibility, accountability, and additional duties, nurses acting as preceptors will be paid a premium of \$1.50/hour for their entire shift.

(Pg 128-129)

ARTICLE 54 - Isolation Travel Allowance

Effective April 1, 2023: Employees will be paid a lump sum of \$150/month - a 100% increase. Fraser Lakes has also been added.

(Pg 79-80)

ARTICLE 57.05 - Registration

Effective for the 2023 registration year and ongoing: The employer will reimburse all nurses (including casuals) for the full cost of the BC College of Nurses and Midwives registration fee. This will not be prorated. This does not include professional liability insurance and NNPBC membership fees.

(Pg 81)

ARTICLE 57.06 - Business Allowance

Effective April 1, 2023: increased to \$150/month (from \$50/month). Community based service was also defined.

(Pg 82)

Leaves and Flexibility

APPENDIX AA - MOA Re: Job Sharing

Job sharing language has been improved to include a group of employees that may now participate in a job sharing arrangement. Casuals are also now eligible to participate in job sharing. (Pg 110-112)

ARTICLE 25.06 - Requirements of Work Schedules

A majority of nurses on a unit may agree to waive the off-duty weekend provision in order to eliminate six-day stretches in their rotation.

(Pg 39-40)

ARTICLE 25.09 - Voluntary Shift Exchanges

The voluntary shift exchange language has been modified to allow more flexibility for nurses. Newly added is a shift exchange pool whereby up to 6 employees can pool and exchange shifts amongst each other on a quarterly basis.

(Pg 41-42)

ARTICLE 27.04 - Application

The maximum amount in an employee's overtime bank has increased from 45 hours to 150 hours permanently.

(Pg 43)

ARTICLE 33 - Leave - Compassionate

The application of compassionate leave has been broadened to better reflect inclusivity and the previous 2 days for travel have been converted to compassionate leave to improve access. (Pg 61)

ARTICLE 37.04 - Domestic and Sexual Violence Leave

This Article allows 5 days paid, plus 5 days unpaid, and up to 15 weeks of unpaid leave with no loss of benefits.

(Pg 62-63)



ARTICLE 39 - Paid Holidays

The National Day for Truth and Reconciliation has been added as the 13th statutory holiday. The formula for RPT employees has been increased to reflect this new statutory holiday. (Pg 64-66)

ARTICLE 43.01 - Special Leave

The Article has been updated to reflect the new compassionate leave improvements. (Pg 67-68)

ARTICLE 43.02 - Personal Leave

Personal leaves can now be attached to other leaves including vacation and paid statutory holiday. (Pg 69)

Nursing Supports/Other Gains

APPENDIX II.1 - MOA Re: Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee

The SNSC committee was expanded from 6 total members to 8 and now includes professional practice. Increased access to data has now been included. (Pg 114-115)

APPENDIX KK - MOA Re: Professional Responsibility Process

Appendix KK remains active in lieu of Article 59 until the ratification of the next collective agreement.

(Pg 116-119)

APPENDIX QQ - MOA Re: Clinical Mentorship

150 mentors (Level 4) will be proportionately distributed through the Health Authorities/PHC to provide elbow to elbow support.

(Pg 120-121)

APPENDIX W - Re: Full-Time Steward and Steward at Large Positions

We have added 1 new steward at RCH, 4 DEI Stewards, and 1 SAL for the Constituent Unions. Hours of work and remuneration are now consistent for all full-time stewards, stewards at large, and EDMP representatives.

(Pg 122-127)

Appendix XX - MOA - Staffing Replacement

This is a new Appendix that replaces Article 60. This Appendix ensures that Employers must continue to make all reasonable efforts to address *Immediate Staffing Need (Short Term Replacement)*, and *Future and Predictable Staffing Needs (Long Term Replacement)*. It also assures reassignment must be done in a fair manner.

(Pg 133-134)

ARTICLE 17.01(D) - Postings

The Employer will evaluate unfilled vacancies to determine potential opportunities for RPNs. (Pg 37)



Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

ARTICLE 2 - Purpose of Agreement

The added language acknowledges our presence on the traditional, ancestral and unceded territory of First Nations and our shared responsibility to dismantle the harms of systemic racism and to learn from Indigenous peoples as we develop a culturally safe and welcoming health care system for all.

The 2020 *In Plain Sight* report reminds us of the pervasive and ongoing harms of colonialism in our health care system and this agreement begins the process of redressing these harms with new Indigenous-focused, equity-oriented language.

(Pg 28)

ARTICLE 31 - Non-Discrimination, Respectful Workplace and Complaints Investigation

ARTICLE 31.01 - Non-Discrimination

This Article has been amended to better reflect inclusivity.

ARTICLE 31.02 - Respectful Workplace

This Article recognizes the right to have a respectful workplace free from bullying and harassment.

ARTICLE 31.03 - Complaints Investigation

This is a new article that provides clarity to the Employer's obligations for addressing complaints of harassment. Where the complaint involves Human Rights Code grounds, including allegations of sexual harassment, the complainant must advise the Employer and, may refer the complaint to either the Employer's respectful workplace policy or a Complaints Investigator.

(Pg 52-53)

MOA Re: Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group

The establishment of a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group, to create safe and inclusive work environments, has been identified as a priority across the health sector. BCNU looks forward to taking an active role in this working group.

(Pg 138-139)



ARTICLE XX - Ceremonial, Cultural, Spiritual and Compassionate Leave for Indigenous Employees

Article XX deals with the inherent right of Indigenous members to access leaves for Ceremonial, Cultural and Spiritual purposes, while also outlining the right of Indigenous members to access Compassionate leave based on a conception of family consistent with their cultural practices. (Pg 100-101)

MOA Re: Recruitment and Retention of Indigenous Employees

A Memorandum of Agreement on the Recruitment and Retention of Indigenous Employees will ensure that Indigenous members are able to utilize their skills and knowledge to provide culturally safe care to Indigenous patients, clients, residents and their communities.

(Pg 146-147)

MOA Re: Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples and Eliminating Indigenous Specific Racism in Healthcare

This Memorandum establishes a forum to begin the work of advancing the rights and concerns of Indigenous members, health care workers and patients. (Pg 148-149)

MOA Re: Gender Diversity and Inclusion

This Article advances the principles of Diversity, Equity and Inclusivity (DEI) and ensures that all members feel that they are truly represented in and through their collective agreement. A Memorandum of Agreement on Gender Diversity and Inclusion begins the vital work of ensuring that our workplaces are welcoming of all members irrespective of their gender identity and/or expression. This Article also outlines access to paid leaves for gender-affirming medical leave. (Pg 140-141)

Health and Safety

ARTICLE 32.01 - Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee, ARTICLE 32.03 - Safe Workplace, MOA Re: Provincial Occupational Health and Safety

The bargaining committee negotiated language that better supports JOHSCs. This includes clarification about the kind of information committees can request, and the time that committee members are afforded to prepare for meetings. The Employer will provide establish procedures and policies to minimize or eliminate the risk of workplace violence. Language has also been negotiated that expands violence prevention training at the individual and site level.

To ensure the effective functioning of JOHSCs, employers will provide the NBA with relevant information and meeting minutes, and consult it when requesting any changes to a JOHSC through WorkSafeBC. Training on improved JOHSC functioning will also be developed through the new health-care safety agency, SWITCH BC.

The parties commit to support SWITCH BC in carrying on with occupational health and safety projects previously agreed to in support of the healthcare sector. In the event of the dissolution of SWITCH BC for any reason, the parties will meet to discuss an alternative provincial occupational health and safety structure.

(Pg <u>57-58</u>, <u>59-60</u>, <u>144-145</u>)

ARTICLE 32.0X - Critical Incident Support

This Article includes supports for nurses who are exposed to psychologically traumatic events in the workplace.

(Pg 54)

ARTICLE 32.0X - Psychological Health and Safety

This Article recognizes the 13 factors as defined in the CSA Psychological Health and Safety. The parties agree to request that the BC Health Care Occupational Health and Safety Society (currently known as SWITCH BC) develop standardized resources to support local JOHSC to fulfill their duties and functions to support psychologically healthy and safe workplace. (Pg 55-56)



MOA Re: Joint Provincial Health Human Resources Coordination Centre (PHHRCC) - Bargaining Association Consultation Forum

This Article is a provincial human health resources committee established by the Ministry of Health to seek input from the bargaining associations on issues related to DEI, and strategies to support retention of the workforce.

(Pg 142-143)

MOA Re: Local and Provincial Emergencies

Employers will notify the Union as soon as reasonably possible and provide information related to the emergency.

(Pg 160)

MOA Re: Pandemic Information Sharing Forum

The parties agree to establish a pandemic information sharing forum where a public health emergency is declared by the Government of British Columbia that creates a health risk for a significant number of employees.

(Pg 161-162)

APPENDIX A.1 - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Administration

The bargaining committee successfully secured an agreement from health employers to expand the Enhanced Disability Management (EDMP) by 30 percent. These increases are reflected in the dollar amounts in this document.

(Pg 106-107)

APPENDIX A.2 - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Regional Representation

The increased funding stemming from APX A.1 facilitated an additional five (5) EDMP Representatives to of whom will be vacation backfill.

(Pg 108-109)

Benefits

APPENDIX XX - MOA - Amendment to Appendix U.1 Health and Welfare Benefit

This appendix was an agreement to extend the dates in Appendix U.1 MOA to January 1, 2026. As a result, there have been no changes to nurses current benefits.

(Pg 132)

APPENDIX Y - MOA Re: Pension for Retirees

Effective April 1, 2024, the one (1) percent Retiree Benefits Program be expanded to include Licensed Practical Nurses.

(Pg 135)

ARTICLE 11.04(G)(X) - Benefit Entitlement

This article confirms that casual employees are entitled to a minimum of 5 paid sick days pursuant to the *Employment Standard Act*.

(Pg 33)

ARTICLE 11.04(G) - Casual Employees - Benefit Entitlement - Vacation Pay and Paid Holidays Effective April 1, 2023, casual employees shall now receive 13% up from 12.6% of their straight time pay, exclusive of all premiums, in lieu of scheduled vacations and paid holidays. This a result of the addition of the Truth and Reconciliation day as a paid holiday.

(Pg 34)



Other

ARTICLE 1.01 - Preamble

Specific reference to specific genders has been removed from 1.02 (C). (Pg 25)

ARTICLE 1.02 - Definitions

Removal of the term "tour of duty". (Pg 26-27)

ARTICLE 5.02 - Union Deductions

Additional data will be provided to the Union. There have been no changes to dues. (Pg 29-30)

ARTICLE 6.08 - Copies of the Provincial Collective Agreement

An agreement to have printed and electronic copies available to members. (Pg 31)

ARTICLE 6.10 - List of New and Terminating Employees

The Employer will continue to provide the Union with a list of new and terminating employees and now will also provide the last four digits of the BCCNM Nurse ID number.

(Pg 32)

ARTICLE 13.06 - Seniority Lists

Seniority lists will now be updated and posted quarterly and will now include increment steps and anniversary dates. The Union will also receive the last four digits of the BCCN Nurse ID number that will assist the Union in ensuring an accurate and updated membership data base. (Pg 35-36)

ARTICLE 18.09 - Voluntary Demotion

Striking the words "continuous service" and replacing with "recognized years of experience" will ensure nurses are placed on the appropriate increment step when taking a voluntary demotion. (Pg 38)

ARTICLE 61 - Effective and Terminating Dates

This Article refers to the effective and terminating dates of this collective agreement. (Pg 83)



Housekeeping

Housekeeping changes occur after every round of bargaining. These are changes to the CA that do not actually change the meaning or application of the language, but that fix typographical errors, or make the mutually agreed meaning clearer.

Deletions - Article 28.04 - Working Short Premium, Article 60 - Direct Patient Care Staffing, and Appendix GG

The parties agreed to extinguish all references to the PCAP, and corresponding working short premium. Appendix GG has been deleted as a response to changes to Article 57.05 - Registration. (Pg 102)

General Housekeeping

The changes in Article 25.12 is a correction to the existing Article number, Appendix DD is regarding the agreement to update the consolidated certification list prior to printing, 13.02 and Article 20 delete a reference to legislative changes that are no longer in effect, and Appendix K because the pension review has been completed.

(Pg 103-104)

APPENDIX EE - Integration of Licensed Practical Nurses into the NBA Provincial Collective
This article has been updated to reflect the change to Appendix M to Article 28.06, and the
removal of the reference to Appendix Y - Pension for Retirees, as this work has been completed.
(Pg 113)

MOA Re: Extended Work Day/Compressed Work Week

The parties agree to update this Memorandum to reflect the changes to the 2022-2025 Collective Agreement.

(Pg 150-159)



Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

TENTATIVE AGREEMENT

| The NBA and HEABC agree the attached greensheets constitute a tentative agreement for the | ne |
|---|----|
| Terms of Settlement for the renewal of the collective agreement expired March 31, 2022, | |
| subject to ratification by the NBA and HEABC. | |

Proposals and Counter-proposals not addressed are withdrawn on a without prejudice basis.

The parties unreservedly recommend ratification of these Terms of Settlement to their respective principals.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|---------|----------------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the | e HEABC | Signed on behalf of | the NBA |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Exec Negotiations & Memb | | Jim Gould, Interim Negotiator | CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 1.01 – Preamble

- (A) The Unions, Nurses' Bargaining Association, the Employers and the Health Employers Association of British Columbia agree to abide by the terms and conditions set out in this Provincial Collective Agreement.
- (B) For clarity and brevity throughout this Provincial Collective Agreement the term "HEABC" shall be used to describe the Health Employers Association of British Columbia.
- (C) Wherever the feminine is used in this Agreement, the same shall be construed as meaning the masculine, unless otherwise specifically stated.
- (DC) Where the asterisk (*) is used throughout this Agreement, it is agreed that the reference to twenty (20) work days leave of absence without pay is to be applied over the applicable calendar year. Should an employee terminate prior to completion of such year, the twenty (20) work days will be proportionately reduced. (Example: Six (6) months equals ten (10) work days. Reference Article 37 Leave General.)
- (ED) For the purpose of calculating benefits commencing the first pay period prior to September 30, 1993, the base day will be 7.2 hours.
- (FE) For the purpose of calculating benefits effective April 1, 2013, the base day will be 7.5 hours.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at <u>4:00</u> ampm |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 1.02 – Definitions

ASSOCIATION means Nurses' Bargaining Association.

BCHOA means the British Columbia Healthcare Office of Arbitration as described in the Letter of Agreement Re: Implementation of Improvements in Dispute Management; British Columbia Healthcare Office of Arbitration.

CALENDAR DAY means a twenty-four (24) hour period ending at midnight.

CALENDAR YEAR means a period of twelve (12) consecutive months commencing on the first day of January.

CERTIFICATION means the certification awarded by the Labour Relations Board of British Columbia to any Union included in the Nurses' Bargaining Association.

COMMON-LAW SPOUSE means two people who have cohabitated as spousal partners for a period of not less than one (I) year.

CONSOLIDATED CERTIFICATION means the certification awarded by the Labour Relations Board of British Columbia to the Nurses' Bargaining Association.

DAY SHIFT means a shift in which the major portion occurs between 0730 and 1530 hours.

DEMOTION means a change from an employee's position to one with a lower maximum salary level.

EMPLOYEE means any person who is covered by the certification awarded by the Labour Relations Board of British Columbia (or any succeeding Acts).

EMPLOYER means the corporation, society, person(s), organization, facility, agency, or centre (represented by the Health Employers Association of B.C.) as listed in the appendix attached to the certification issued by the Labour Relations Board of British Columbia.

EVENING SHIFT means a shift in which the major portion occurs between 1530 and 2330 hours.

HEAD OFFICE OF THE ASSOCIATION means the head office of the British Columbia Nurses' Union.

HEAD OFFICE OF THE UNION means the head office for each of the Unions included in the Nurses' Bargaining Association. The respective head offices shall be designated by each Union.

NIGHT SHIFT means a shift in which the major portion occurs between 2330 and 0730 hours.

PROMOTION means a change from an employee's position to one with a higher maximum salary level.

SCHEDULED DAY OFF means any day a regular full-time employee is not scheduled to work, other than a paid holiday.

SHIFT means the normal consecutive work hours scheduled for each employee (regular full-time, regular part-time or casual) which occur in any twenty-four (24) hour period. In each twenty-four (24) hour period there shall normally be three (3) shifts, namely: day, evening and night shift.

STEWARD means an employee within the Employer's service elected or appointed by the Union or its members to represent the Union and its members.

TRANSFER means the movement of an employee from one position to another which does not constitute a promotion or demotion.

UNION means any Union included in the Nurses' Bargaining Association as the context requires, unless otherwise specifically stated.

UNION REPRESENTATIVE means a member of the staff of the Union or designated substitute.

WORKSITE means a facility, agency, centre, program, organization or location where an employee is assigned to work either at or from.

YEAR means a period from any given date in one month to the immediately preceding date twelve (12) months later.

TOUR OF DUTY means one or more completed shifts.

| Agreed to this 30th | day of March | 2023, at am | om |
|---|--------------|---|----|
| Signed on behalf of the H | IEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chie Negotiator | ef |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 2 – Purpose of Agreement

The purpose of the Agreement is to maintain a harmonious and mutually beneficial relationship between the Employer and employees and between the Union and the Employer, and to set forth certain terms and conditions of employment relating to remuneration, hours of work, benefits and general working conditions affecting employees covered by the Agreement.

All parties to the Agreement share a desire to provide quality health care in British Columbia, to maintain professional standards, to promote the well-being and increased efficiency of employees so that the people of British Columbia are well and effectively served.

The parties to the Agreement acknowledge with gratitude that they, and their members, work on the traditional, ancestral, and unceded territory of First Nations who care for and nurture these lands and have from time immemorial. The parties acknowledge the pervasive and ongoing harms of colonialism faced by Indigenous peoples. These harms include those described in the Truth and Reconciliation Commission's 94 calls to action and the Final Report of the National Inquiry into Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and Girls' 231 calls to justice, and also include the widespread systemic racism against Indigenous peoples as users, patients, and staff in BC's healthcare system, as highlighted in the 2020 In Plain Sight report, including its 24 recommendations.

The parties are committed to confronting and healing systemic racism in our provision of healthcare services and recognize the importance of learning from Indigenous peoples and communities in developing a culturally safe and welcoming health care system for all.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am pm |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | lim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019 - 2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 5.02 – Union Deductions

All employees who are covered by the certification with the Union shall, as a condition of continuing employment, authorize a deduction from their pay cheques of the amount of the dues, levies and assessments payable to the Union by a member of the Union. The Employer shall provide a copy of the authorization form, which has been forwarded by the Union, to each new employee.

Upon receipt of written notice from the Union, the Employer shall terminate the services of any employee who does not authorize the deduction as above.

The Employer agrees to deduct the amount of the Union dues, levies and assessments payable to the Union by an employee in the Union's bargaining unit.

The Union shall inform the Employer in writing of the amount to be deducted from each employee. The Union shall advise the Employer in writing sixty (60) calendar days in advance of any change in the amount to be deducted.

The Employer shall remit such dues, levies and assessments to the Union within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the date of deduction, together with a written statement listing the employee's first name, last name, last four digits of the BCCNM Nurse ID number, phone number provided by the employee, increment step, worksite name, bargaining association affiliation and the pay periods covered, with start and end dates of the pay periods. The Employer will provide the dues report to the Union in either Microsoft Excel or .cvs format provided that it can be done so at no additional cost to the Employer.

The Employer shall supply each employee, without charge, a receipt for income tax purposes shown on the T4 slip in the amount of the deductions paid to the Union by the employee in the previous year. Such receipts shall be provided to the employee prior to March I of the succeeding year.

| Deductions for | levies and | assessments | shall be a | percentage o | of wages. |
|----------------|------------|-------------|------------|--------------|-----------|
|----------------|------------|-------------|------------|--------------|-----------|

Agreed to this 24d day of February 2023, at 1445 am/pm

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 6.08 - Copies of the Provincial Collective Agreement

The Union and the Employer agree that every employee should be familiar with the provisions of this Agreement and their rights and obligations under it. For this reason, the Employer shall make available copies of the Provincial Collective Agreement available to employees both in electronic and in-booklet form to all-of its employees. An electronic copy of the Agreement shall be made available on the Union's and HEABC's websites.

The Employer shall print sufficient copies of the Agreement to provide two (2) copies for every three (3) employees per worksite. Should demand for printed copies be greater than supply, the Parties shall work together to identify unused copies, and if none are identified, additional printing shall be completed. The cost of printing shall be shared equally between the Union and the HEABC.

The Agreement shall be printed in a Θ union shop and bear a recognized Θ union label. The Union and the Employer shall agree on the size, print and colour of the Agreement and all other particulars prior to it being printed. Printing shall be completed as soon as possible after the signing of the Provincial Collective Agreement.

Agreed to this 2nd day of February 2023, at 1445 am/pm

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 6 – Union Rights and Activities

Article 6.10 - List of New and Terminating Employees

The Employer shall provide the Union with a monthly list of new and terminated employees specifying the <u>last four digits of the BCCNM Nurse ID number</u>, status, position and wage classification level of each employee.

| Agreed to this 30th | day of March | 2023, at am_pm | |
|---|--------------|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the H | HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Execution Negotiations & Member | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

This proposal package (Article 42.01(C) and 11.04(G)(X)) is without prejudice or precedent to any litigation.

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE II.04(G)(X) – Benefit Entitlement

(x) Pursuant to the Employment Standards Act, casual employees will be entitled to the minimum standards for paid illness or injury leave.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at <u>4:00</u> am/pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE II.04(G) – Casual Employees – Benefit Entitlement – Vacation Pay and Paid Holidays

| (2) Vacation Pay and Paid Holidays | | | |
|---|--------------|--------|-----|
| Effective April 1, 2023, c casual employees shall receive 12.613% of the exclusive of all premiums, in lieu of scheduled vacations and paid holidays. | eir straight | time p | oay |

| Agreed to this | _ day of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|----------|-----------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Se | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and | I Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 13.06 – Seniority Lists

(A) On the last date of the payroll period immediately prior to January I, April I, and July I, and October I of each calendar year, the Employer shall post master lists showing the seniority of all employees at the worksite and separate lists showing the seniority of all employees within each Union. The lists shall be electronically posted or where electronical posting is not possible on each Union bulletin board and a copy shall be forwarded to the Head Office of each of the Unions.

The seniority list shall contain the following information:

- (i) first name, middle name(s) (where provided by the employee) and last name;
- (ii) preferred name, where provided by the employee;
- (iii) nurse type (LPN, RN, RPN), where possible;
- (iv) job status and posted FTE (regular full-time, regular part-time, casual);
- (v) hire dates;
- (vi) wage schedule classification;
- (vii) <u>increment step;</u>
- (viii) <u>last four digits of the BCCNM Nurse ID number (Union copy only);</u>
- (ix) anniversary date;
- (x)(vii) seniority date;
- (xi)(viii) seniority hours;
- (xii)(ix) job titles;
- (xiii)(x) worksite.
- (B) HEABC agrees to meet with the NBA to explore options for a secure unique employee identifier that is compliant with privacy legislation.
- (B) Non-Health Authority Employers/Providence Health Care (PHC) will not be required to manually compile or modify systems to provide increment step and anniversary date.

| . , | | - | to the Union in either Micr no additional cost to the En | |
|--|----------------------|--------------|---|---------|
| Agreed | to this 28th | day of March | _ 2023, at <u>4:00</u> | _ am/pm |
| Signed | on behalf of the HEA | ВС | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

| Amend the collective agreement, | by | changing | the | following |
|---------------------------------|----|----------|-----|-----------|
|---------------------------------|----|----------|-----|-----------|

| ARTICLE | 17.01(D) |) – Postings |
|---------|----------|--------------|
|---------|----------|--------------|

| (D) | Not withstanding 17.01(A) above, nursing vacancies in mental health services and in long |
|-----|--|
| | term care homes facilities will be dual posted for RNs and RPNs. The Employer will |
| | evaluate its unfilled vacancies and determine if other opportunities for dual posted |
| | positions exist. |

| Agreed to this 30th day of March | 2023, at am.pm |
|---|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 18.09 – Voluntary Demotion

18.09 Voluntary Demotion

An employee requesting voluntary demotion from a higher-rated position and who is subsequently demoted to the lower rated position shall be paid on the increment step appropriate to the employee's continuous service recognized years of experience (reference Article 52.01 Previous Experience). A voluntary demotion shall not change an employee's anniversary date.

| Agreed to this 30th | day of March | 2023, at 10:30 am/ | om |
|--|--------------|---|------------|
| Signed on behalf of the H | IEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executi Negotiations & Member | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chie Negotiator | : f |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 25.06 – Requirements of Work Schedules

- (A) Work schedules may take the form of either two-shift, or single shift rotations except as requested by the employee in writing and agreed to by the Employer. This provision does not apply to shifts accepted by regular part-time employees in addition to their regularly scheduled work.
- (B) The employee may request in writing to work fixed <u>weekend</u>, evening or night shifts.
- (C) A regular employee shall not be scheduled to work more than six (6) consecutive days, unless requested by the employee and agreed to by the Employer.
- (D) All off-duty days shall be consecutive unless requested by the employee and agreed to by the Employer.
- (E) (i) Each regular employee shall be scheduled off-duty an average of not less than one (I) weekend in every three (3) weekends in each nine (9) week period. For the purposes of this Article a weekend means the period of time between 2300 hours Friday and 0700 hours Monday. By mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union, this provision may be waived. (Reference Appendix I.I Memorandum of Agreement re: Consecutive Shifts).
 - (ii) Effective April I, 2023, provision (E) (i) will not apply where:
 - the majority of regular employees request a change, in writing, that limits the block to no more than five (5) consecutive shifts;
 - the existing master work schedule contains six (6) consecutive shifts in a block;
 and
 - existing sets of six (6) consecutive shifts cannot be eliminated or reduced with existing scheduling provisions. (Reference Appendix I.I Memorandum of Agreement re: Consecutive Shifts)

The distribution of weekends will be done in a fair and equitable manner.

| (F) Except by agreement between the Employer and the employee concerned each regular employee shall receive two (2) clear off-duty shifts when changing shifts and at least forty eight (48) hours off-duty after completing a tour of the last the final night shift in a set duty. (Reference Article 1.02 - Definitions.) | | | | |
|--|--|----------|-----------------------------|---------|
| Agreed | to this | _ day of | 2023, at | _ am/pm |
| Signed | on behalf of the HEA | ВС | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| - | Suderman, Executive I ations & Member Ser | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and | d Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 25.09 – Voluntary Shift Exchanges

When operational requirements permit, To support flexibility, employees may exchange single shifts among themselves, participate in a shift exchange pool, or both provided that as follows:

(A) prior approval of such exchange is given by the employee's immediate supervisor; and

(A) Single Shift Exchanges

- I. The purpose of a shift exchange is for two (2) employees to exchange a scheduled work shift.
- 2. A shift exchange will be granted if:
 - a. employees are qualified and oriented to the unit/department/program,
 - b. employees are within the same classification,
 - c. employees provide at least seven (7) calendar days but no more than ninety (90) calendar days advance notice from the first date of the shift exchange, and
 - d. shifts are exchanged within the same ninety (90) calendar day period.
- 3. A shift exchange that is outside the parameters in #2 will require Employer approval.
- 4. The Employer's regular staffing replacement process will apply if an exchanged shift becomes vacant.
- 5. The exchanged shift becomes part of an employee's work schedule. However, the scheduling provisions pertaining to master work schedules and overtime relating to the shift exchange do not apply.
- 6. Where employees are exchanging unequal hours, accrual bank earnings, FTE, and pension contributions may be affected.
- 7. The Employer will not incur any additional costs as a result of the shift exchange except for the nominal costs associated with processing the exchange.
- (A) an employee moving to the exchanged shift is entitled to all benefits of this Collective Agreement which would normally be afforded to an employee working that shift. The Employer shall not incur any additional costs except for the nominal costs associated with processing a shift exchange over and above those expenses which would have resulted had the exchange not taken place.

(B) Shift Exchange Pool

The parties recognize that a shift exchange pool is an option to provide flexibility for regular employees. Shift exchanges are between a pool of employees (between two (2) and six (6) employees). It is expected that employees will continue to work their FTE.

- I. Effective one hundred twenty (120) days post ratification, shift exchanges will be granted if regular employees:
 - a. are on the same master work schedule,
 - b. are within the same classification, and
 - c. cover all shifts in the master work schedule;
- 2. All exchanged shifts fall within the defined quarterly periods: January 1 March 31; April I June 30; July I September 30; October I December 31.
- 3. Employees in the shift exchange pool must provide the Employer with a complete list of exchanged shifts at least fourteen (14) calendar days in advance of each quarterly period.
- 4. Employees will revert to the master work schedule at the end of each quarter unless another list of exchanged shifts is received.
- 5. The Employer's regular staffing replacement process will apply if an exchanged shift becomes vacant.
- 6. The exchanged shift becomes part of an employee's work schedule. However, the scheduling provisions pertaining to master work schedules and overtime relating to the shift exchange do not apply.
- 7. Where employees are exchanging unequal hours, accrual bank earnings, FTE, and pension contributions may be affected.
- 8. The Employer will not incur any additional costs as a result of the shift exchanges except for the nominal costs associated with processing these exchanges.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 27.04 - Application

- (A) A record shall be kept of authorized overtime worked by each employee which, at the option of the employee, shall be taken as time off or pay. Should the option be time off, such time off for overtime shall be accumulated and taken at a time mutually agreed to by the employee and the Employer.
- (B) The maximum amount in an employee's overtime bank shall be <u>one hundred and fifty</u> (150)forty-five (45) straight-time hours.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm |
|---|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

The parties agree to delete Appendix M - Managing Staffing Challenges in the Health Care System

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

This provision is not applicable to certain Employers. See Article 25.07(H).

ARTICLE 28 – Shift Premiums

28.01 Evening and Night_Shift_Premium

An employee shall be paid a shift premium for every evening and night shift when one-half or more than one-half of the hours worked fall within the defined evening or night shift. In such cases the shift premium shall be paid for the total number of hours worked. The shift premium shall apply to overtime hours worked during the evening or night shift.

- A) Effective April 1, 2022, tThe evening shift premium shall be \$1.05 70¢ per hour. Effective April 1, 2023, the evening shift premium shall be \$1.40 per hour.
- B) Effective April 1, 2022, t—The night shift premium shall be \$4.25 \\$3.50 per hour. Effective April 1, 2023, the night shift premium shall be \$5.00 per hour.

This Provision is not applicable to certain Employers: see Article 25.07(H)

28.02 Weekend Shift Premiums

Effective April I, 2022, aAn employee shall be paid a weekend premium of \$2.90\$2.30 per hour for each hour worked between 2300 hours Friday and 2300 hours Sunday. Effective April I, 2023, the weekend premium will be increased to \$3.50. This Provision is not applicable to certain Employers: see Article 25.07(H).

28.03 Super Shift Premium

Effective April I, 2022, aAn employee shall be paid a super shift premium of \$1.40\$1.00 per hour for each hour worked between 2330 Friday and 0730 Saturday, and between 2330 Saturday and 0730 Sunday. Effective April I, 2023, the super shift premium will be increased to \$1.85. The premium shall be in addition to night and weekend premiums.

Notwithstanding the above, where an Employer's standard night shift is 2300 to 0700, the super shift premium will be paid for each hour worked between 2300 Friday and 0700 Saturday, and between 2300 Saturday and 0700 Sunday.

This Provision is not applicable to certain Employers: see Article 25.07(H).

28.04 Working Short Premium

Staffing requirements are determined by patient care needs and staff scope and skill mix. Appropriate staffing requirements are supported through a timely, documented assessment of patient care needs ("workload assessment process") by the manager and nurse in charge. In instances where the workload assessment process determines that nurses providing direct patient care on a unit, program or department:

- (i) Are working below Baseline and replacement is necessary but could not be found; or
- (ii) Has identified Workload and determines that additional staff is necessary but could not be found

The unit, department or program is deemed to be "Working Short".

Effective April 1, 2020, the Employer will pay an hourly premium to each nurse within the classification who is Working Short, as defined above, for the shift that is short. The premium will apply as follows:

- (1) For units, departments or programs with ten (10) or fewer nurses within the same Baseline classification on a unit, department or program, employees working on the unit, department or program during the shift in question in the same classification shall be paid a premium of five dollars (\$5.00) per hour for every hour that the unit, department or program is Working Short.
- (2) For units, departments or programs with eleven (11) or more nurses within the same Baseline classification on a unit, department or program, employees working on the unit, department or program during the shift in question in the same classification shall be paid a premium of three dollars (\$3.00) per hour for every hour that the unit, department or program is Working Short.

The Working Short Premium is triggered when units are "Working Short" as defined above.

If the unit, department or program is deemed to be Working Short following the start of a shift, it will have two (2) hours from the determination to find staff to meet the need before the premium is triggered. If staff do not arrive on the unit, department or program within the two (2) hours the premium will be paid retroactively from the hour of the determination until the staff arrive. Where no staff are found the premium will be paid until the end of the shift.

When the premium is triggered above, employees on the unit in the same classification who have staggered start and stop times will be paid the premium only for the hours deemed as Working Short.

Any concerns regarding the application of this Working Short Premium shall be brought to the SNSC for discussion.

The Employer will record each instance of the premium. The Employer will provide a summary of the premium utilization at each SNSC meeting.

28.045 Short Notice Premium

Employees who are offered and accept a straight-time shift within twenty-four (24) hours of the start of the shift shall be paid a shift premium of \$2.00 per hour for each hour worked.

28.05 Regular Premium

Effective April 1, 2023, all regular employees will be paid a premium of \$2.15 per hour for each hour worked excluding overtime.

28.06 OR/PAR/ER/ICU/CCU Premium

Effective April 1, 2023, regular employees who are employed in:

- (i) Operating Room and Post Anaesthetic Room (OR / PAR) with permanently assigned staff;
- (ii) <u>Emergency Departments (ER) including emergency psychiatric services, with permanently assigned staff;</u>
- (iii) Intensive Care/Critical Care Units (ICU/CCU) with permanently assigned staff; will receive an additional premium of \$2.00 per hour for each hour worked.

| Agreed to this | _ day of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|----------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Se | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | l Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 29 - On-Call, Call-Back and Call-In

29.01 Definitions

- (A) On-call means the time period specified by the Employer during which an off-duty employee is required to be available for work.
- (B) Call-back means the period during which an employee is scheduled off-duty and is either:
 - (1) on-call and reports to duty at the Employer's request;
 - (2) on-call and takes a telephone call without attending the worksite, office or client's home; or
 - (3) is not on-call and returns to duty, at the Employer's request, after the completion of their shift.
- (C) Call-in means the period of time that an employee reports for duty, at the Employer's request, for unscheduled work.

29.02 Application

During the time the employee is receiving call-back pay, the on-call premium shall not apply.

29.03 On-Call

(A) Premium

Effective April 1, 2023 Effective April 1, 2016, an employee on-call shall be paid a premium of \$7.00\$5.75 per hour for the first seventy-two (72) hours on-call in a calendar month. Thereafter, the employee shall receive \$7.50\$6.25 per hour.

(B) On-Call Limited

Every effort shall be made to avoid placing an employee on-call on the evening prior to or during off-duty days.

(C) Pagers Electronic Devices

Should the Employer require an employee to have a pager or beeper an electronic device available during their on-call period, then all such related expenses for such devices shall be the sole responsibility of the Employer.

29.04 Call-Back

(A) Compensation

- (i) Return to provide care: Employees called back to work after the completion of their shift, or called back to work on a scheduled day off while being paid the on-call premium, shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours pay at the appropriate overtime rates provided in Article 27.05 for each separate call-back.
- (ii) Telephone call back: A nurse who responds to a call from the worksite about a patient-related concern or from a client by telephone without attending at the office or at the home of the client will be compensated at one and one half (1.5x) times the normal rate of pay for thirty (30) minutes for each call from a worksite or client regardless of the duration, or for the duration of the call if the call exceeds thirty (30) minutes. This clause will be reviewed by the parties in a timely manner due to an arbitration which the Union has not waived its rights to and the employer has not had the opportunity to review.

(B) Call-Back on a Paid Holiday

An employee receiving the on-call premium specified in Article 29.03 and who is called back to work on any of the paid holidays listed in Article 39 shall be paid the appropriate overtime rate for all hours worked, with a minimum of two (2) hours pay at the appropriate overtime rate.

(C) For the purposes of this Article, a scheduled day off shall mean any day other than a paid holiday on which an employee is not scheduled to work.

29.05 Application of Call-Back

(A) Functions of Employee on Call-Back

Employees called back to a worksite, office or client's home shall be required to perform all functions which are related to the situation which gave rise to the call-back. The employee shall not be required to perform unrelated, non-emergency functions.

(B) Employee Option: Time Off or Cash

Hours worked under this Article shall be taken at the option of the employee as time off or pay. Should the option be time off, such time off shall be accumulated and taken at a time agreed to by the employee and the Employer.

29.06 Call-Back Travel Allowance

An employee called back to a hospital worksite, office or client's home shall receive call-back travel allowance as follows:

- (A) mileage allowance at rates set by the Canada Revenue Agency;or
- (B) where public or private transportation facilities are not available, taxi fare from home to hospital and return. In either (A) or (B) above, an employee shall be paid a minimum of two dollars (\$2.00) for each round trip.

29.07 Call-In

- (A) A regular part-time or casual employee reporting to a worksite, office or client's home at the call of the Employer for unscheduled work, except those on-call or on a call-back, shall be paid for all hours worked with a minimum of two (2) hours' pay at their regular rate if the employee does not commence work, and a minimum of four (4) hours' pay at the regular rate if the employee commences work.
- (B) A regular full-time employee reporting to a worksite, office or client's home at the call of the Employer for unscheduled work, except those on-call or on a call-back, shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours' pay at the applicable rate if the employee does not commence work or if they work for less than two (2) hours. If the employee works for more than two (2) hours, they shall be paid for all hours worked at the applicable rate of pay.

29.08 Insufficient Off-Duty Hours

The purpose of this provision is to ensure that employees receive adequate rest where the Employer is requiring them to be on-call or called back to a worksite, office or client's home.

- (A) If an employee works Employer-required overtime immediately following their regular shift or is called back to a worksite, office or client's home and does not receive a total of eight (8) consecutive hours off duty after completion of the call back and the start of their next regularly scheduled shift, then the employee will not be required to report for duty until the employee has received a total of eight (8) consecutive hours off duty. In such instances, no deduction will be made in the employee's daily pay and the employee's normal shift hours will not be extended to have the employee work a full shift. All hours worked will be at the applicable rate of pay.
- (B) The employee in the above situation will advise their Supervisor in advance of the fact that they will not be reporting for duty at their scheduled time.
- (C) This provision is waived if the employee is granted a request for a particular shift arrangement that does not give the employee eight (8) consecutive hours in total off duty as stated in subsection (A) above.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|--|------------------------------------|--------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the | he NBA |
| | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim C Negotiator | EO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 30 – Responsibility Pay

Effective April I, 2023, aA Nurse 3 (N3) Level 3 general duty nurse designated in charge of a unit, department or worksite for three (3) two (2) hours or more shall be paid an allowance of \$2.50\$1.25 per hour.

An <u>The</u> employer may designate or assign 'in-charge' duties to a <u>Level I nurse</u> Nurse I (NI) LPN, as set out above, in the following circumstances:

- (a) in sites where no bargaining unit Nurse 3 level RN or RPN Level 3 nurse is on shift at the unit, department or worksite; or
- (b) where the only RN or RPN on the unit, department or worksite is an agency nurse.

For small Employers such as adult day care agencies, mental health and home support the following shall apply:

- Effective April 1, 2023, aA special allowance of \$18.75\$9.38 per shift shall be paid to nurses designated in charge of a worksite for a specified shift.
- A special allowance of \$1.25 per hour shall be paid to a Nurse 3 (N3) level nurse who
 is designated to relieve in a higher rated position within the bargaining unit.

An employee cannot receive both premiums referenced above on any given shift.

| Agreed to this 28th | _ day of March | 2023, at <u>4:00</u> | am (pm |
|---|----------------|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Se | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 31 – Non-Discrimination, Respectful Workplace and Complaints Investigation

31.01 Non-Discrimination

- (A) The Employer and the Union subscribe to the principles of the Human Rights Code of British Columbia, which prohibits discrimination because of a person's Indigenous identity, race, colour, ancestry, place of origin, political belief, religion, marital status, family status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age of that person, because that person has been convicted of a criminal or summary conviction offence that is unrelated to the employment or to the intended employment of that person, or other applicable protected grounds that may be added to the *Human Rights Code*.
- (B) The Employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restriction or coercion exercised or practiced with respect to any employee for reason of membership or activity in the Union.
- (C) The Employer and the Union agree that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restriction or coercion exercised or practised with respect to any employee on the basis of sexual orientation.
- (C D) The Union and the Employer recognize the right of employees to work in an environment free from sexual harassment, and the Employer shall take such actions as are necessary with respect to any person engaging in sexual harassment at the workplace.

31.02 Respectful Workplace

- (A) The Employer and the Union recognize the right of employees to have a respectful workplace free from bullying and harassment. The Employer shall take all reasonable steps to minimize all forms of workplace bullying and harassment.
- (B) Employees who experience any form of bullying and harassment may file a complaint pursuant to the Employer's policy. The policy will include how to report complaints and the procedure for responding to and the investigation of complaints of bullying and harassment.
 - (C) The Employer shall provide their Respectful Workplace policy to the local Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee (JOHSC).

31.03 Complaints Investigation

- (A) An employee who complains of harassment may register a complaint with the Employer or through the Union (at the employee's option) to the Employer designate.
- (B) The Employer will conduct an intake with the complainant within fifteen (15) calendar days and, within a further forty-five (45) calendar days, investigate, and respond to the harassment allegations pursuant to its respectful workplace policy. The Employer will notify the complainant, the respondent, and the Union (if involved) upon conclusion of the investigation whether or not the allegations were substantiated.
- (C) Where the Employer's respectful workplace policy includes an appeal procedure, at the conclusion of the investigation, the complainant will be so advised.
- (D) Both the complainant and the respondent will be entitled to Union representation if they are members of the NBA.
- (E) Where the complaint involves *Human Rights Code* grounds, including allegations of sexual harassment, the complainant must advise the Employer and, may refer the complaint to either the Employer's respectful workplace policy or a Complaints Investigator. HEABC and the NBA will determine a list of Complaints Investigators by mutual agreement.
- (F) Prior to initiating an investigation, the Complaints Investigator will determine whether the allegations fall within the definition of discrimination in the Human Rights Code and notify the Employer and the Union.
- (G) Where the Complaints Investigator determines that the complaint does not fall within the definition of discrimination in the *Human Rights Code*, they will discontinue the investigation, unless the Union and the Employer jointly agree to proceed. The complainant will be advised accordingly.
- (H) When a complaint is determined to fall within the definition of discrimination in the Human Rights Code the Complaints Investigator will:
 - I. investigate the complaint;
 - 2. determine the nature of the complaint; and
 - 3. make written recommendations to resolve the complaint.
- (I) The cost of the Complaints Investigator will be shared equally by the Union and the Employer.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|------------------------|-------------|-------------------------|--------------|
| Signed on behalf of th | e HEABC | Signed on behalf of the | he NBA |
| James Suderman, Exec | | Jim Gould, Interim C | EO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Memb | er Services | Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

ARTICLE 32 – Occupational Health & Safety Program

32.0X Critical Incident Support

Critical incident support shall be offered and, if accepted, provided to employees who have suffered a work-related, traumatic incident including, but not limited to, violence, threat of violence, death of a colleague or an unusual or unexpected patient death or a series of such incidents. The Employer shall offer access to supports from a practitioner with experience in critical incident support and trauma informed practice including, but not limited to, psychologists, psychiatrists and/or registered clinical counsellors. All reasonable efforts shall be made to make appropriate supports and resources available within forty-eight (48) hours. The Employer shall notify employees of the availability of supports, including the time, date and location and if provided to the Employer in advance the name, experience and/or qualification(s) of the practitioner participating in the session. Employees may request such supports be made available at a later date/time. If an employee has concerns regarding the practitioner, the Employer will consider those concerns which may include offering an alternative practitioner. Employees accessing support will be given time off from work without loss of pay to attend agreed to critical incident support, or be paid at the applicable rate of pay. Employee participation in critical incident support is voluntary.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 ampm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by deleting the following:

• Appendix D.I MOA RE: Psychological Health and Safety in the Health Care Workplace and adding the following:

ARTICLE 32.0X - Psychological Health & Safety

The Employer and the Union agree to cooperate in the promotion of psychologically healthy and safe working conditions and practices.

The Health Authorities and Providence Health Care (PHC) shall continue their implementation of the Canadian Standards Association (CSA) Psychological Health and Safety Standard in all of their workplaces.

Health Authorities and Providence Health Care shall regularly communicate their implementation of the Psychological Health & Safety Standard to their employees in Employer worksites.

The Employer and Union agree that the thirteen (13) factors, as defined in the CSA Psychological Health and Safety Standard are:

- Organizational Culture
- Psychological and Social Support
- Clear Leadership & Expectations
- Civility & Respect
- Psychological Demands
- Growth & Development
- Recognition & Reward
- Involvement & Influence
- Workload Management
- Engagement
- Balance
- Psychological Protection
- Protection of Physical Safety

The Employer and Union agree that each of these factors must be assessed and, where necessary,

improved in an ongoing manner in order to establish and maintain psychologically safe workplaces.

The Employer and Union recognize the role of Joint Occupational Health and Safety committees (JOHSC) in supporting psychologically healthy and safe workplaces. Therefore the JOHSC shall be engaged in local level identification of psychological health and safety hazards, promotion of psychologically healthy and safe workplaces, participate in related inspections and investigations and make recommendations for improving psychological health and safety in the workplace.

Within I20 days of ratification, the Employer and Union agree to request that the BC Health Care Occupational Health and Safety Society (currently known as SWITCH BC) develop standardized resources to support local JOHSC to fulfill their duties and functions to support psychologically healthy and safe workplaces.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 32 – Occupational Health and Safety Program

32.01 - Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee

The Employer and the Union recognize the role of the Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee in promoting a safe and healthful workplace.

The improved effectiveness, streamlined and singular report mechanisms of the Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committee ("JOHSC") will have benefit to overall workplace safety and well-being, including improved claims management.

The Employer shall establish a JOHSC at all worksites as determined by the Workers Compensation Act. The Employer will also consider requests from the Union to establish either a JOHSC where there are less than twenty (20) employees or assign the worksite to an existing JOHSC.

The Employer will consult with the Union Representative when making a proposal to WorkSafeBC for a variation to JOHSC requirements under the Workers Compensation Act and Occupational Health and Safety Regulation.

Each JOHSC shall govern itself in accordance with the provisions of the *Workers Compensation Act* and applicable Occupational Health and Safety Regulations and shall be comprised of equal representation from the Employer and the Union, with each party appointing its own Committee JOHSC Members. JOHSC Members appointed by the Union shall be chosen by the Union membership or appointed by the Union.

NBA JOHSC Members (or alternates) will be provided time during work that is reasonably necessary to prepare for JOHSC meetings, and shall be released from their regular duties to attend JOHSC meetings, and perform related duties and functions as set out in Section 130 of the Workers Compensation Act. The Employer will reassign the work that would otherwise have been performed by the NBA JOHSC Member. This may include replacement of the employee.

The Joint Provincial Occupational Health and Safety and Violence Prevention Committee will meet within sixty (60) days of ratification to agree upon a universal format for JOHSC minutes. Once agreed, all minutes of the JOHSC will be sent to the Union in a timely manner.

Each party agrees to provide or cause to be provided to their respective As outlined in the Workers Compensation Act, JOHSC Members shall be provided with adequate training and orientation regarding the duties and responsibilities of Committee JOHSC Members to allow the Members to fulfil those duties competently. Such training and orientation shall take place within six (6) months of the Member joining the JOHSC.

Where the JOHSC is conducting an incident investigation involving an NBA member, the designated NBA JOHSC Member (or alternate) shall be released from their regular duties to participate in the investigation. The Employer will reassign the work that would have otherwise

been performed by the NBA JOHSC Member for the duration of the investigation. This may include replacement of the employee. Where an investigation is scheduled outside the NBA JOHSC Member's regular hours, the Member will be paid at the applicable rate of pay.

Within sixty (60) days of ratification, the parties agree to jointly <u>request that SWITCH BC</u> <u>develop a universal format for JOHSC minutes and</u> pursue the development of OH&S curriculum <u>at the OHSVPC</u> to improve JOHSC effectiveness <u>within twelve (12) months of ratification.</u>

Once per month, the Employer will make available to the Union, in electronic format, the minutes of each JOHSC meeting, including but not limited to appendices, decisions, recommendations, reports, data and investigations reviewed.

The JOHSC may request from the Employer information necessary to complete its duties and functions of the JOHSC outlined in the Workers Compensation Act. This information may include but is not limited to, incident and injury reports, safety policies, procedures and practices, violence risk assessments, security incident reports and regulatory inspections and orders related to employee occupational health and safety. Such information will be provided in a timely manner and will not be unreasonably withheld.

Every six (6) months, the Employer shall provide to the Union, in electronic format, the following data:

- a list of all active Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committees;
- the areas that each committee is responsible for (such as facility, units or programs);
- where and when each committee meets;
- the names, positions, and committee appointment dates for all NBA members;
- the date each member received education as per the OHS Regulation and additional education referred to in the Collective Agreement or provided by the employer relating to occupational health and safety.

| Agreed to this | _ day of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|----------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Ser | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | l Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) **Collective Agreement**

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 32 – Occupational Health and Safety Program

32.03 - Safe Workplace

- (A) The Employer and employees recognize the need for a safe and healthful workplace and agree to take appropriate measures in order that risks of incidents, and/or occupational disease, and violence are reduced and/or eliminated. Employers will take all reasonable steps to eliminate, reduce and/or minimize threats to the safety of employees.
- (B) An employee performing a visit to clients in the community may request to be accompanied by a member of the interdisciplinary team or other appropriate personnel for the initial home visit where the pre-screen assessment identifies a risk of violence or other hazard or where a pre-screen has not been completed. Employees shall have the right to request backup to attend for any subsequent home visits where there is reasonable cause to expect a violent situation and will have access to appropriate communication equipment.
- When the Employer is aware that a patient/resident/client has a history of violent behaviour, the Employer shall make such information available to the employee. Upon admission or transfer the Employer will make every reasonable effort to identify the potential for aggressive behaviour. In-services and/or instruction in caring for the violent patient will be provided by the Employer.
- Critical incident support shall be provided to employees who have suffered a workrelated, traumatic incident including, but not limited to, violence, death of a colleague or an unusual or unexpected patient death or a series of such incidents. Appropriate resources will be made available as soon as possible following the incident. Employees accessing support will be given time off from work without loss of pay to attend agreed to critical incident support, or be paid at the applicable rate of pay.
- It is recognized that health care workers are vulnerable to violence because they provide (D) care directly to members of the public across all settings, including hospitals, care homes and in the community. The Employer will establish procedures and policies to minimize or eliminate the risk of workplace violence.
- The Employer will provide orientation and/or in-service which is necessary for the safe performance of work including universal precautions, the safe use of equipment, safe techniques for lifting and supporting patients/residents/clients, and the safe handling of materials and products. Nurses who are newly hired to work in community mental health or in a job that primarily provides services to a similar client population shall also be provided with orientation, job shadowing, and/or in-service where necessary for a minimum period of three (3) weeks including:

59

- job shadowing with an experienced nurse,
- familiarization with available patient resources,
- development of environmental assessment skills,
- orientation with client population,
- development of appropriate behavioral care plans, and
- policies for safe client visits.

The Employer will make readily available ongoing and updated information, manuals, online tools and procedures for these purposes. The Employer will provide appropriate safety clothing and equipment.

(F) In keeping with the MOU Workplace Violence Prevention between HEABC, NBA and the MOH, Health Authorities and Providence Health Care and all Affiliate Employers agree to provide employees with violence prevention training based on the program that was originally designed by the Provincial Violence Prevention Steering Committee. The Employer will determine the level of training required for each employee through review of the worksite violence risk assessment for each area that the employee works in. When an employee works in their position(s) in multiple units or worksites, they will be trained in violence prevention to the required level of their assigned role on any of those units or worksites. The Employer will regularly provide Joint Occupational Health and Safety Committees (JOHSC) with the worksite violence prevention training rates. The Employer will provide the appropriate level of refresher training to all employees on an annual basis. Where operational requirements allow, these modules may be completed while at work. The modules of the program that are applicable to the employee according to the program will be considered a compulsory in-service under Article 35.02.

The Employer will provide the necessary training to an employee in a new position as outlined in the Provincial Violence Prevention Committee's guidelines.

(G) The Employer will provide OHS supervisory training to any nurse whose job duties include supervision and/or direction and annual refresher training. This training will be considered a compulsory in-service in accordance with Article 35.02.

Within three (3) months of ratification, each Employer will develop an action plan for training development, which must be implemented within one (1) year of ratification.

The Employer will provide the necessary training to employees who are commencing work in a supervisory role.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am pm |
|--|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 33 – Leave – Compassionate

33.01 Application

Compassionate leave of absence with pay shall be granted, upon request, to regular employees in the event of a death of a spouse (including common law), child, step-child, foster child, parent (or alternatively step-parent or foster parent), brother, sister, (or alternatively step-brother or step-sister), sibling, step-sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law parent-in-law, sibling-in-law, parent's sibling or their spouse, grandparents, grandchild, legal guardian and any person who lives with an employee as a member of the employee's family a relative permanently residing in the employee's household or with whom the employee permanently resides.

33.02 Leave - With Pay

Compassionate leave of absence with pay shall be granted for five (5) three (3) work days.

Up to two (2) additional days with pay shall be granted for travelling time when this is warranted in the judgement of the Employer.

33.03 Leave - Without Pay

Additional leave without pay may be requested by an employee. The Employer shall make every effort to grant additional compassionate leave of absence without pay. (Reference Article 43 Leave – Special.)

| Agreed to this 28th | day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am pm | |
|---|--------------|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the H | EABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executiv Negotiations & Member S | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 37.04 – Domestic and Sexual Violence Leave

37.04 Domestic and Sexual Violence Leave

- (A) If an employee or eligible person as defined in the Employment Standards Act experiences domestic or sexual violence, then in each calendar year an employee is entitled to a leave as follows:
 - (1) Up to five (5) days of paid leave (inclusive of the paid leave in the Employment Standards Act) taken in one or more blocks of time;
 - (2) Up to five (5) days of unpaid leave taken in one or more blocks of time; and
 - (3) Up to fifteen (15) weeks of additional unpaid leave taken in one block of time or, with the Employer's agreement, more than one block of time.
- (B) An employee's entitlement to leave under this Article is in addition to any entitlement to leave under other articles of the collective agreement.
- (C) An employee granted leave under this Article shall be entitled to benefits in accordance with Article 37.01. For the balance of the leave taken pursuant to this Article, the service of an employee shall be considered continuous for the purpose of any pension, medical or other plan beneficial to the employee, and the employer shall continue to make payment to the plans in the same manner as if the employee was not absent.
- (D) Casual employees will not be required to be available for shifts as outlined above.
- (E) In the event that legislation enacts provisions with a greater entitlement to maximum weeks of leave related to domestic or sexual violence, that legislation provision shall prevail.

The Employer shall grant an unpaid leave to a maximum of seventeen (17) weeks for reasons related to domestic or sexual violence.

In the event that legislation enacts provisions with a greater entitlement to maximum weeks of leave related to domestic or sexual violence, that legislation provision shall prevail.

An employee granted leave under this Article shall be entitled to benefits in accordance with Article 37.01 (Leave — General). For the balance of the leave taken pursuant to this Article, the service of an employee shall be considered continuous for the purpose of any pension, medical or other plan beneficial to the employee, and the employer shall continue to make payment to the plans in the same manner as if the employee was not absent.

Casual employees shall not be required to be available for shifts for up to seventeen (17) weeks if the employee's unavailability is in relation to domestic or sexual violence.

| 2023, at 4:00 ampm |
|--|
| Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |
| |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

This proposal is without prejudice or precedent to the Employer's position in any litigation.

All changes to Article 39 and Article 11.04(G)(2) are effective April 1, 2023.

ARTICLE 39 – Leave – Paid Holidays

39.01 Paid Holiday Entitlement

Each regular employee shall receive a day off, on or for the following paid holidays and any other general holiday proclaimed by the Federal or Provincial Government:

New Year's Day Labour Day

B.C Family Day National Day for Truth and Reconciliation

Good Friday Easter Monday
Thanksgiving Day Remembrance Day
Victoria Day (Queen's Birthday) Christmas Day
Canada Day Boxing Day

British Columbia Day

39.02 Payment for Paid Holidays

- (A) A regular full-time employee shall receive regular pay for each day off for the aforementioned paid holidays.
- (B) A regular part-time employee shall receive the following pay for the aforementioned paid holidays:

Days paid* per calendar year x <u>regular pay x thirteen twelve (132)</u> (excluding overtime) 261

(Reference Article 37 – Leave – General.)

(C) A casual employee receives paid holiday pay as part of pay in lieu of benefits. Reference Article 11.04(G)(2).

39.03 Work on a Paid Holiday

(A) Regular Employee

(I) A regular employee required to work New Year's Day, B.C. Family Day, Easter Monday, Victoria Day, Canada Day, B.C. Day, National Day for Truth and Reconciliation, Thanksgiving Day, Remembrance Day, and

^{*} Includes leave without pay up to twenty (20) work days.

Boxing Day shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times for the first 7.5 hours work in the day, provided that Articles 27.05, 29.04, and 39.04 are not applicable, and shall receive another day off with pay as a paid holiday. The rate of two (2) times shall be paid for a shift when one-half (1/2) or more than one-half (1/2) of the hours worked fall within 0001 hours and 2400 hours on the named day. In such cases the rate of two (2) times shall be paid for the total hours worked.

(2) Super Stats

Employees who are required to work on Christmas Day, Labour Day or Good Friday, shall be paid at the rate of two and one-half (2.5) times for the first 7.5 hours worked and shall receive another day off with pay as a paid holiday. The rate of two and one-half (2.5) times shall be paid for the full shift when one-half (1/2) or more than one-half (1/2) of the hours worked fall within 0001 and 2400 hours on the named day. In such cases, the rate of two and one-half (2.5) times shall be paid for the total hours worked.

(B) Casual Employee

A casual employee who works on a paid holiday listed in Article 39.03 (A)(I) shall be paid two (2) times their rate of pay. A casual employee who works on a paid holiday listed in Article 39.03(A)(2), shall be paid of two and one-half (2.5) times their rate of pay.

39.04 Premium Rates of Pay

(A) Overtime

Overtime at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times the appropriate stat holiday rate shall be paid to an employee for all hours of overtime worked on the paid holiday. (Reference Article 27.05 – Overtime Pay Calculation.)

(B) Call-Back

Call-back pay at the rate of one and one-half times (1.5) the appropriate stat holiday rate shall be paid to an employee for all hours called back to work on the paid holiday, with a minimum of two (2) hours' pay at the appropriate rate for each separate call-back. (Reference Article 29.04(B) - Call-Back on a Paid Holiday.)

(C) Three Different Shifts Worked in Any Seven Consecutive Days

If a regular full-time employee is scheduled to work three (3) different shifts in any seven (7) consecutive day period and if the employee works on one of the paid holidays listed in Article 39.01 as the third shift change, then unless this arrangement is requested by the employee, the employee shall be paid one and one-half (1.5) times the appropriate stat holiday rate for all hours worked on the paid holiday.

(D) Changes in Schedule with Insufficient Notice

Should the Employer change the work schedule without fourteen (14) calendar days advance notice and as a consequence the regular employee is required to work on the paid holiday, then the employee shall be paid the appropriate overtime rate for all hours worked and receive another day off with pay as a rescheduled paid holiday.

39.05 Paid Holiday Coinciding with a Rest Day

Where a paid holiday falls on the regular employee's day off, the employee shall receive an additional day off with pay.

39.06 Paid Holiday Coinciding with a Vacation

Where a paid holiday falls within a regular employee's vacation, the employee shall receive an additional day off with pay.

39.07 Scheduling of Paid Holidays

(A) Application

Subject to operational requirements reasonably applied, paid holidays whenever possible shall be scheduled for a time which is mutually agreeable to the Employer and the employee concerned.

(B) Christmas Day or New Year's Day

Where the worksite operates on Christmas Day and New Year's Day, a regular employee shall receive either Christmas Day or New Year's Day off unless the employee requests to work both days and this is agreed to by the Employer.

(C) Sick Leave

Where a regular employee has been on sick leave immediately prior to the employee's scheduled paid holiday and immediately following such scheduled paid holiday, then the scheduled paid holiday shall become a day to which sick leave credits shall be applied and the day shall be rescheduled.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 43.01 – Special Leave

43.01 Special Leave

(A) Accumulation

An employee shall earn special leave credits with pay up to a maximum of twenty (20) days at the rate of one-half (0.5) day every four (4) weeks. Special leave shall be granted to a maximum of the accumulated leave at the time the special leave is taken.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, employees with accumulated special leave credits in excess of one hundred and fifty (150) hours (20 days X 7.5 hours) as of the first pay period following June 5, 2006, shall retain the accumulated balance to their credit. Where this accumulated credit exceeds one hundred and fifty (150) hours, no further credit shall be earned until the accumulated balance is reduced below one hundred and fifty (150) hours, in which event the accumulation of special leave credits shall be reinstated, but the accumulated balance shall not again exceed one hundred fifty (150) hours.

(B) Application

Special leave shall be granted as follows:

- marriage leave five (5) days;
- (2) parental leave five (5) days;
- (3) to provide care to an immediate family member who has a serious illness up to two (2) days at one time;
- (4) to assist an immediate family member who has a serious or potentially lifethreatening illness with obtaining health education related to the serious or potentially life-threatening illness up to one (1) working day per calendar year;
- (5) leave of one (1) day may be added to three (3) five (5) days compassionate leave;
- (6) leave of one (1) day may be taken for travel associated with compassionate leave;
- (7) leave of up to three (3) days for absences resulting from the employee or employee's dependent child having experienced domestic or sexual violence.

| Agreed to this | _day of | _ 2023, at | _ am/pm |
|---|---------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | вС | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive D Negotiations & Member Serv | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | d Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 43.02 – Personal Leave

The parties agree to create a leave structure that better reflects the realities of the lives of working nurses.

Effective April 1, 2020 - one (1) personal leave day per calendar year;

Effective April 1, 2021 January 1, 2023 and on each January 1 thereafter – all regular full-time and part-time employees will receive two (2) personal leave days per calendar year.

Such personal days are subject to operational requirements and cannot be attached to other leaves of absence, including vacation and paid statutory holidays.

The parties agree to the joint interpretation on personal leave signed June 30, 2021 (see APX XX – MOA re Article 43.02 Personal Leave).

The parties agree to meet prior to April 1, 2020 to discuss a joint interpretation regarding the granting of personal leave.

| Agreed to this 30th day of March | 2023, at 10:30 ampm |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator |

Memorandum of Agreement - Without Prejudice or Precedent

Article 43.02 Personal Leave

Health Employers Association of BC (HEABC)

And:

Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA)

(together, the "Parties")

WHEREAS:

During negotiations for the 2019 - 2022 NBA Provincial Collective Agreement, the parties agreed to the creation of a leave structure that better reflects the realities of the lives of working nurses;

The Parties agreed to develop a joint interpretation regarding the granting of personal leave but have been unable to reach agreement;

THEREFORE the Parties agree on a without prejudice or precedent basis to administer Personal Leave during the term of this agreement, as follows:

Entitlement

- 1. Except as described in ss. 5, 6, 12 and 14 below, personal leave days will be awarded as follows:
 - a. On April I, 2020, eligible regular nurses will receive one (I) personal leave day for April I, 2020 to March 31, 2021;
 - b. On April 1, 2021, eligible regular nurses will receive two (2) personal leave days for the remainder of the 2021 calendar year;
 - c. On January 1, 2022, eligible regular nurses will receive two (2) personal leave days for that calendar year.
- 2. Personal leave days, once approved, cannot be converted to another type of paid or unpaid leave; nor can they be applied for retroactively. Except for Short Notice Leaves, personal leave days cannot be attached to other leaves of absence, such as vacation or paid statutory holidays. Once awarded, the number of personal leave days an eligible nurse receives for that calendar year will not be revised for any reason, including to reflect any changes to an individual's FTE or leave status over the course of the calendar year.
- 3. Probationary nurses are not entitled to personal leave days, except for those eligible nurses who are on probation but have ported their personal leave days in accordance with s. 15 of this agreement.

Pro-ration

- 4. A personal leave day is based on a 7.5 hour standard day. The number of hours attributed to a personal leave day will not be prorated based on the eligible regular nurse's FTE.
- 5. Post-probationary eligible regular nurses who start in either a permanent or temporary regular position on or before June 30th, will receive two (2) personal leave days for that calendar year.
- 6. Post-probationary eligible regular nurses who start in either a permanent or temporary regular position on or after July 1st will receive one (1) personal leave day for that calendar year.

Personal Leave Day

- 7. An employee is not entitled to take more personal leave days than they are allocated. Personal leave shall not be taken on more than two (2) shifts per calendar year.
- 8. An employee may combine their personal leave days to apply both of them to a single shift. For example, a 0.4 FTE eligible regular nurse on extended shifts (who received two (2) personal leave days of 7.5 hours each), could either apply 11 hours to the first day and 4 hours to the second personal leave day, or could apply each day (7.5 hours each) to two separate shifts.
- 9. An employee may take vacation, banked overtime, or an unpaid leave of absence to cover any remaining shift hours, where the shift length exceeds the total (combined, if applicable) length of the personal leave day or days taken.

Casual Employees

- 10. Casual employees are not entitled to personal leave days.
- 11. An employee who has their status temporarily changed from casual to regular pursuant to Article 17.02 or 17.03 ("Temporarily Appointed Casuals"), and whose appointment is at least six (6) consecutive months in length, is entitled to personal leave days. The entitlement is as described in ss. 5 and 6 above. No more than two (2) personal leave days may be awarded to an individual in a calendar year. Such days must be scheduled and taken while the employee remains in the temporary position. When a Temporarily Appointed Casual's status changes back from regular to casual, any personal leave not taken will remain available to the employee should the employee return to regular status later in the same calendar year, and if it remains not taken, will be paid out at straight time at the end of the year in accordance with s. 16 below.
- 12. For example, a Temporarily Appointed Casual who starts in an eighteen (18) month 0.4 FTE temporary appointment on April 15th will receive on April 15th two (2) personal leave days (7.5 hours each) for that calendar year, which may be utilized on up to two (2) shifts for that calendar year. Any personal leave not taken by the end of that calendar year will be paid out at straight time. They will then receive two (2) personal leave days on January 1st of the following calendar year.

Leaves of Absence

13. Notwithstanding the rest of this paragraph, employees on a leave of absence as of January Ist will not be eligible for or be awarded personal leave days for that calendar year. Employees who were otherwise eligible but who were on a leave of absence as of January Ist, and who return from that leave of absence within the first six months of the calendar year will receive upon their return the usual two (2) personal leave days for that calendar year. Employees who were otherwise eligible but who were on a leave of absence as of January Ist, and who return from that leave of absence in the latter six months of the calendar year, will receive one (1) personal leave day for that calendar year. No more than two (2) personal leave days may be awarded to an individual in a calendar year. Personal Leave days will not be awarded more than once during the year. Any unused personal leave days will be paid out at the end of the year in accordance with below.

14. For example:

- a. An eligible regular nurse who returns on April Ist from a six (6) month leave of absence to a 0.6 FTE regular position will receive two (2) personal leave days (7.5 hours each) for that calendar year.
- b. An eligible regular nurse who returns on October 1st from a one (1) year leave of absence to a 0.7 FTE regular position will receive one (1) personal day (7.5 hours) for that calendar year.
- c. An eligible regular nurse in a 0.6 FTE regular position receives two (2) personal days (7.5 hours each) on January Ist. On June Ist, they have not taken any personal leave days and go off on a three (3) month leave of absence, returning on August Ist. On their return, they will have two (2) personal days remaining for that calendar year.
- d. An eligible regular nurse in a 0.6 FTE regular position receives two (2) personal days (7.5 hours each) on January Ist. On February Ist, they use a personal leave day. On March Ist, they take a nine (9) month leave of absence, returning on December Ist. On their return, they still have one (1) personal day remaining for that calendar year.
- e. An eligible regular nurse in a 0.5 FTE regular position receives two (2) personal days (7.5 hours each) on January Ist. On April Ist they take one (1) personal leave day. On October I5th, they take a one year leave of absence. They will be paid out at straight time for the one remaining personal day at the end of the calendar year. They return to their position on October I5th of the next calendar year at which time they will receive one (1) personal leave day for that calendar year.

Porting

15. Personal leave day(s) are portable as per Article 51 to another employer covered by the NBA Collective Agreement. If, in the same calendar year, a nurse used personal leave days at the sending Employer, the nurse will not be granted additional personal leave days at the receiving Employer for the same calendar year.

Unused Days Paid Out

- 16. Personal leave may not be banked or carried over to the next calendar year. Any personal leave not scheduled and taken by December 31st of each year will be paid out at straight time hourly rates.
- 17. Personal leave days are not paid out upon termination or resignation of employment.

Operational Requirements

- 18. Personal leave is not intended to exacerbate staffing shortages and therefore requests are normally subject to operational requirements. The parties have agreed that different considerations should be given to personal leave entitlement depending on whether the employee must address an urgent and unanticipated matter.
- 19. An employee may take personal leave with less than 24 hours notice before the start of the shift only in circumstances where it is necessary to address an urgent and unanticipated matter (a "Short Notice Leave"). An urgent and unanticipated matter is something that the employee could not have reasonably anticipated, must be dealt with immediately and cannot wait for the employee to complete their scheduled shift. For example, a water line breaks suddenly at the employee's home. Short Notice Leaves will not be subject to operational requirements and may be attached to other leaves of absence, including vacation and paid holidays. The employer may require an employee seeking a Short Notice Leave to establish that it was used to address an urgent and unanticipated matter.
- 20. All other requests for personal leave must be provided 24 hours or more in advance of the start of the shift (an "Advance Notice Leave"), and, unless the employee can establish that the request arose due to an urgent and unanticipated matter, are subject to operational requirements and may be declined if attached to other leaves of absence, including vacation and paid holidays. The employer may require an employee seeking an Advance Notice Leave for an urgent and unanticipated matter to establish in advance that it will be used to address an urgent and unanticipated matter and that it could not be addressed during off duty hours. The parties acknowledge that Advance Notice Leaves for urgent and unanticipated matters are exceptional, and that most urgent and unanticipated matters will occur less than 24 hours before the start of the shift.
- 21. In all cases, where a personal leave day is requested, the employee must follow the employer's processes for absence notification and shall get prior approval from their manager in all cases except for those Short Notice Leaves where it not possible to do so.

Work on a Personal Leave Day

22. Where an employee voluntarily accepts work during scheduled personal leave, the scheduled personal leave will be considered taken and will be paid out at straight time hourly rates. The employee will be entitled to overtime at the rate of double the employee's regular rate of pay for the hours they work during the scheduled personal leave.

Resolution of All Grievances and Retroactivity

- 23. Employers will implement for eligible nurses non-prorated personal leave days in accordance with this agreement and, except for those nurses described in ss. 24 and 25 below, will determine the one-time pay-out amounts described below in s. 26 for eligible nurses by September 30, 2021. NBA agrees it will not file any grievances related to Article 43.02 Personal Leave during the period of July 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021. The union will not be prejudiced by this moratorium with respect to filing within the prescribed timelines any Personal Leave grievances arising during this timeframe.
- 24. Temporarily Appointed Casuals who have started in a temporary appointment of at least six (6) consecutive months in length on or after April 1, 2020 and prior to or on June 30, 2021, must contact their employer's payroll department by no later than November 15, 2021 to claim, and if applicable, be eligible for, any pay out entitlements pursuant to this agreement. The employer will verify any such claim and if determined to be eligible, will, as applicable, pay out personal leave days that would have been awarded during the 2020 calendar year and/or award personal leave days for the remainder of the 2021 calendar year in accordance with this agreement.
- 25. Eligible nurses who have resigned, terminated their employment, or had their employment terminated by the employer after April 1, 2020 and prior to or on June 30, 2021, must contact their employer's payroll department by no later than November 15, 2021 to claim, and if applicable, be eligible for, any pay out entitlements pursuant to this agreement. The employer will verify any such claim and if determined to be eligible, will pay out the eligible nurse prior to the end of the 2021 calendar year.

26. On a one time basis:

- a. any 2020 personal leave days which were awarded and unused will be paid out to that nurse, without prorating for FTE, at straight time hourly rates on the first pay period after October I, 2021; and
- b. the reduced portion of any 2020 and 2021 personal leave days prorated for FTE and taken by an eligible nurse prior to or on September 30, 2021, will be paid out to that nurse at straight time hourly rates on the first pay period after October 1, 2021.
- 27. In consideration of these payments, the NBA will permanently withdraw all grievances related to Article 43.02 Personal Leave filed or arising prior to or on June 30, 2021, on a without prejudice basis to the positions of the Parties regarding the interpretation and/or application of Article 43.02 Personal Leave.

Term

28. This agreement will expire on December 31, 2022.

Without Prejudice or Precedent

| positions regarding the interpretation and/or application | n of Article 43.02 Personal Leave. |
|---|------------------------------------|
| This agreement is dated for reference June 30, 2021. | |
| Michael McMillan, HEABC | Cody Hedman, NBA |

29. This agreement is without prejudice or precedent to the Parties, including but not limited to their

ADDENDUM to Memorandum of Agreement – Article 43.02 Personal Leave

| _ | | | | | | | |
|---|----|----|----|---|---|---|---|
| В | Δ. | t٦ | A/ | Δ | Δ | n | • |
| u | C | Ŀ | 77 | c | C | | • |

Health Employers Association of BC (HEABC)

And:

Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA) (together, the "Parties")

WHEREAS:

- A. During negotiations for a tentative agreement for the 2022 2025 NBA Provincial Collective Agreement, the parties agreed, among other things, that:
 - i. personal leave days may now be attached to other leaves of absence, including vacation and paid statutory holidays; and
 - ii. the parties' Memorandum of Agreement Without Prejudice or Precedent Article 43.02 Personal Leave, dated June 30, 2021 (the "Personal Leave MOA"), as amended to the change reflect above, will now serve as the Parties' joint interpretation for the granting of personal leave.

THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

 Effective the date of ratification of the parties' Tentative Agreement, dated March 31, 2023, for the 2022-2025 Nurses' Provincial Collective Agreement, the Personal Leave MOA is amended as follows:

Joint Interpretation

Article 43.02 Personal Leave

Between:

Health Employers Association of BC (HEABC)

And:

Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA) (together, the "Parties")

WHEREAS:

During negotiations for the 2019 - 2022 NBA Provincial Collective Agreement, the parties agreed to the creation of a leave structure that better reflects the realities of the lives of working nurses;

The Parties have agreed during negotiations for the 2022-25 NBA Provincial Collective Agreement that this Memorandum of Agreement reflects the Parties' agreement on a joint interpretation for the granting of personal leave.

THEREFORE the Parties agree to administer Personal Leave as follows:

- I. Personal leave days, once approved, cannot be converted to another type of paid or unpaid leave; nor can they be applied for retroactively. Once awarded, the number of personal leave days an eligible nurse receives for that calendar year will not be revised for any reason, including to reflect any changes to an individual's FTE or leave status over the course of the calendar year.
- 2. An employee may take personal leave with less than 24 hours notice before the start of the shift only in circumstances where it is necessary to address an urgent and unanticipated matter (a "Short Notice Leave"). An urgent and unanticipated matter is something that the employee could not have reasonably anticipated, must be dealt with immediately and cannot wait for the employee to complete their scheduled shift. For example, a water line breaks suddenly at the employee's home. Short Notice Leaves will not be subject to operational requirements. The employer may require an employee seeking a Short Notice Leave to establish that it was used to address an urgent and unanticipated matter.
- 3. All other requests for personal leave must be provided 24 hours or more in advance of the start of the shift (an "Advance Notice Leave"), and, unless the employee can establish that the request arose due to an urgent and unanticipated matter, are subject to operational. The employer may require an employee seeking an Advance

Notice Leave for an urgent and unanticipated matter to establish in advance that it will be used to address an urgent and unanticipated matter and that it could not be addressed during off duty hours. The Parties acknowledge that Advance Notice Leaves for urgent and unanticipated matters are exceptional, and that most urgent and unanticipated matters will occur less than 24 hours before the start of the shift.

4. The Personal Leave MOA otherwise remains unchanged and in full force and effect.

This Addendum is dated for reference April 1, 2023.

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 54 – Isolation Travel Allowance

Effective April 1, 2023, Eemployees shall be paid a lump sum isolation <u>travel</u> allowance of <u>one hundred and fifty dollars (\$150)</u> seventy-four dollars (\$74.00) per month provided that:

- (i) they are employed by employers who are situated in the locations listed below; and
- (ii) they work in the locations listed below.

| Alert Bay | Fort Nelson | New Denver |
|------------------------|----------------|---------------|
| Alexis Creek | Fort St. James | Port Alice |
| Anaham | Fort St. John | Port Hardy |
| Atlin | Fraser Lake | Port McNeil |
| Bamfield | Gold River | Pouce Coupe |
| Bella Bella (Waglisla) | Hazelton | Prince Rupert |
| | | |

Bella Coola Houston Queen Charlotte City

Daajing Giids

Blue River Hudson Hope Smithers Burns Lake Kaslo Sparwood Stewart Chetwynd Kitimat Dawson Creek **Tahsis** Kyoquot Dease Lake Lillooet Tatla Lake MacKenzie Terrace Edgewood Elk Valley Masset Tofino

Elkford McBride Tumbler Ridge Fernie Nakusp Valemount

Vanderhoof

The parties will meet to discuss what principles might be developed for eligibility on this list and may make joint recommendations with respect to the modernization of this list (e.g. removing or adding certain communities) in advance of the next round of collective bargaining.

| Agreed to this 30th | day of March | 2023, at <u>10:30</u> | am p m |
|---------------------------|--------------|-----------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the H | EABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | e Director. | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and | Chief |
| Negotiations & Member S | | Negotiator | Cinci |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 57.05 – Registration

All changes to Article 57.05 are to be applied to the 2023 registration year and are contingent on parties agreement to the Deletions proposal.

The parties will undertake a transition process for the 2023 registration year where BCNU will return to HEABC any monies received under Appendix GG so that full reimbursement can provided to nurses by the Employer.

57.05 Registration

- (A) To practice as a nurse, an employee must be authorized to do so under the provisions of the *Health Professions* and *Occupations* Act and the respective Regulations. Such authorization must be in effect on or by the applicable annual registration date of the respective provincial regulatory body.
- (B) The Employer will reimburse all nurses for the cost of the British Columbia College of Nurses and Midwives (BCCNM) registration fee. This will not be prorated based on the eligible nurses' FTE.
- (B)(C) At the Employer's request, a nurse is required to confirm their authorization to practice by presentation of their registration card, license, permit or other proof acceptable to the Employer.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | _ am/pm |
|---|--------|--|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HE | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member S | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | d Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 57 – General Conditions

The parties agree that all outstanding grievances will be resolved in accordance with this Article.

57.06 Business Allowance

Effective April 1, 2023, aAll regular employees employed in community-based services will receive one hundred and fifty (\$150) fifty dollars (\$50.00) per month as business allowance.

For the purposes of this article, community-based services means a program which provides other than twenty-four (24) hours per day in-patient or residential care services and will include such services as home support, home health, long-term care case management, population and public health, primary care, and community mental health.

Community-based services does not include clinic type services which are aligned with acute care services such as hospital outpatient clinics.

| Agreed to this <u>30th</u> day of <u>N</u> | arch 2023, at 10:30 ampm |
|---|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 61 – Effective and Terminating Dates

- (A) This Agreement shall be effective from April 1, 20192022 and shall remain in force and be binding upon the <u>parties</u> until March 31, 20222025 and thereafter until a new Agreement has been consummated.
 - Employers newly certified during the term of this Agreement and who are added to the Appendix of the Consolidated certification with the Union shall negotiate the application of the terms of this Agreement with effective dates as agreed upon between the parties.
- (B) The operation of Subsection 2 of Section 50 of the Labour Relations Code of British Columbia (or any succeeding Acts) is specifically excluded from this Agreement.
- (C) All terms of this Agreement shall come into effect at 0001 hours on the dates stipulated within the Agreement.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am/pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 63 – Wage Schedules

A.I - General Wage Increases

Wage rates for all employees covered by the HEABC-NBA Provincial Collective Agreement who are on the <u>Level 1</u>, <u>Level 2</u>, <u>Level 3</u>, <u>Level 4</u>, <u>Level 5</u> or <u>Level 6</u> wages <u>scales</u> <u>schedules</u> will increase <u>starting the first pay period</u> after the following dates and at the indicated rates:

| •— | - April 1, 2019 | 2.0% |
|----|----------------------------|-----------------|
| • | April I, 2020 | 2.0% |
| •— | - April I, 2021 | 2.0% |

Year I

- April 1, 2022: Increase rates of pay by an average of 3.82%.
 - o The average increase of 3.82% consists of a \$0.25 per hour and then a 3.24% general wage increase (GWI) to be applied across all increment steps.

Year 2

- April I, 2023: Increase rates of pay by 5.5%.
- An additional GWI of up to 1.25% in accordance with a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).

Year 3:

- April I, 2024: Increase rates of pay by 2%.
- An additional GWI of up to 1% in accordance with a Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA).

Note: Average increase information is an approximation based on data currently available.

The parties will adjust the wage schedules prior to printing.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | _ am/pm |
|--|--------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HE | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Se | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | d Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE 63 – Wage Schedules

A.2 - LPN-Specific Compensation

 Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2019, the hourly wage grid for all LPNs, will be adjusted to the following:

FAPRIL 2019 WAGE SCHEDULE

and the LPN shall be moved on to the next grid based on years of service. An LPN with six (6) or more years of service shall be placed on the grid as though they had six (6) years of service (i.e. Seventh Year), and the LPN will not progress to the next increment step until April 1st of the following calendar year.

FAPRIL 2020 WAGE SCHEDULE

FAPRIL 2021 WAGE SCHEDULE

2. Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2019, each LPN who is paid at the First Year or Second Year wage grids will receive a retention payment of \$0.25 for each straight-time hour paid (to a maximum of 1950 hours). Once an LPN progresses to the Third Year wage grid, the retention payment ceases.

The parties will embed LPN-specific compensation into the wage schedules prior to printing.

A.23 - Forensic Premium

Effective the first pay period after April 1, 2019, Forensic employees will be placed on the appropriate wage schedule general salary scale and shall be paid an additional hourly premium equal to:

- I. Forensic Nurse A (Maximum, Multi-level Security): 4% of the hourly rate specified for a Nurse Level 3, Eighth Year; and
- 2. Forensic Nurse B (Minimum, Medium Security, and Forensic Community Liaison Nurses (FCLNs)): 2% of the hourly rate specified for a Nurse Level 3, Fourth Year.

A.34 - General Wage Schedules Scales

[APRIL 2022 WAGE SCHEDULE]

[APRIL 2023 WAGE SCHEDULE]

[APRIL 2024 WAGE SCHEDULE]

The parties will revise wage schedules prior to printing.

A.5 - Grand-parented employees

The following scales apply to former community LPNs who were working for an employer as a community LPN and paid as per the formerly applicable CBA Schedule on May 20, 2016 (the "Grand-parented LPNs")

[APRIL 2019 WAGE SCHEDULE]

FAPRIL 2020 WAGE SCHEDULE

FAPRIL 2021 WAGE SCHEDULE

and for those grand-parented LPNs who, at any point, prior to the first pay period after April I, 2021 have greater than or equal to six (6) years of service, they will be moved from this scale to the appropriate LPN wage scale and be placed according to their years of service. For those grand-parented LPNs who remain on the scale for Grand-parented LPNs and who, on or after the first pay period following April I, 2021 have greater than seven (7) years of service, they will be moved to the Eighth Year step on the appropriate LPN wage scale.

A.46 - Special Wage Rate Schedules for Pine Free Clinic Nurses

[APRIL 2022 WAGE SCHEDULE]
[APRIL 2023 WAGE SCHEDULE]
[APRIL 2024 WAGE SCHEDULE]

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|------------------------|------------------|---------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of th | e HEABC | Signed on behalf of | f the NBA |
| James Suderman, Exec | cutive Director. | lim Gould, Interim | CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Memb | | Negotiator | |



Special Wage Rate Schedules for Pine Free Clinic Nurses

Effective April 1, 2022

| | First Year | Second Year | Third Year | Fourth Year | Fifth Year | Sixth Year | Seventh Year | Eighth Year | Ninth Year |
|--------------|------------|-------------|------------|-------------|------------|------------|-----------------|-------------|------------|
| Monthly Rate | 6479 | 6733 | 6985 | 7234 | 7490 | 7732 | 7973 | 8190 | 8464 |
| Hourly Rate | 39.87 | 41.43 | 42.98 | 44.52 | 46.09 | 47.58 | 49.06 | 50.40 | 52.09 |

Effective April 1, 2023

| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Increment Fourth Year | Increment Fifth Year | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh Year | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Monthly Rate | 6,916.00 | 7,187.00 | 7,456.00 | 7,710.63 | 7,965.75 | 8,220.88 | 8,476.00 | 8,731.13 | 8,986.25 | 9,241.38 |
| Hourly Rate | 42.56 | 44.23 | 45.88 | 47.45 | 49.02 | 50.59 | 52.16 | 53.73 | 55.30 | 56.87 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| IF V/20 250 II | 6,997.25 | 7,268.63 | 7,536.75 | 7,791.88 | 8,047.00 | 8,302.13 | 8,557.25 | 8,812.38 | 9,067.50 | 9,322.63 |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 43.06 | 44.73 | 46.38 | 47.95 | 49.52 | 51.09 | 52.66 | 54.23 | 55.80 | 57.37 |
| 20 V/20 000 I I | 7,119.13 | 7,390.50 | 7,658.63 | 7,913.75 | 8,168.88 | 8,424.00 | 8,679.13 | 8,934.25 | 9,189.38 | 9,444.50 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 43.81 | 45.48 | 47.13 | 48.70 | 50.27 | 51.84 | 53.41 | 54.98 | 56.55 | 58.12 |
| 25 V/40 750 Ll | 7,281.63 | 7,553.00 | 7,821.13 | 8,076.25 | 8,331.38 | 8,586.50 | 8,841.63 | 9,096.75 | 9,351.88 | 9,607.00 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 44.81 | 46.48 | 48.13 | 49.70 | 51.27 | 52.84 | 54.41 | 55.98 | 57.55 | 59.12 |
| 20 V/F0 F00 L1 | 7,484.75 | 7,756.13 | 8,024.25 | 8,279.38 | 8,534.50 | 8,789.63 | 9,044.75 | 9,299.88 | 9,555.00 | 9,810.13 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 46.06 | 47.73 | 49.38 | 50.95 | 52.52 | 54.09 | 55.66 | 57.23 | 58.80 | 60.37 |

Effective April 1, 2024

| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Increment Fourth Year | Increment Fifth Year | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh Year | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Monthly Rate | 7,054.00 | 7,331.00 | 7,605.00 | 7,865.00 | 8,125.00 | 8,385.00 | 8,646.00 | 8,906.00 | 9,166.00 | 9,426.00 |
| Hourly Rate | 43.41 | 45.11 | 46.80 | 48.40 | 50.00 | 51.60 | 53.21 | 54.81 | 56.41 | 58.01 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 7,137.00 | 7,413.25 | 7,687.88 | 7,947.88 | 8,207.88 | 8,467.88 | 8,729.50 | 8,989.50 | 9,249.50 | 9,509.50 |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 43.92 | 45.62 | 47.31 | 48.91 | 50.51 | 52.11 | 53.72 | 55.32 | 56.92 | 58.52 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 7,262.13 | 7,538.38 | 7,813.00 | 8,073.00 | 8,333.00 | 8,593.00 | 8,854.63 | 9,114.63 | 9,374.63 | 9,634.63 |
| 20 Tears/37,000 mours | 44.69 | 46.39 | 48.08 | 49.68 | 51.28 | 52.88 | 54.49 | 56.09 | 57.69 | 59.29 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 7,427.88 | 7,704.13 | 7,978.75 | 8,238.75 | 8,498.75 | 8,758.75 | 9,020.38 | 9,280.38 | 9,540.38 | 9,800.38 |
| 25 Tears/46,750 Hours | 45.71 | 47.41 | 49.10 | 50.70 | 52.30 | 53.90 | 55.51 | 57.11 | 58.71 | 60.31 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 7,635.88 | 7,912.13 | 8,186.75 | 8,446.75 | 8,706.75 | 8,966.75 | 9,228.38 | 9,488.38 | 9,748.38 | 10,008.38 |
| 30 Tears/36,300 Hours | 46.99 | 48.69 | 50.38 | 51.98 | 53.58 | 55.18 | 56.79 | 58.39 | 59.99 | 61.59 |

2024 Wage Grids may be revised to reflect any COLA adjustments, if applicable (please refer to Article 63 and MOA

Re: Cost of Living Adjustment.— Wage Schedules (A.I — General Wage Increases — Year 3) and MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment).

Memorandum of Agreement re: Year 15, 20, 25 and 30 Add Pay

| Between: | |
|----------|--|
|----------|--|

Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA)

And:

Health Employers Association of BC (HEABC)

(together, the "Parties")

Whereas:

- a. During negotiations to renew the 2019-2022 Provincial Collective Agreement, the parties agreed, among other things, to add Year 15, Year 20, Year 25 and Year 30 Increment Steps to the Nurse Wage Schedule effective April 1, 2023 (the "Year 15-30 Increment Steps"); and
- b. The parties' shared goal in establishing the Year 15-30 Increment Steps was to offer an incentive that would retain and recruit nurses to the BC healthcare system; and
- c. During the ratification process, some nurses identified circumstances in which the Year 15-30 Increment Steps would not recognize their prior contributions commensurate with their years of service, for example, due to promotion language contained in the Collective Agreement; and
- d. In order to address some of these concerns, the parties have agreed as described in this MOA to permanently replace the Year 15-30 Increment Steps with Year 15, 20, 25 and 30 "add pay" instead;

AND THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. The Year 15-30 Increment Steps will be permanently deleted from the Nurses' Provincial Collective Agreement, and will be replaced instead, effective April 1, 2023, with an additional hourly add pay of either \$0.50, \$1.25, \$2.25 or \$3.50 that applies in addition to a nurses' applicable Year 1 to 10 Increment step wage rate (together, the "Year 15-30 Add Pay").
- 2. Eligibility for the applicable rate of Year 15-30 Add Pay will be based on Article 13 Seniority as follows:
 - a. For regular nurses, achieving at least a 15, 20, 25 or 30 year seniority date with their employer, respectively, calculated pursuant to Article 13.01(A); or
 - b. For casual nurses, achieving at least 29,250, 39,000, 48,750 or 58,500 hours worked with their employer, respectively, calculated pursuant to Article 13.01(B).
 - c. For clarity, seniority date or hours for the purposes of Year 15-30 Add Pay for Licensed Practical Nurses (LPNs) who become Registered Nurses (RNs) or Registered Psychiatric Nurses (RPNs) will be determined based on the combination of both their LPN and

RN/RPN seniority dates or hours, as applicable, under the Nurses' Provincial Collective Agreement.

- 3. Notwithstanding para. 2, new nurses hired after October 1, 2023, who do not have existing seniority and who are otherwise eligible for employer recognition of relevant nursing experience for the purposes of annual increments as described in Article 52 or Article 11.04(F)(2)(C), will upon the commencement of their employment be eligible to be credited for their relevant nursing experience in the same manner described in Article 52 or Article 11.04(F)(2)(C) for the sole additional purpose of establishing their initial Year 15-30 Add Pay eligibility date or hours, as applicable. Eligibility for Year 15-30 Year Add Pay will thereafter accrue based on para. 2 above (e.g. seniority accruals). Year 15-30 Year Add Pay eligibility will be portable in the same manner as, and consistent with, seniority portability.
- 4. For clarity, the Year 15-30 Add Pay will be:
 - a. applicable for all hours paid,
 - b. pensionable,
 - c. applicable for the calculation of overtime, and
 - d. effective, April 1, 2024, increased based on future General Wage Increases.
- 5. All Collective Agreement language will continue to apply in the usual way to Year 1 to 10 Increment Steps, including among other things, promotional and laddering language.
 - a. For example, a nurse with a seniority date of 26 years may be moved from Level 3, Step 10 to Level 4, Step 7 upon receiving a promotion to provide the minimum \$200 increase, but would still retain the Year 25 Add Pay on top of their Level 4, Step 7 wage rate.
- 6. The parties agree that the Year 15-30 Add Pay is reflected in the revised wage grids attached to this MOA as Appendix A (2023/24) and Appendix B (2024/25).

Implementation

- 7. In order to implement Year 15-30 Add Pay, each employer will determine initial eligibility for Year 15-30 Add Pay for all nurses employed by them as of October 1, 2023, based on each nurse's seniority date (regular) or seniority hours (casual) as it exists on that date, in accordance with the principles described in paras. 1 and 2 above.
- 8. Notwithstanding para. 7 above, there will then be a one-time application process available to:
 - a. existing RNs/RPNs who initially joined the NBA as LPNs on or after the first full pay period following May 11, 2016; and
 - b. all existing nurses (RNs/RPNs/LPNs) hired under the Nurses' Provincial Collective Agreement since October 1, 2013, who at the time of their hire did not have existing seniority and at the time were deemed eligible by the employer for recognition of relevant nursing experience under Article 52 or Article 11.04(F)(2)(C).

- 9. The one-time application process will work as follows:
 - a. such nurses may apply to their employer starting October 1, 2023 and by no later than December 31, 2023, for recognition of their previous LPN seniority date or hours, or their relevant nursing experience, as applicable, for the sole purpose of establishing their initial Year 15-30 Add Pay eligibility date or hours;
 - for the nurses described in para. 8(a) above, the initial Year 15-30 Add Pay eligibility date
 or hours, as applicable, will be based on the combination of any recognized previous LPN
 seniority and the nurse's existing RN/RPN seniority date or hours (as applicable);
 - c. for the nurses described in para. 8(b) above, the initial Year 15-30 Add Pay eligibility date or hours, as applicable, will be based on the combination of any recognized relevant nursing experience and the nurse's existing seniority date or hours, (as applicable);
 - d. applications will contain supporting documentation and will be reasonably considered by the employer;
 - e. the employer will make a determination on each application by no later than March 31, 2024.
- 10. For clarity, nurses determined to be eligible as of October 1, 2023 (or as of March 31, 2024, if determined through the one-time application process) for Year 15-30 Add Pay in accordance with this Memorandum of Agreement will receive any applicable rate(s) of Year 15-30 Add Pay retroactively to April 1, 2023 or any applicable portion thereof.
 - a. For example, a nurse who achieved a 15 year seniority date with their employer on July 1, 2023 would receive retroactive payment for Year 15 Add Pay back to July 1, 2023.
- 11. Nurses will thereafter become eligible to receive the applicable rate of Year 15-30 Add Pay upon achieving the necessary seniority date(s) or hours worked, as described in paras. 1 to 3 above.

Appendix W

- 12. Appendix W Hours of Work and Remuneration para. 6 will be amended as follows (additions underlined, deletions struck out):
 - "All positions will be paid at Nurse Level 3, Step <u>1510</u> of the wage rate grid while occupying the position..."
- 13. Full-Time Stewards, Stewards at Large, and EDMP representatives will be eligible to receive Year 15-30 Add Pay in accordance with this Memorandum of Agreement.

Dispute Resolution

14. Any dispute arising from the application of this Memorandum of Agreement with respect to determining a nurse's eligibility for Year 15-30 Add Pay will be addressed through the BC Healthcare Office of Arbitration with the assistance of the Registrar as required, to ensure that

these matters are decided in a timely and expedited manner. This may include a mutually agreed fast track process.

15. Disputes between the parties arising from the interpretation of this MOA may be addressed through the usual grievance process(es) or as otherwise mutually agreed by the parties.

| This Memorandum of Agreement is dated for | reference on May 30, 2023. |
|---|--|
| For HEABC: | For the NBA: |
| James Suderman, FD, Negotiations | Jim Gould, NBA Spokesperson & BCNU Interim CFO |



| | First Year | Second Year | Third Year | Fourth Year | Fifth Year | Sixth Year | Seventh Year | Eighth Year | Ninth Year |
|--------------------|------------|----------------|------------|----------------|------------|------------|-----------------|-------------|------------|
| Level I (LPN) | 4854 | 4993 | 5100 | 5179 | 5259 | 5338 | 5417 | 5496 | 5576 |
| Level I (LFIN) | 29.87 | 30.73 | 31.38 | 31.87 | 32.36 | 32.85 | 33.34 | 33.82 | 34.31 |
| Level 2 (LPN) | 5054 | 5199 | 5312 | 5395 | 5478 | 5560 | 5643 | 5725 | 5808 |
| Level 2 (LFIN) | 31.10 | 31.99 | 32.69 | 33.20 | 33.71 | 34.22 | 34.73 | 35.23 | 35.74 |
| Level 3 (RN/RPN)* | 6121 | 6355 | 6589 | 6822 | 7057 | 7291 | 7525 | 7747 | 8024 |
| Level 3 (KIN/KFIN) | 37.67 | 39.11 | 40.55 | 41.98 | 43.43 | 44.87 | 46.31 | 47.67 | 49.38 |
| Level 4 (RN/RPN) | 7271 | 7401 | 7562 | 7753 | 7985 | 8172 | 8407 | 8634 | 8903 |
| Level 4 (KIN/KFIN) | 44.74 | 45.54 | 46.54 | 47.71 | 49.14 | 50.29 | 51.74 | 53.13 | 54.79 |
| Level 5 (RN/RPN) | 7742 | 7796 | 7945 | 8150 | 8395 | 8591 | 8826 | 9048 | 9323 |
| Level 5 (KIN/KFIN) | 47.64 | 47.98 | 48.89 | 50.15 | 51.66 | 52.87 | 54.31 | 55.68 | 57.37 |
| ((D | 8056 | 8122 | 8270 | 8477 | 8731 | 8937 | 9179 | 9399 | 9668 |
| Level 6 (RN/RPN) | 49.58 | 49.98 | 50.89 | 52.17 | 53.73 | 55.00 | 56.49 | 57.84 | 59.50 |

^{*}Includes Licensed Graduate nurses, which are defined by the College of Registered Nurses of British Columbia as "nurses granted LGN registration in B.C. prior to Oct. 1, 1990. An LGN registrant may perform or provide services as they are a registered nurse registrant."



| Effective April 1, 2020 | | | | | | | | | | |
|-------------------------|-------------------------|---------------------|----------------------|----------|---------------|-------------------------|----------------------|----------|--------------------|----------|
| | Increment First Year | Increment Second | Increment Third Year | Fourth | Increment | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh | Eighth | Increment Ninth | Tenth |
| | 11100 1001 | Year | | Year | 1 11011 1 001 | Obten 1 cm | Year | Year | Year | Year |
| Level I (LPN) | 5,182.00 | 5,330.00 | 5,444.00 | 5,598.13 | 5,752.50 | 5,906.88 | 6,061.25 | 6,215.63 | 6,370.00 | 6,524.38 |
| Level I (LFIV) | 31.89 | 32.80 | 33.50 | 34.45 | 35.40 | 36.35 | 37.30 | 38.25 | 39.20 | 40.15 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 5,263.38 | 5,411.25 | 5,525.00 | 5,679.38 | 5,833.75 | 5,988.13 | 6,142.50 | 6,296.88 | 6,451.25 | 6,605.63 |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 32.39 | 33.30 | 34.00 | 34.95 | 35.90 | 36.85 | 37.80 | 38.75 | 39.70 | 40.65 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 5,385.25 | 5,533.13 | 5,646.88 | 5,801.25 | 5,955.63 | 6,110.00 | 6,264.38 | 6,418.75 | 6,573.13 | 6,727.50 |
| 20 Tears/37,000 Hours | 33.14 | 34.05 | 34.75 | 35.70 | 36.65 | 37.60 | 38.55 | 39.50 | 40.45 | 41.40 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 5,547.75 | 5,695.63 | 5,809.38 | 5,963.75 | 6,118.13 | 6,272.50 | 6,426.88 | 6,581.25 | 6,735.63 | 6,890.00 |
| 25 Tears/40,750 Hours | 34.14 | 35.05 | 35.75 | 36.70 | 37.65 | 38.60 | 39.55 | 40.50 | 41.45 | 42.40 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 5,750.88 | 5,898.75 | 6,012.50 | 6,166.88 | 6,321.25 | 6,475.63 | 6,630.00 | 6,784.38 | 6,938.75 | 7,093.13 |
| 30 Tears/30,300 mours | 35.39 | 36.30 | 37.00 | 37.95 | 38.90 | 39.85 | 40.80 | 41.75 | 42.70 | 43.65 |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| Level 2 (LPN) | 5,395.00 | 5,550.00 | 5,671.00 | 5,825.63 | 5,980.00 | 6,134.38 | 6,288.75 | 6,443.13 | 6,597.50 | 6,751.88 |
| Level 2 (Li IV) | 33.20 | 34.15 | 34.90 | 35.85 | 36.80 | 37.75 | 38.70 | 39.65 | 40.60 | 41.55 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 5,476.25 | 5,630.63 | 5,752.50 | 5,906.88 | 6,061.25 | 6,215.63 | 6,370.00 | 6,524.38 | 6,678.75 | 6,833.13 |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 33.70 | 34.65 | 35.40 | 36.35 | 37.30 | 38.25 | 39.20 | 40.15 | 41.10 | 42.05 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 5,598.13 | 5,752.50 | 5,874.38 | 6,028.75 | 6,183.13 | 6,337.50 | 6,491.88 | 6,646.25 | 6,800.63 | 6,955.00 |
| 20 fears/39,000 Hours | 34.45 | 35.40 | 36.15 | 37.10 | 38.05 | 39.00 | 39.95 | 40.90 | 41.85 | 42.80 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 5,760.63 | 5,915.00 | 6,036.88 | 6,191.25 | 6,345.63 | 6,500.00 | 6,654.38 | 6,808.75 | 6,963.13 | 7,117.50 |
| 25 Tears/48,750 Hours | 35.45 | 36.40 | 37.15 | 38.10 | 39.05 | 40.00 | 40.95 | 41.90 | 42.85 | 43.80 |
| 20 Veens/E0 E00 Herres | 5,963.75 | 6,118.13 | 6,240.00 | 6,394.38 | 6,548.75 | 6,703.13 | 6,857.50 | 7,011.88 | 7,166.25 | 7,320.63 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 36.70 | 37.65 | 38.40 | 39.35 | 40.30 | 41.25 | 42.20 | 43.15 | 44.10 | 45.05 |



| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Fourth | | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh Year | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year |
|----------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------|----------|----------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------|
| | 6,534.00 | 6,784.00 | 7,034.00 | 7,289.75 | 7,544.88 | 7,800.00 | 8,055.13 | 8,310.25 | 8,565.38 | 8,820.50 |
| Level 3 (RN/RPN)* | 40.21 | 41.75 | 43.29 | 44.86 | 46.43 | 48.00 | 49.57 | 51.14 | 52.71 | 54.28 |
| Recognition Pay | 171-1 | | | | | 10100 | | | | |
| , | 6,615.38 | 6,865.63 | 7,115.88 | 7,371.00 | 7,626.13 | 7,881.25 | 8,136.38 | 8,391.50 | 8,646.63 | 8,901.75 |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 40.71 | 42.25 | 43.79 | 45.36 | 46.93 | 48.50 | 50.07 | 51.64 | 53.21 | 54.78 |
| 20 V /20 000 LL | 6,737.25 | 6,987.50 | 7,237.75 | 7,492.88 | 7,748.00 | 8,003.13 | 8,258.25 | 8,513.38 | 8,768.50 | 9,023.63 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 41.46 | 43.00 | 44.54 | 46.11 | 47.68 | 49.25 | 50.82 | 52.39 | 53.96 | 55.53 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 6,899.75 | 7,150.00 | 7,400.25 | 7,655.38 | 7,910.50 | 8,165.63 | 8,420.75 | 8,675.88 | 8,931.00 | 9,186.13 |
| 25 Tears/48,750 Hours | 42.46 | 44.00 | 45.54 | 47.11 | 48.68 | 50.25 | 51.82 | 53.39 | 54.96 | 56.53 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 7,102.88 | 7,353.13 | 7,603.38 | 7,858.50 | 8,113.63 | 8,368.75 | 8,623.88 | 8,879.00 | 9,134.13 | 9,389.25 |
| 30 Tears/36,300 Hours | 43.71 | 45.25 | 46.79 | 48.36 | 49.93 | 51.50 | 53.07 | 54.64 | 56.21 | 57.78 |
| | I == | | | | | | | 0.500.50 | 0.704.00 | 10.010.05 |
| Level 4 (RN/RPN) | 7,762.00 | 8,006.38 | 8,250.13 | 8,502.00 | 8,753.88 | 9,005.75 | 9,257.63 | 9,509.50 | 9,761.38 | 10,013.25 |
| | 47.77 | 49.27 | 50.77 | 52.32 | 53.87 | 55.42 | 56.97 | 58.52 | 60.07 | 61.62 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 7,843.88 | 8,087.63 | 8,331.38 | 8,583.25 | 8,835.13 | 9,087.00 | 9,338.88 | 9,590.75 | 9,842.63 | 10,094.50 |
| | 48.27 | 49.77 | 51.27 | 52.82 | 54.37 | 55.92 | 57.47 | 59.02 | 60.57 | 62.12 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 7,965.75 | 8,209.50 | 8,453.25 | 8,705.13 | 8,957.00 | 9,208.88 | 9,460.75 | 9,712.63 | 9,964.50 | 10,216.38 |
| 20 Tears/57,000 Flours | 49.02 | 50.52 | 52.02 | 53.57 | 55.12 | 56.67 | 58.22 | 59.77 | 61.32 | 62.87 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 8,128.25 | 8,372.00 | 8,615.75 | 8,867.63 | 9,119.50 | 9,371.38 | 9,623.25 | 9,875.13 | 10,127.00 | 10,378.88 |
| | 50.02 | 51.52 | 53.02 | 54.57 | 56.12 | 57.67 | 59.22 | 60.77 | 62.32 | 63.87 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 8,331.38 | 8,575.13 | 8,818.88 | 9,070.75 | 9,322.63 | 9,574.50 | 9,826.38 | 10,078.25 | 10,330.13 | 10,582.00 |
| 50 1 Edi 5/30,300 1 10ul 5 | 51.27 | 52.77 | 54.27 | 55.82 | 57.37 | 58.92 | 60.47 | 62.02 | 63.57 | 65.12 |

^{*}Includes Licensed Graduate nurses, which are defined by the College of Registered Nurses of British Columbia as "nurses granted LGN registration in B.C. prior to Oct. 1, 1990. An LGN registrant may perform or provide services as they are a registered nurse registrant."



| Ellective April 1, 2023 | | | | | | | | | | | |
|--------------------------|-------------------------|----------|-------------------------|----------|-----------|-------------------------|----------------------|-----------|--------------------|--------------------|--|
| | Increment First Year | Second | Increment Third Year | Fourth | Increment | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh | Eighth | Increment Ninth | Increment Tenth | |
| | | Year | | Year | | | Year | Year | Year | Year | |
| Level 5 (RN/RPN) | 8,265.00 | 8,508.50 | 8,752.25 | 9,004.13 | 9,256.00 | 9,507.88 | 9,759.75 | 10,011.63 | 10,263.50 | 10,515.38 | |
| Level 3 (KIN/KFIN) | 50.86 | 52.36 | 53.86 | 55.41 | 56.96 | 58.51 | 60.06 | 61.61 | 63.16 | 64.71 | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 8,346.00 | 8,589.75 | 8,833.50 | 9,085.38 | 9,337.25 | 9,589.13 | 9,841.00 | 10,092.88 | 10,344.75 | 10,596.63 | |
| 15 Tears/27,250 Hours | 51.36 | 52.86 | 54.36 | 55.91 | 57.46 | 59.01 | 60.56 | 62.11 | 63.66 | 65.21 | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 8,467.88 | 8,711.63 | 8,955.38 | 9,207.25 | 9,459.13 | 9,711.00 | 9,962.88 | 10,214.75 | 10,466.63 | 10,718.50 | |
| 20 Tears/37,000 Hours | 52.11 | 53.61 | 55.11 | 56.66 | 58.21 | 59.76 | 61.31 | 62.86 | 64.41 | 65.96 | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 8,630.38 | 8,874.13 | 9,117.88 | 9,369.75 | 9,621.63 | 9,873.50 | 10,125.38 | 10,377.25 | 10,629.13 | 10,881.00 | |
| 25 Tears/40,730 Hours | 53.11 | 54.61 | 56.11 | 57.66 | 59.21 | 60.76 | 62.31 | 63.86 | 65.41 | 66.96 | |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 8,833.50 | 9,077.25 | 9,321.00 | 9,572.88 | 9,824.75 | 10,076.63 | 10,328.50 | 10,580.38 | 10,832.25 | 11,084.13 | |
| 30 Tears/36,300 Hours | 54.36 | 55.86 | 57.36 | 58.91 | 60.46 | 62.01 | 63.56 | 65.11 | 66.66 | 68.21 | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Level 6 (RN/RPN) | 8,600.00 | 8,843.25 | 9,087.00 | 9,338.88 | 9,590.75 | 9,842.63 | 10,094.50 | 10,346.38 | 10,598.25 | 10,850.13 | |
| Level o (Idivita IV) | 52.92 | 54.42 | 55.92 | 57.47 | 59.02 | 60.57 | 62.12 | 63.67 | 65.22 | 66.77 | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 8,680.75 | 8,924.50 | 9,168.25 | 9,420.13 | 9,672.00 | 9,923.88 | 10,175.75 | 10,427.63 | 10,679.50 | 10,931.38 | |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 53.42 | 54.92 | 56.42 | 57.97 | 59.52 | 61.07 | 62.62 | 64.17 | 65.72 | 67.27 | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 8,802.63 | 9,046.38 | 9,290.13 | 9,542.00 | 9,793.88 | 10,045.75 | 10,297.63 | 10,549.50 | 10,801.38 | 11,053.25 | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 54.17 | 55.67 | 57.17 | 58.72 | 60.27 | 61.82 | 63.37 | 64.92 | 66.47 | 68.02 | |
| 25 Years/40 750 Llaura | 8,965.13 | 9,208.88 | 9,452.63 | 9,704.50 | 9,956.38 | 10,208.25 | 10,460.13 | 10,712.00 | 10,963.88 | 11,215.75 | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 55.17 | 56.67 | 58.17 | 59.72 | 61.27 | 62.82 | 64.37 | 65.92 | 67.47 | 69.02 | |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 9,168.25 | 9,412.00 | 9,655.75 | 9,907.63 | 10,159.50 | 10,411.38 | 10,663.25 | 10,915.13 | 11,167.00 | 11,418.88 | |
| 30 1 Eat 5/30,300 Flours | 56.42 | 57.92 | 59.42 | 60.97 | 62.52 | 64.07 | 65.62 | 67.17 | 68.72 | 70.27 | |



| | Effective April 1, 2024 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|----------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------|--|--|--|
| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Increment Fourth Year | | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh Year | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year | | | |
| Level I (LPN) | 5,286.00 | 5,437.00 | 5,553.00 | 5,710.00 | 5,868.00 | 6,025.00 | 6,182.00 | 6,340.00 | 6,497.00 | 6,655.00 | | | |
| . , | 32.53 | 33.46 | 34.17 | 35.14 | 36.11 | 37.08 | 38.04 | 39.02 | 39.98 | 40.95 | | | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 5,369.00 | 5,520.13 | 5,635.50 | 5,793.13 | 5,950.75 | 6,108.38 | 6,264.38 | 6,423.63 | 6,579.63 | 6,737.25 | | | |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 33.04 | 33.97 | 34.68 | 35.65 | 36.62 | 37.59 | 38.55 | 39.53 | 40.49 | 41.46 | | | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 5,494.13 | 5,645.25 | 5,760.63 | 5,918.25 | 6,075.88 | 6,233.50 | 6,389.50 | 6,548.75 | 6,704.75 | 6,862.38 | | | |
| 20 Tears/37,000 Hours | 33.81 | 34.74 | 35.45 | 36.42 | 37.39 | 38.36 | 39.32 | 40.30 | 41.26 | 42.23 | | | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 5,659.88 | 5,811.00 | 5,926.38 | 6,084.00 | 6,241.63 | 6,399.25 | 6,555.25 | 6,714.50 | 6,870.50 | 7,028.13 | | | |
| 25 Tears/48,750 Hours | 34.83 | 35.76 | 36.47 | 37.44 | 38.41 | 39.38 | 40.34 | 41.32 | 42.28 | 43.25 | | | |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 5,867.88 | 6,019.00 | 6,134.38 | 6,292.00 | 6,449.63 | 6,607.25 | 6,763.25 | 6,922.50 | 7,078.50 | 7,236.13 | | | |
| 30 Tears/38,300 Hours | 36.11 | 37.04 | 37.75 | 38.72 | 39.69 | 40.66 | 41.62 | 42.60 | 43.56 | 44.53 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Level 2 (LPN) | 5,503.00 | 5,661.00 | 5,784.00 | 5,942.00 | 6,100.00 | 6,257.00 | 6,415.00 | 6,572.00 | 6,729.00 | 6,887.00 | | | |
| Level 2 (LFIA) | 33.86 | 34.84 | 35.59 | 36.57 | 37.54 | 38.50 | 39.48 | 40.44 | 41.41 | 42.38 | | | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 5,585.13 | 5,744.38 | 5,866.25 | 6,025.50 | 6,183.13 | 6,339.13 | 6,498.38 | 6,654.38 | 6,812.00 | 6,969.63 | | | |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 34.37 | 35.35 | 36.10 | 37.08 | 38.05 | 39.01 | 39.99 | 40.95 | 41.92 | 42.89 | | | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 5,710.25 | 5,869.50 | 5,991.38 | 6,150.63 | 6,308.25 | 6,464.25 | 6,623.50 | 6,779.50 | 6,937.13 | 7,094.75 | | | |
| | 35.14 | 36.12 | 36.87 | 37.85 | 38.82 | 39.78 | 40.76 | 41.72 | 42.69 | 43.66 | | | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 5,876.00 | 6,035.25 | 6,157.13 | 6,316.38 | 6,474.00 | 6,630.00 | 6,789.25 | 6,945.25 | 7,102.88 | 7,260.50 | | | |
| | 36.16 | 37.14 | 37.89 | 38.87 | 39.84 | 40.80 | 41.78 | 42.74 | 43.71 | 44.68 | | | |
| 30 Years/58.500 Hours | 6,084.00 | 6,243.25 | 6,365.13 | 6,524.38 | 6,682.00 | 6,838.00 | 6,997.25 | 7,153.25 | 7,310.88 | 7,468.50 | | | |
| JU Teat 5/30,300 Hours | 37.44 | 38.42 | 39.17 | 40.15 | 41.12 | 42.08 | 43.06 | 44.02 | 44.99 | 45.96 | | | |

2024 Wage Grids may be revised to reflect any COLA adjustments, if applicable (please refer to Article 63 - Wage Schedules (A.1 General Wage Schedules - Year 3) and MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment).



| | | | Ef | fective A | pril I, 202 | 24 | | | | |
|----------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|--------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------------|----------------------------|
| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Fourth | Increment | Increment Sixth Year | Seventh | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year |
| Level 3 (RN/RPN)* | 6,665.00 41.02 | 6,920.00 42.58 | 7,175.00 44.15 | 7,436.00 45.76 | 7,696.00 47.36 | 7,956.00 48.96 | 8,216.00 50.56 | 8,476.00 52.16 | 8,737.00 53.77 | 8,997.00 55.37 |
| Recognition Pay | 0.740.00 | 7,000,40 | 7.057.05 | 7.540.00 | 7 770 00 | 0.000.00 | 0.000.00 | 0.550.00 | 0.000.50 | 0.000.50 |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 6,748.63 41.53 | 7,002.13 43.09 | 7,257.25 44.66 | 7,518.88 46.27 | 7,778.88 47.87 | 8,038.88 49.47 | 8,298.88 51.07 | 8,558.88 52.67 | 8,820.50 54.28 | 9,080.50 55.88 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 6,873.75 42.30 | 7,127.25 43.86 | 7,382.38 45.43 | 7,644.00 47.04 | 7,904.00 48.64 | 8,164.00 50.24 | 8,424.00 51.84 | 8,684.00 53.44 | 8,945.63 55.05 | 9,205.63 56.65 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 7,039.50 43.32 | 7,293.00 44.88 | 7,548.13 46.45 | 7,809.75 48.06 | 8,069.75 49.66 | 8,329.75 51.26 | 8,589.75 52.86 | 8,849.75 54.46 | 9,111.38 56.07 | 9,371.38 57.67 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 7,247.50 44.60 | 7,501.00 46.16 | 7,756.13 | 8,017.75 49.34 | 8,277.75 50.94 | 8,537.75 52.54 | 8,797.75 54.14 | 9,057.75 | 9,319.38 | 9,579.38 |
| | ļ. | ļ. | ļ. | ļ | ļ | ļ. | ļ. | | | |
| Level 4 (RN/RPN) | 7,917.00 48.72 | 8,167.00 50.26 | 8,415.00 51.78 | 8,672.00 53.37 | 8,929.00 54.95 | 9,186.00 56.53 | 9,443.00 58.11 | 9,700.00 59.69 | 9,957.00 61.27 | 10,214.00 62.86 |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 7,999.88 49.23 | 8,250.13 50.77 | 8,497.13 52.29 | 8,755.50 53.88 | 9,012.25 55.46 | 9,269.00 57.04 | 9,525.75 58.62 | 9,782.50 60.20 | 10,039.25 61.78 | 10,297.63 63.37 |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 8,125.00 50.00 | 8,375.25 51.54 | 8,622.25 53.06 | 8,880.63 54.65 | 9,137.38 56.23 | 9,394.13 57.81 | 9,650.88 59.39 | 9,907.63 | 10,164.38 62.55 | 10,422.75 64.14 |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 8,290.75 | 8,541.00 | 8,788.00 | 9,046.38 | 9,303.13 | 9,559.88 | 9,816.63 | 10,073.38 | 10,330.13 | 10,588.50 |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 51.02 8,498.75 | 52.56 8,749.00 | 54.08 8,996.00 | 55.67 9,254.38 | 57.25 9,511.13 | 58.83 9,767.88 | 60.41 10,024.63 | 61.99 10,281.38 | 63.57 10,538.13 | 65.16 10,796.50 |
| 50 1 Cai 3/50,500 1 lOui 3 | 52.30 | 53.84 | 55.36 | 56.95 | 58.53 | 60.11 | 61.69 | 63.27 | 64.85 | 66.44 |

^{*}Includes Licensed Graduate nurses, which are defined by the College of Registered Nurses of British Columbia as "nurses granted LGN registration in B.C. prior to Oct. 1, 1990. An LGN registrant may perform or provide services as they are a registered nurse registrant."

2024 Wage Grids may be revised to reflect any COLA adjustments, if applicable (please refer to Article 63 - Wage Schedules (A.1 General Wage Schedules - Year 3) and MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment).



| | Effective April 1, 2024 | | | | | | | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------|-------------------------|------------------------------|-----------------------------|----------------------|----------------------------|--|--|--|
| | Increment First Year | Increment Second Year | Increment Third Year | Increment Fourth Year | | Increment Sixth Year | Increment Seventh Year | Increment Eighth Year | Increment Ninth Year | Increment Tenth Year | | | |
| Level 5 (RN/RPN) | 8,430.00 | 8,679.00 | 8,927.00 | 9,184.00 | 9,441.00 | 9,698.00 | 9,955.00 | 10,212.00 | 10,469.00 | 10,726.00 | | | |
| | 51.88 | 53.41 | 54.94 | 56.52 | 58.10 | 59.68 | 61.26 | 62.84 | 64.42 | 66.01 | | | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| 15 Years/29.250 Hours | 8,513.38 | 8,762.00 | 9,010.63 | 9,267.38 | 9,524.13 | 9,780.88 | 10,037.63 | 10,294.38 | 10,551.13 | 10,809.50 | | | |
| 13 Tears/27,230 Hours | 52.39 | 53.92 | 55.45 | 57.03 | 58.61 | 60.19 | 61.77 | 63.35 | 64.93 | 66.52 | | | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 8,638.50 | 8,887.13 | 9,135.75 | 9,392.50 | 9,649.25 | 9,906.00 | 10,162.75 | 10,419.50 | 10,676.25 | 10,934.63 | | | |
| 20 Tears/37,000 mours | 53.16 | 54.69 | 56.22 | 57.80 | 59.38 | 60.96 | 62.54 | 64.12 | 65.70 | 67.29 | | | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 8,804.25 | 9,052.88 | 9,301.50 | 9,558.25 | 9,815.00 | 10,071.75 | 10,328.50 | 10,585.25 | 10,842.00 | 11,100.38 | | | |
| 25 Tears/40,750 mours | 54.18 | 55.71 | 57.24 | 58.82 | 60.40 | 61.98 | 63.56 | 65.14 | 66.72 | 68.31 | | | |
| 30 Years/58,500 Hours | 9,012.25 | 9,260.88 | 9,509.50 | 9,766.25 | 10,023.00 | 10,279.75 | 10,536.50 | 10,793.25 | 11,050.00 | 11,308.38 | | | |
| 30 Tears/30,300 mours | 55.46 | 56.99 | 58.52 | 60.10 | 61.68 | 63.26 | 64.84 | 66.42 | 68.00 | 69.59 | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Level 6 (RN/RPN) | 8,772.00 | 9,020.00 | 9,269.00 | 9,526.00 | 9,783.00 | 10,039.00 | 10,296.00 | 10,553.00 | 10,810.00 | 11,067.00 | | | |
| Level o (KIN/KPIN) | 53.98 | 55.51 | 57.04 | 58.62 | 60.20 | 61.78 | 63.36 | 64.94 | 66.52 | 68.10 | | | |
| Recognition Pay | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| IF V /20 250 II | 8,854.63 | 9,103.25 | 9,351.88 | 9,608.63 | 9,865.38 | 10,122.13 | 10,378.88 | 10,635.63 | 10,892.38 | 11,149.13 | | | |
| 15 Years/29,250 Hours | 54.49 | 56.02 | 57.55 | 59.13 | 60.71 | 62.29 | 63.87 | 65.45 | 67.03 | 68.61 | | | |
| 20 V/20 000 I I | 8,979.75 | 9,228.38 | 9,477.00 | 9,733.75 | 9,990.50 | 10,247.25 | 10,504.00 | 10,760.75 | 11,017.50 | 11,274.25 | | | |
| 20 Years/39,000 Hours | 55.26 | 56.79 | 58.32 | 59.90 | 61.48 | 63.06 | 64.64 | 66.22 | 67.80 | 69.38 | | | |
| 25 Years/48,750 Hours | 9,145.50 | 9,394.13 | 9,642.75 | 9,899.50 | 10,156.25 | 10,413.00 | 10,669.75 | 10,926.50 | 11,183.25 | 11,440.00 | | | |
| | 56.28 | 57.81 | 59.34 | 60.92 | 62.50 | 64.08 | 65.66 | 67.24 | 68.82 | 70.40 | | | |
| 30 Years/58.500 Hours | 9,353.50 | 9,602.13 | 9,850.75 | 10,107.50 | 10,364.25 | 10,621.00 | 10,877.75 | 11,134.50 | 11,391.25 | 11,648.00 | | | |
| ou rears/od,500 mours | 57.56 | 59.09 | 60.62 | 62.20 | 63.78 | 65.36 | 66.94 | 68.52 | 70.10 | 71.68 | | | |

2024 Wage Grids may be revised to reflect any COLA adjustments, if applicable (please refer to Article 63 - Wage Schedules (A.1 General Wage Schedules - Year 3) and MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment).

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

ARTICLE XX - Ceremonial, Cultural, Spiritual and Compassionate Leave for Indigenous Employees

Indigenous employees have a right upheld by BC Law, including the Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act, SBC 2019, c. 14, to manifest, practice, develop and teach their spiritual and religious traditions, customs and ceremonies and may require leave from work to exercise these rights.

Definitions:

A ceremonial, cultural, or spiritual event under this section includes any event that is significant to an Indigenous employee's culture. Examples of significant cultural events include, but are not limited to, Hoobiyee, Pow-wows, Sundance, participation in a sweat lodge, coming of age events, feasts or ceremonies held following a significant family event (including the death of a family member).

"Family" for the purposes of accessing Compassionate leave includes an Indigenous Elder* or any individual an Indigenous employee considers family consistent with their Indigenous cultural practices.

- * An Indigenous Elder is designated as such by their community.
 - a) Effective April I, 2023, an Indigenous employee may request up to five (5) days of leave per calendar year without loss of pay to participate in ceremonial, cultural, or spiritual event(s). The leave may be taken in one or more blocks of time. Where such leave is requested, the leave shall not be unreasonably denied. Leave under this provision is in addition to an Indigenous employee's entitlement to leave under Article 33.01 Compassionate Leave as applicable (and per the expanded definition of "family").
 - b) Where an Indigenous employee requires more than the days of leave in a) above for a ceremonial, cultural, or spiritual event, the leave shall not be unreasonably denied. This additional leave is unpaid, however, an employee may draw from their available vacation and overtime banks, as applicable (and per the expanded definition of "family").
 - c) When requesting the leave, particularly for annual or recurring ceremonial, cultural, or spiritual events, the employee will provide as much advanced notice to the Employer as possible; for unexpected ceremonies or events, the employee will make every effort to provide at least seven (7) calendar days' notice of the leave.

d) The employer will share annually with the Union relevant and available aggregate data relating to utilization of this leave. In consideration of the unique harms that improper or inadvertent use or disclosure of this data could cause, the Union will ensure safeguards are in place which, among other things, limit access to this data as much as practicably possible. The parties agree that the purpose of sharing this data is to further the parties' shared commitment to reconciliation and decolonization. To this end, the Union will obtain the providing employer's agreement prior to utilizing the data for any external purpose.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at <u>4:00</u> am pm |
|------------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| ames Suderman, Executive Director, | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by deleting the following:

DELETIONS – ARTICLE 28.04 – Working Short Premium and ARTICLE 60 – Direct Patient Care Staffing

On acceptance of the HEABC's Article 57.05 proposal, the parties agree to delete the following provisions, effective June 1, 2023. The parties will remove all deleted references to the provisions below prior to printing.

Parties agree to extinguish all PCAP and Working Short related MOAs.

| Language | to | De | lete |
|----------|----|----|------|
|----------|----|----|------|

| Article 28.04 – Working Short Premium |
|--|
| Article 60 – Direct Patient Care Staffing |
| Appendix GG – BC College of Nursing Professionals Registration Fees Fund |

| Agreed to this day | y of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|------|--|-------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive Dire Negotiations & Member Service | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following Appendix:

General Housekeeping

Incorrect Article References

25.12 Three Different Shifts Worked

(B) On implementation of revised work schedules as outlined in 25.05(A) 25.06(A) regular employees shall not be required to work three (3) different shifts unless emergent circumstances require such arrangement. Employees who work three (3) different shifts as a result of emergent circumstances shall be paid the applicable overtime rate for each day worked in the third shift change of the three (3) different shifts noted above.

Appendix DD List of Employers

The Parties agree to review and update the informational list of employers to reflect updated consolidated certifications prior to printing.

Legislative Changes: Repeal of the Health and Social Services Delivery Improvement Act

13.02 Portability of Seniority

Seniority relates to seniority with the Employer and is not portable with the exception of 51.02(H). or when an employee is transferred according to Section 4 of the Health Authorities and Social Service Delivery Improvement Act

Article 20 – Technological Change, Automation

This article is impacted by the Health and Social Services Delivery Improvement Act.

Language to Delete

The parties agree to remove the following from the Collective Agreement:

Appendix K Memorandum of Agreement – Pension Review

103

| Agreed to this | _ day of | 2023, at | _ am/pm |
|--|----------|---------------------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | A |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Se | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | d Chief |

Appendices and MOAs



Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

APX A.I - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Administration

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following Appendix:

Whereas an Enhanced Disability Management Program ("EDMP") was incorporated into the collective agreement for the purpose of facilitating an employee centred, proactive, appropriate and customized disability management program for employees with occupational and non-occupational illness/injury; and

Whereas the EDMP is governed by a Provincial Steering Committee ("PSC") made up of

equal representatives of the HEABC and the NBA; and

Whereas twenty-five percent (25%) of the cost savings from the EDMP are allocated to improve

disability management ("Cost Savings");

Therefore, the parties agree that:

Effective April 1, 20<u>23</u>12, the parties will allocate an amount of three million, six hundred and forty-three two million, nine hundred and twelve thousand dollars (\$3,643,0002,912,000) annually for the following purposes:

- (A) One million, two hundred and ninety thousand dollars (\$1,290,000) shall be set aside for occupational health and safety purposes as outlined in MOA Re:

 Provincial Occupational Health and Safety.
- (B) All remaining funds pproximately fifty percent (50%) of this amount will be allocated for the purposes set out in Appendix A.2 Enhanced Disability Management Program Regional Representation. Of which five hundred thousand dollars (\$500,000) will be used to pay for administration of the EDMP on a provincial basis which includes one Provincial EDMP coordinator for the employers appointed by HEABC/Health Authorities and one Provincial EDMP coordinator appointed by the NBA.
- (B) The remaining amount will be allocated for the purposes set out Appendix A.3 Occupational Health, Safety and Violence Prevention Initiatives.

The coordinators in paragraph $(A\underline{B})$ above will report to the PSC and will work collaboratively to administer the program in a manner consistent with the goals and principles of the EDMP, including coordinating the work of representatives of each party and ensuring implementation of provincial standards.

The coordinators will be responsible, under the direction of the PSC, for the overall administration of the EDMP, including disbursing the funds remaining from the \$500,000 allocation. Priorities for these funds will include joint training for all stakeholders and the establishment and maintenance of <u>information technology systems</u> a <u>website</u> and other communication tools.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm | |
|---|--------|----------------------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | | Signed on behalf of | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | | |
| James Suderman, Exec Negotiations & Memb | | Jim Gould, Interim Negotiator | CEO and Chief | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

APPENDIX A.2 - Enhanced Disability Management Program - Regional Representation

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following Appendix:

An Enhanced Disability Management Program ("EDMP") was incorporated into the collective agreement for the purpose of facilitating an employee centered, pro-active, appropriate and customized disability management program for employees with occupational and non- occupational illness/injury.

The parties agree to the creation of seventeen (17) twenty-two (22) union disability management representatives to support the coordination and promotion of the program. These representatives will work in collaboration with the Employer's Disability Management Professionals to promote and coordinate best practices with respect to disability management, and will adhere to the roles and responsibilities of the union representative as identified in the EDMP Policies and Procedures document. Representatives will work under the direction of designated BCNU staff.

These representatives will be distributed by Region as follows:

- 32 VCH
- 54 FHA
- 1 VCH/FHA
- 12 PHSA/Providence
- I Providence
- 43 VIHA
- 43 IHA
- I NHA
- I Affiliate Sites
- 2 <u>Vacation Backfill (from the Fraser Health Authority)</u>
- 22 Total

On request, the parties will provide a list of their respective EDMP representatives by region. Effective April 1, 2023, the affiliate representative will be selected from a Health Authority/Providence Health Care.

EDMP representatives are entitled to up to a maximum of six (6) weeks of vacation backfill.

The parties agree that the cost of the seventeen (17) twenty-two (22) regional union disability management representatives will be funded out of the Appendix A.2I - Enhanced Disability Management Program — Cost Savings Administration.

Regional assignments will be determined by mutual agreement between the parties.

Normally, only one (I) EDMP representative will participate in case-specific meetings or issues at the same time, unless mutually agreed between the Employer and Union at the local level. Notwithstanding, meetings should normally have a similar number of attendees from the Employer and Union. In the event that the Union desires an additional person to attend for mentorship or training, they may apply for union leave under Article 44.01(F)

The parties agree to use technology, where appropriate, (e.g., ZOOM, teleconference) to allow representatives to support remote sites in a cost efficient and effective manner.

Hours of Work and Renumeration Remuneration

EDMP representatives will have the same hours of work and receive the same remuneration as the positions under Appendix W – Full Time Steward and Steward at Large Position.

| Agreed to this day of _ | 2023, at | am/pm |
|-------------------------------------|----------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of | the NBA |
| | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | Jim Gould, Interim (| CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

APPENDIX AA – MOA Re: Job Sharing

Article I - Preamble

- 1.1 This Memorandum of Agreement establishes provision for <u>any group of employees</u>, <u>at least one of whom holds regular status</u>, <u>two (2) regular employees</u> to voluntarily "job share" <u>a single full-time one or more regular position(s)</u>. <u>Part-time positions may be shared where the Employer and Union agree in good faith.</u>
- 1.2 A "Job Sharing Arrangement" refers to a specific written agreement between the Union and the Employer. This agreement must be signed before a job sharing arrangement can be implemented.

<u>Article 2 – Participation</u>

- 2.1 The parties recognize that involvement in job sharing is voluntary for all parties. It is further agreed that there will be no pressure brought to bear on Employers or employees to participate in job sharing, nor will there be access to the grievance procedure should such job sharing not be established at the facility level.
- 2.2 Employees may initiate a request for job sharing in writing (subject to Article 2.3 and 2.4). Where an employee(s) request is denied, they shall be provided with an explanation as to why their request was denied.
- 2.3 Upon approval of a request to job share a notice will be posted in writing and electronically within the department to determine interest in job sharing a specific position. Those interested in job sharing will respond to the Employer in writing. Should the number of qualified employees responding exceed the number of positions available, then selection shall be on the basis of seniority.
 - Job shares will be within the same department and classification except where the Employer and Union agree in good faith.
- 2.4 A notice will also be posted to elicit interest in job sharing arrangements to accommodate employees facing displacement. Approval and selection are subject to 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 above.
- 2.5 For the first three (3) months of a job sharing arrangement, an employee will be deemed to be on a qualifying period pursuant to Article 18.03 of the Provincial Collective Agreement, except for employees who are participating in a job share on their home unit, department or program and have already completed their qualifying period.

<u>Article 3 – Maintenance of Regular Positions</u>

- 3.1 Shared positions shall, in all respects with the exception that they are held by two individuals, be treated as though they were single positions regular positions with each employee having an FTE equal to the FTE they hold within the job sharing arrangement for the purpose of with regard to scheduling, and job descriptions.
- 3.2 Where a vacancy becomes available as a result of an employee participating in a job sharing arrangement, the vacated position shall be treated in accordance with the provisions of the Provincial Collective Agreement.
- If one a job sharing partner decides to discontinue participation in a job sharing 3.3 arrangement, they must give thirty (30) calendar days' notice of their intent to vacate the job share, and they will then post into another regular position, revert to casual, or resign. The remaining employee shall be given first opportunity to assume the position on a full-time basis. Should that employee decline the position on a full-time basis and wish to continue to job share the position, then every effort will be made. The period of thirty (30) days, to find a job sharing partner satisfactory to all parties. The period of time to find a replacement will result in the remaining job sharing partner assuming the position full-time. If they do not wish a full-time position and no job sharing partner is found, then they would post into another regular position, revert to casual status, or resign. The former job sharing position would then be treated in accordance with the Provincial Collective Agreement. The participant electing to leave the job share will post into a vacant position, be added to the casual registry, or resign. If those remaining in the job sharing arrangement wish to continue with the arrangement, every effort will be made to fill the vacated portion of the job share within the remaining thirty (30) calendar days.
- If no other employee comes forward to fill the vacated portion of the job share, participants of the job share who entered with regular status may select, in seniority order, one of the original FTEs that was brought into the job sharing arrangement. If a participant is left with no FTE, they will be entitled to all displacement rights under Article 19. Participants who held casual status entering into the job sharing arrangement will return to casual status. Any vacancy remaining will be treated in accordance with the provisions in the Collective Agreement.
- 3.5 Either party may give sixty (60) calendar days' notice to end the job sharing arrangement. In this case, participants of the job share who entered with regular status may select, in seniority order, one of the original FTEs that was brought into the job sharing arrangement. If a participant is left with no FTE, they will be entitled to all displacement rights under Article 19. Participants who held casual status entering into the job sharing arrangement will return to casual status. Any vacancy remaining will be treated in accordance with the provisions in the Collective Agreement.
- 3.6 If a master work schedule change occurs, participants of the job share must first determine their FTEs through provision 3.5. Subsequently, participants will use this FTE to select their line on the new master work schedule. If the original FTEs that made up the job share are secured, the job sharing arrangement continues.
- 3.1 If the job sharing arrangement is discontinued by the Employer, the most senior employee will be given first option to assume the full-time position. The other (least senior) partner will be displaced pursuant to the provisions of the Provincial Collective Agreement.

- 3.2 The Employer must give sixty (60) days' notice if they wish to end a job sharing arrangement.
- 3.3 Either party may cancel this Memorandum on sixty (60) days' notice.

<u>Article 4 – Schedules and Job Descriptions</u>

- 4.1 A work schedule will be set out in advance showing the days and hours or shifts to be worked for each job sharing partner.
- 4.2 Job descriptions for the job sharing partners will be identical.
- 4.3 The Employer agrees not to increase workload levels expected of job sharers for the sole reason the position is shared.
- 4.4 Once established, the position of hours shared may be altered by mutual agreement of the parties.

Article 5 - Benefits

- 5.1 As a general principle and unless otherwise revised in this Memorandum, the employees will neither gain nor lose any benefits presently contained in the Provincial Collective Agreement.
- 5.2 Each employee in a job sharing arrangement will be treated as a part-time employee for all benefit and pension purposes.
- 5.3 Each employee in a job sharing arrangement must maintain unbroken eligibility for Employment Insurance and Canada Pension coverage.

Article 6 – Relief

6.1 Temporary relief for a job shared position will be determined pursuant to the Provincial Collective Agreement. However, job sharers will <u>provide relief</u> for each other where there is no other source of relief available.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

APPENDIX EE – Integration of Licensed Practical Nurses into the NBA Provincial Collective

- 2. Provisions of the NBA Provincial Collective Agreement that do not apply to LPNs
 - a. Article 11.04(A)(9) Casual Employees Client Specific Assignments
 - b. Article I I.04(J)(2) Probationary Period for Client Specific Casuals
 - c. Article 26.02(1) split shifts for client specific nurses
 - d. <u>Article 28.07 OR/PAR/ER/ICU/CCU Premium</u> Appendix "M" Managing Staffing Challenges in the Health Care System
 - e. Appendix "Q" Client Specific Nurses from Home Support Agencies
 - f. Appendix "Y" Pension for Retirees

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | _ am/pm |
|----------------------------|------------|-----------------------------|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HE | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | ` |
| James Suderman, Executive | a Director | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and | |
| Negotiations & Member S | | Negotiator | Cillei |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement by changing the following:

APPENDIX II.I MOA Re: Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee

- I. HEABC and the NBA have a shared commitment to addressing long-term staffing needs for the Health Authorities/Providence Health Care. The parties have agreed to establish a Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee (SNSC) at each Health Authority/Providence Health Care. The SNSC will replace the existing Nurse Relations Committee.
- 2 The purpose of the Health Authority/Providence Health Care SNSCs are to consult on health authority level nurse workforce planning including trends, activities and initiatives related to the following:
 - Regularization of hours
 - Recruitment and retention strategies
 - Regular relief positions
 - Other relief needs
 - Nurse education and training (including specialty nursing)
 - Seasonal strategies
 - Annual vacation
 - Substantial health service delivery initiatives
 - Other organization wide staffing matters

For the purposes of this work, consult means seeking advice from, listening to and acknowledging the concerns of the Union. It includes data sharing and providing feedback on how the Union's input influenced the decision.

- 3. In addition to the long-term staffing strategies, the Committee will review organizational approaches to short-term staffing needs.
- 4. The SNSCs shall not engage in discussions regarding general labour relations issues, occupational health & safety issues or professional practice issues, which shall be raised and addressed through the appropriate collective agreement process.
- 5. The SNSC will be provided relevant and available health authority/PHC-level data, including analytical support. Data will also be made available to the Union upon request. Health authorities/PHC will bi-annually provide the Union with relevant and available health authority/PHC-level staffing data in either Microsoft Excel or .csv format regarding:
 - a. Regular straight-time hours,

- b. Casual straight-time hours,
- c. Overtime hours,
- d. Part-time hours over FTE,
- e. On-call hours,
- f. Call-back hours, and
- g. Relief not found.
- 6. Each SNSC will meet bi-monthly on dates determined by the committee members, and/or at the call of the Co-chairs. The SNSC will be composed of eight six (86) members, four (4)-three 93) appointed by each the Employer, one (1) of which whom will be is a senior operational leader and one (1) of whom will be a professional practice lead, and the Union, one (1) of which whom will be a labour relations coordinator and one (1) of whom will be a professional practice officer. Each SNSC may determine to include other representatives to assist or provide expertise as mutually agreed to by the committee members. Cochairs, one (1) member from Employer and one (1) member from the Union, will be selected.
- 7. The Co-chairs will meet prior to each SNSC meeting in order to determine and agree to agenda items. The agenda will be circulated two (2) weeks in advance of each meeting by the SNSC Co-chairs. Discussions, recommendations and decisions of each SNSC will be recorded in formal committee minutes. The SNSC meetings will be scheduled with sufficient time to address all items on the agenda.
- 8. An agreed to joint communications document will be completed each meeting and shared by the Employer and Union.
- Each SNSC shall report quarterly to the Nurse Staffing Secretariat Steering Committee (NSC) via the Nurse Staffing Secretariat (NSS) on work, both successes and challenges. The SNSCs may access support from the NSS.
- I0. The SNSC will be reviewed annually to determine its effectiveness. The NSS will draft measurable metrics for determining effectiveness.

This Memorandum of Agreement shall expire on March 31, 2022_unless HEABC and the NBA expressly agree otherwise.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm | |
|--|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

APPENDIX KK - MOA Re: Professional Responsibility Process

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement is to clarify and streamline the process through which professional practice problems are addressed.

Background

In the 2014-2019 NBA Collective Agreement, the parties restructured the professional responsibility ("PR") process under Article 59 (Professional Responsibility Clause) and improved collaboration through the creation of PR guidelines and joint education.

Since a large majority of PR concerns were related to staffing, the parties also agreed that it was necessary to address these concerns through an alternative process.

Professional Responsibility Process

The parties now agree to a revised PR process to address only professional practice problems, which includes any practice problem related to the Nursing Standards of Practice of the provincial regulatory body including those which may put patients, residents and/or clients at risk.

The parties agree to implement the following collaborative, problem-solving process for Health Authorities/PHC:

1. If a professional practice problem arises, the nurse will have a discussion with their excluded manager or excluded designate to try to address the practice problem at the local level.

At their discretion, the nurse may choose to bring a colleague to the discussion.

The nurse or the manager may seek advice from the Health Authority/PHC Professional Practice Office ("PPO") and/or the Provincial Union Professional Practice Department or designate as advised by the Union (the "Union PPD").

The nurse and the manager should discuss the practice problem and agree on a reasonable timeframe to implement changes and/or complete further follow-up. The nurse and manager may include other participants as needed, such as a nurse educator, to assist with addressing the practice problem.

The parties' mutual intention is to collaborate on solutions that address the practice problem. It is recognized that achieving solutions may involve further work by the manager and/or the nurse prior to resolving the practice problem.

- 2. Prior to any escalation of the practice problem, if the Health Authority/PHC PPO was not involved in the discussions, the PPO will review the practice problem and my may assist the nurse and the manager to resolve it.
- 3. If the nurse believes that the PPO is not available within a reasonable timeframe, the practice problem has not been fully addressed or that the implementation timeframe is not reasonable after involving the Health Authority/PHC PPO, the nurse may submit a Professional Responsibility Form (PRF) to the excluded manager. A copy of the PRF will be sent to the Health Authority/PHC PPO and the Union PPD.
- 4. The Union PPD will review the PRF and may have further discussions with the nurse and/or the Health Authority/PHC PPO.
- 5. If the practice problem is not resolved, the Union PPD will create a report outlining the practice problem, a summary of any solutions identified by the parties, any further recommendations, and any outstanding concerns.
- 6. This report will be sent to the respective Health Authority/PHC Chief Nursing officer ("CNO") with a copy sent to the Health Authority/PHC PPO, the nurse and the manager. The CNO will acknowledge receipt of the report in writing to the parties and will provide a response including any further actions suggested, or agreed to, by the CNO.

The parties agree to implement the following collaborative, problem-solving process for Affiliates:

I. Where the nurse identifies a professional practice problem, they will initiate a discussion with the excluded manager or excluded designate. At their discretion, the nurse may choose to bring a colleague to the discussion.

The nurse and the excluded manager or excluded designate:

- a) will collaborate on solutions;
- b) will agree on a reasonable timeframe to implement changes and/or complete further follow-up;
- c) may include other participants in the discussion as needed (e.g. educator); and
- d) may seek advice from the provincial regulatory body and/or Union PPD.
- 2. If the practice problem is not resolved, the nurse will fill out a PRF and copy the Union PPD, the excluded manager and the Affiliate Executive Director.
- 3. The Union PPD will review the PRF and may have further discussions with the nurse, excluded manager, excluded designate and/or the Affiliate Executive Director.
- 4. If the practice problem remains unresolved:
 - a) the Union PPD will create a report as described in paragraph 5 above and send it to the Affiliate Executive Director with a copy to the nurse and the excluded manager;
 - b) the Affiliate Executive Director will acknowledge receipt of the report in writing to the parties and will provide a response including any further actions suggested, or agreed to, by the Affiliate Executive Director.

The parties further agree that:

(A) Staffing and workload issues will be addressed through a separate process.

- (B) Nurse safety issues are addressed through Article 32 Occupational Health and Safety Program and the Workers Compensation Act.
- (C) Ongoing, timely communication is an important element in the PR process.
- (D) The PR process is a joint problem-solving and learning process and is not expected to result in any discipline.
- (E) The PR process is not a labour relations process. If the nurse brings a colleague to the discussions who is also a Union steward they will attend in a support role only.
- (F) Funding for additional professional practice resources per Health Authority/PHC and Affiliates will be provided through this Agreement, to be determined and mutually agreed by the parties. Such resources may include additional work to support point of care nurses through mentorship, leadership and/or other means agreed by the parties.
- (G) Within sixty (60) days of ratification:
 - i. The parties will create a PR working group comprised of up to three (3) representatives each from the Employer and the Union.
 - ii. The PR working group will communicate to the Health Authorities/PHC that all outstanding PRFs at the Health Authority/PHC Senior Review Committee ("SRC"), or in referral stage, will stay at the SRC level through until their closure.
 - iii. The union PPD will review all PRFs filed December 1, 2017 up to and including date of ratification and identify those related to practice problems.
 - The PRFs related to practice problems will be brought to the PR working group.
 - The remaining PRFs will be themed. The Union PPD will prepare a report for the Health Authority/PHC Vice President of Human Resources. The Health Authority/PHC will review the report and provide a summary of the outcome(s) to the Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee.
 - iv. Effective the date of ratification, nurses will continue to raise and discuss practice problems with their excluded manager or excluded designate to try to address the practice problem at the local level. The nurse or the manager may seek advice from the Health Authority/PHC PPO and/or the Union PPD or designate as advised by the Union PPD.
- (H) Within a further ninety (90) days, the PR working group will:
 - i. Review the outstanding PRFs identified by the Union PPD in (G)(iii) above and apply for the new PR process.
 - ii. Develop and deliver a joint communication that will outline the process that is underway, advise authors and the Employer that the PR file is closed, and provide the authors' options under the new process.
 - iii. Create a new mutually agreeable Professional Responsibility form (PRF), joint guidelines and education, a communication plan on the new process and the new PRF, and other matters as mutually agreed by the parties.

(I) The PR working group will determine a provincial evaluation plan and metrics to assess the new PR process and PRF.

This Memorandum of Agreement replaces Article 59 (Professional Responsibility Clause) effective the date of ratification for the term of this Agreement and will expire <u>upon ratification</u> of the next collective agreement on March 31, 2022. Upon expiration of this Memorandum of Agreement, the parties will return to the process under Article 59, unless the parties expressly agree otherwise.

| Agreed to this | _ day of | _ 2023, at | _am/pm |
|---|----------|--|---------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | BC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | Λ. |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Ser | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | I Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by change the following:

APPENDIX QQ - MOA Re: Clinical Mentorship

Background

The parties recognize that quality nursing practice is essential to the provision of safe patient care. Practical nursing skills are largely learned on the unit, whether through the consolidation of skills as new nurses, or through continuous learning as nurses progress through their careers.

The parties agree that nurses benefit from consistent, experienced mentorship and support at the unit level. Increasing clinical mentorship also aids with skill development, retention and recruitment and the promotion of safe patient care.

Clinical Mentor Positions

The parties agree to create clinical mentor positions in the units, departments, or programs jointly identified by the Strategic Nurse Staffing Committee (SNSC) as most benefiting from clinical mentorship, including but not limited to acute care, community care, mental health, and long-term care. If the SNSC cannot agree on where to place the clinical mentor positions, the Nurse Staffing Secretariat (NBA and HEABC reps) will support the SNSC on where to place the positions. for the term of this Agreement. The majority of these positions will support Primary and Community Care.

Clinical mentors will primarily be responsible for providing rapid, elbow-to-elbow clinical mentorship on the unit, department, or program. They will also work in conjunction with nurse educators to provide on-going education.

Clinical mentors will be included on the master rotation and be scheduled to work on day, night and weekend shifts. Clinical mentors will be paid at a Level 4 rate of pay and will not carry a caseload or provide relief.

Clinical mentors should have at least <u>three</u> (3) years of nursing experience, and have recent, relevant experience <u>in the respective practice area in</u> on the unit(s) on which they will provide mentorship.

The Employer will develop a clinical mentor job description and provide it to the Union at the SNSC level within sixty (60) days of ratification. Within a further sixty (60) days of ratification, the Employer will post and fill these positions.

The Employer will also regularly provide all relevant data at the SNSC level so that the parties can evaluate these positions.

The NBA will allocate the following amounts to fund pilot positions.: (a) \$2 million on April 1, 2019; and

(b) \$2 million on April 1, 2020;

120

Each Health Authority/Providence Health Care will create the following number of clinical mentor positions:

| | <u>FHA</u> | <u>IHA</u> | NHA | <u>PHC</u> | <u>PHSA</u> | VCHA | VIHA | TOTAL |
|------------|------------|------------|-----------|------------|-------------|-----------|-----------|-------|
| <u>FTE</u> | <u>38</u> | <u>24</u> | <u>15</u> | <u>11</u> | <u>11</u> | <u>27</u> | <u>24</u> | 150 |

From the FTE allocation above, SNSCs at each regional Health Authority will develop and implement a plan to provide clinical mentor support for nurses at affiliate employers in their region. The plan to support nurses at affiliate employers will be reviewed by PNAC.

The parties will allocate \$965,000 to jointly develop standardized clinical mentor orientation, education materials, and training. The training program will be approved by the Ministry of Health prior to implementation and will be provided by each Health Authority/PHC to all clinical mentors.

| Agreed to this 30th day of Marc | h 2023, at 10:55 ampm |
|---|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

APPENDIX W Re: Full-Time Steward Positions

The MOA titled Administration and Remuneration for NBA Full-Time Stewards, Enhanced Disability Management Regional Representatives, and Stewards at Large, dated March 31, 2021, will no longer be in effect as of the date of ratification.

APPENDIX W Re: Full-Time Steward and Steward at Large Positions

Full-Time Stewards (FTS)

In the interest of developing quality labour-management relationships the parties have agreed to the continuation of full-time steward (FTS) positions at the following locations:

| Vancouver General Hospital | 2.0 FTE |
|------------------------------------|------------------|
| UBC Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Lions Gate Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Richmond Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| BC Children's and Women's Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| St. Paul's Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Mt. St. Joseph's Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Royal Columbian Hospital | <u>2</u> ∔.0 FTE |
| Royal Jubilee Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Victoria General Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| Nanaimo Regional General Hospital | I.0 FTE |

122

| Kelowna General Hospital | I.0 FTE |
|--|--------------|
| Royal Inland Hospital | I.0 FTE |
| University Hospital of Northern BC | I.0 FTE |
| Surrey | 2.0 FTE |
| Burnaby | I.0 FTE |
| Abbotsford | I.0 FTE |
| Langley (with Community) | I.0 FTE |
| Eagle Ridge (with Community) | I.0 FTE |
| Chilliwack (with Community) | I.0 FTE |
| Vernon | I.0 FTE |
| South Island (LTC & Community) | I.0 FTE |
| Vancouver (Community) | 1.0 FTE |
| Forensic Psychiatric Hospital and Forensic Clinics | 1.0 FTE |
| Total | 27.024.0 FTE |

In addition to the above positions, the parties agree effective April 1, 2019 to create an additional two (2) FTE positions at the following locations:

| Vancouver (Community) | 1.0 FTE |
|--|---------|
| Forensic Psychiatric Hospital and Forensic Clinics | 1.0 FTE |
| Total | 2.0 FTE |

The parties agree that the twenty-seven six (276) FTE allocation may be reviewed to provide re-distribution of hours to meet changing needs. Such re-distribution will be upon mutual agreement and will not exceed the twenty-seven six (276) FTE allocation. These positions are intended to:

- promote understanding between the Union and the Employer through improved communications and relationships;
- provide leadership and mentorship to designated stewards;
- spend the majority of their time conducting union business;
- coordinate and assign duties and responsibilities of stewards as well as perform such duties when deemed appropriate and necessary by the <u>FTS</u> full-time steward;
- promote cultural safety and support the principles of diversity, equity and inclusivity.
- work collaboratively to resolve workplace differences short of grievance and arbitration;
 and
- track worksite issues and monitor trends.

Within one hundred and twenty (120) days of ratification, the parties agree to create an additional four (4) province-wide full-time stewards to promote Truth and Reconciliation, cultural safety and diversity, equity, and inclusion in the workplace.

Full-time stewards are entitled to up to a maximum of six (6) weeks of vacation backfill. An amount equal to three-two-(32) FTE have been allocated to Health Authorities/Providence Health Care on a proportional basis for this backfill. An additional one (1) FTE will be allocated to Health Authorities on a proportional basis for this backfill for a total of three (3) FTEs.

To minimize the impacts on patient care and contain the costs in providing backfill for representatives, where issues arise with respect to backfill coverage, such issues will be discussed between the parties.

Stewards at Large (SAL)

The parties agree to the continuation of the seventeen (17) Steward at Large positions, one from each BCNU region.

SAL positions will be allocated as follows:

| Coastal Mountain | I.0 FTE |
|-------------------------|----------|
| Richmond Vancouver | I.0 FTE |
| Central Vancouver | I.0 FTE |
| Vancouver Metro | I.0 FTE |
| Shaughnessy Heights | I.0 FTE |
| Simon Fraser | I.0 FTE |
| South Fraser Valley | I.0 FTE |
| Fraser Valley | I.0 FTE |
| South Islands | I.0 FTE |
| Pacific Rim | I.0 FTE |
| North West | I.0 FTE |
| North East | I.0 FTE |
| Okanagan Similkameen | I.0 FTE |
| Thompson North Okanagan | I.0 FTE |
| West Kootenay | I.0 FTE |
| East Kootenay | I.0 FTE |
| NBA Constituent Unions | 1.0 FTE |
| <u>Total</u> | 17.0 FTE |

The Parties agree that the seventeen (17) FTE allocation may be reviewed to provide re-distribution of hours to meet changing needs. Such re-distribution will be upon mutual agreement and will not exceed the seventeen (17) FTE allocation.

These positions are intended to:

- promote understanding between the Union and the Employer through improved communications and relationships;
- provide leadership and mentorship to designated stewards;
- spend the majority of their time conducting Article 6 work;

- work collaboratively to resolve workplace differences short of grievance and arbitration;
- promote cultural safety and support the principles of diversity, equity and inclusivity; and
- track worksite issues and monitor trends.

SAL positions will be selected from staff of the Health Authority/Providence Health Care site from within their region.

General

These positions are intended to be full-time and to operate on a regular schedule from Monday to Friday, unless the parties at a particular location mutually decide otherwise. Agreement on alternative arrangements will not be unreasonably withheld.

In the event that either the Health Authority/Providence Health Care or the Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA) have concerns regarding the effectiveness of the working relationship at a particular location, the Vice President of Human Resources and the senior NBA representative will meet to discuss the most appropriate means of addressing the issues.

The effectiveness of the labour/management relationships will be evaluated on a yearly basis by a representative of the Union and the Employer through the examination of factors such as the disposition of grievances, improved resolution of workplace differences short of grievance or arbitration, as well as initiatives that have improved communications.

The parties agree to support joint education on topics which promote the development of quality labour/management relationships. In situations where facilitators/educators are used, such cost will be shared equally by the Employers and the Union.

The parties agree to the following principles as they relate to the union-management relationship and the application of the PCA:

- a. SAL and FTS will normally be the first point of contact for Article 6 work subject to their availability. Other worksite stewards will continue to perform work pursuant to Article 6 as per the PCA.
- b. The parties agree to use technology, where appropriate, (e.g., ZOOM, teleconference) to allow incumbents to support remote sites in a cost efficient and effective manner.
- c. Normally, one (I) union steward is required time off to perform work outlined in Article 6.03 and 6.04 at the same time, unless otherwise agreed between the Employer and Union at the local level. Notwithstanding, meetings should normally have a similar number of attendees from the Employer and the Union.
- d. In the event that the Union desires an additional person to attend for mentorship or training, they may apply for union leave under Article 44.0 I (F).

Full-time stewards are entitled to up to a maximum of six (6) weeks of vacation backfill. An amount equal to two (2) FTE have been allocated to Health Authorities on a proportional basis for this backfill. An additional one (1) FTE will be allocated to Health Authorities on a proportional basis for this backfill for a total of three (3) FTEs.

Hours of Work and Remuneration

- I. All positions are intended to be full-time and incumbents will be considered regular full-time status while occupying the positions unless otherwise mutually agreed by the Union and Employer.
- 2. Hours of work are 37.5 hours per week on a regular schedule from Monday to Friday, unless the parties (local employer and designated Union staff representative) at a particular location mutually decide otherwise. Agreement on alternative arrangements will not be unreasonably withheld.
- 3. Daily hours of work will depend on the individual workload which may vary.
- 4. Schedules will be communicated to the Employer.
- 5. All positions will have a mutually agreed home site.
- 6. All positions will be paid at Nurse Level 3, Step 15 of the wage rate grid while occupying the position. Service for the purpose of wage increments in their original positions will accrue and be credited upon their return to their original position in accordance with the collective agreement.
- 7. In the event that an existing incumbent is receiving a higher rate of pay, they will be wage protected at their current rate of pay as long as they remain in the position. Such nurses are eligible for any negotiated general wage increases.
- 8. Compensation is based on straight-time hours and does not include overtime worked within or attached to their original position.
- 9. Compensation for wages and premiums is based on the principle that incumbents should not lose overall earnings as a result of filling one of these positions. Incumbents will be compensated for all premiums that they would have been entitled to in accordance with their original position except Article 28.045 Short Notice Premium while occupying the position.
- 10. The premiums paid will be based on an average of all hours paid that attracted the applicable premium within the 12 months immediately preceding the incumbent's commencement in the position. In circumstances where the incumbent held their original position for less than 12 months prior to commencement in the position, the average will be based on the shorter period. The average will be paid on a bi-weekly basis in accordance with the Employer's pay periods. Article 28.05 Regular Premium entitlement for existing incumbents as of April 1, 2023 will be calculated based on the annual average hours worked by a full-time nurse pro-rated by the FTE of their regular position with the Employer.
- 11. Incumbents should undertake to schedule their work so as not to incur overtime.

 Overtime worked in the position must be authorized in accordance with the PCA.
- 12. Incumbents are permitted to accept nursing work offered by the Employer outside their position which will be applied and paid as per the PCA, including at overtime rates where applicable.
- 13. Any benefits that are not collective agreement rights but were in place prior to starting in the position, such as parking, will continue as long as they are in effect between the parties.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|----------|----------------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of th | ne HEABC | Signed on behalf of | the NBA |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Exe Negotiations & Mem | | Jim Gould, Interim Negotiator | CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

APPENDIX XX MOA Re: Preceptor Premium

<u>Preceptorships involve a formal relationship of a pre-determined length of time between a preceptor and a preceptee.</u>

A preceptee is:

- (a) a student who requires regulatory supervision to practice in a clinical setting while in:
 - a. an entry-level program recognized by the BCCNM,
 - b. a specialty education program (including in-house specialty programs), or
 - c. a program from other provinces or territories in Canada approved by the applicable regulator; or
- (b) an internationally trained nurse who is granted provisional licensure by the BCCNM and requires supervision to complete their competency assessments.

(the "Preceptee")

A preceptor is a nurse designated by the Employer based on educational and regulatory requirements to provide supervision for a Preceptee (the "Preceptor"). Nurses acting as a Preceptor take on greater responsibility and accountability for both the activities and overall learning of a Preceptee. This may include a licensed practical nurse, licensed graduate nurse, registered nurse, or a registered psychiatric nurse. Duties of a Preceptor may include, but are not limited to:

- (a) Authorizing student actions,
- (b) Assessing readiness for more complex duties,
- (c) Monitoring and reporting on learning goals and outcomes as related to the identified competencies,
- (d) Obtaining consent from clients before authorizing a student to provide care,
- (e) Assessing and mitigating risk arising from nursing student activities, and
- (f) Organizing supervision from other nurses for student activities.

In recognition of the greater responsibility, accountability, and additional duties, effective one hundred and twenty (120) days post ratification, a nurse designated by the Employer to act as a Preceptor will be paid a premium of \$1.50 per hour worked for the entire shift (the "Preceptor Premium").

| Agreed to this 30th | day of March | 2023, at <u>10:30</u> am | n p m |
|--|--------------|---|--------------|
| Signed on behalf of the H | IEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executi Negotiations & Member | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Ch Negotiator | nief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

APX XX MOA Re: 2023 Wage Schedule Adjustments

The parties will, on a one-time basis, apply adjustments to the increment steps in the wage schedules, effective April 1, 2023, as follows:

Level I and Level 2 Nurse Wage Schedules

Increment Years 2 and 3: No change:

<u>Increment Years 4 to Year 9: Adjust increment steps to result in increment step</u> increases of \$0.95/hour; and

Increment Year 10: Add a new Year 10 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.95/hour from Year 9.

Increment Year 15: Add a new Year 15 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.50/hour from the previous increment step (Year 10).

Increment Year 20: Add a new Year 20 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.75/hour from the previous increment step (Year 15).

Increment Year 25: Add a new Year 25 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.00/hour from the previous increment step (Year 20).

Increment Year 30: Add a new Year 30 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.25/hour from the previous increment step (Year 25).

Level 3 Nurse Wage Schedule

Increment Years 2 and 3: No change;

Increment Years 4 to 9: Adjust increment steps to result in increment step increases of \$1.57/hour; and

Increment Year 10: Add a new Year 10 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.57/hour from Year 9.

Increment Year 15: Add a new Year 15 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.50/hour from the previous increment step (Year 10).

Increment Year 20: Add a new Year 20 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.75/hour from the previous increment step (Year 15).

Increment Year 25: Add a new Year 25 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.00/hour from the previous increment step (Year 20).

Increment Year 30: Add a new Year 30 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.25/hour from the previous increment step (Year 25).

Level 4, Level 5, and Level 6 Nurse Wage Schedules

Increment Years 2 and 3: Adjust increment steps to result in increment step increases of \$1.50/hour;

Increment Years 4 to 9: Adjust increment steps to result in increment step increases of \$1.55/hour; and

Increment Year 10: Add a new Year 10 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.55/hour from Year 9.

Increment Year 15: Add a new Year 15 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.50/hour from the previous increment step (Year 10).

Increment Year 20: Add a new Year 20 increment step to result in an increase of \$0.75/hour from the previous increment step (Year 15).

Increment Year 25: Add a new Year 25 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.00/hour from the previous increment step (Year 20).

Increment Year 30: Add a new Year 30 increment step to result in an increase of \$1.25/hour from the previous increment step (Year 25).

For clarity, these adjustments will be applied after the application of the General Wage Increases (including COLA if applicable) for Years I and 2 of the agreement, but before the General Wage Increases (including COLA if applicable) are applied for Year 3 (April 2024) of the agreement.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|--|--------|----------------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the | HEABC | Signed on behalf o | f the NBA |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Execu Negotiations & Member | | Jim Gould, Interim Negotiator | CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

<u>APPENDIX XX - Memorandum of Agreement - Amendment to Appendix U.I</u> Health and Welfare Benefit

WHEREAS:

a. The Parties agree to amend the Appendix U.I Health and Welfare Benefits Memorandum of Agreement, dated March 30, 2023 (the "Appendix U.I MOA"), as described herein;

NOW THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows:

- I. Effective the date of the ratification of the 2022-2025 Nurses' Provincial Collective Agreement, the following provisions of the Appendix U.I MOA are amended as follows (additions underlined, deletions struck out):
 - a. <u>Notwithstanding the terms of Appendix U.I.</u>, the Parties will implement a prescribed benefit plan change model in accordance with this agreement by no later than January 1, 20263.
- 2. The dates for the project work schedule and plan as described in the Appendix U. I MOA will be revised to align with the implementation date.
- 3. The Appendix U.I MOA will otherwise remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

| _ day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
|-----------|--------------------|-----------------------|
| BC | Signed on behalf o | f the NBA |
| Director, | Jim Gould, Interim | CEO and Chief |
| | BC | BC Signed on behalf o |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

Appendix XX Memorandum of Agreement - Staffing Replacement

This Memorandum only applies to Health Authorities and PHC.

(A) Immediate Staffing Need (Short Term Replacement)

Staffing requirements are determined by patient care needs and staff scope and skill mix.

Where there are vacancies due to short-term absences, the Employer will make all reasonable efforts to replace those vacancies, except where the in-charge nurse and the manager agree that patient care needs can be met with the scheduled nurses.

The parties agree that in instances where patient care needs exceed the baseline capacity of a unit, department, or program, the Employer will make all reasonable efforts to call in additional nurses as necessary to meet patient care needs.

All reasonable efforts include:

- (i) Regular relief
- (ii) Casual staff
- (iii) Regular part-time staff
- (iv) Staff on overtime
- (v) Re-assign staff, where appropriate

Where reassignment is deemed appropriate within the shift, the Employer shall canvas qualified employees for a volunteer. In the event that no employee volunteers, the Employer may select an employee for reassignment.

Where the Employer reassigns an employee, it will be done in a fair and equitable manner. Employees in relief lines will not be reassigned any more often than employees who are part of baseline.

Employees assigned to a unit will receive and complete a unit/site specific introduction check-list.

If additional staff are necessary due to emergent circumstances, whether within a particular shift or for the next shift, and no management personnel are on the premises or otherwise immediately accessible to the employee in person or by telephone, the nurse who has been designated in-charge has the authority to call-in additional staff pursuant to

any policies in place respecting such call-ins for specific work units. For such call-ins, call in by seniority pursuant to Article I I.04 shall not apply.

Where the Employer has received forty-eight (48) hours' or less notice of a vacancy creating relief work as per Article I I.04(A), the first shift of the vacancy and any remaining shifts in that block may be filled as the Employer deems most efficient.

(B) Future and Predictable Staffing Needs (Long Term Replacement)

The Employer reviews predictable relief needs and makes all reasonable efforts to replace staff on leave except where service levels are reduced. The Employer will determine the need for regular relief and/or advanced hire positions. Other options for future and predictable staffing needs may include temporary postings or temporary appointments pursuant to Article 11.04 and Article 17.

Such leaves include, but are not limited to:

Vacation

Sick leave

Union leave

(i)

<u>(ii)</u> (iii)

| (iv) (v) | Maternity/Parental leave Long-term disability | | |
|-------------------------------|---|----------------------------------|---------------|
| Agreed to th | nis day of | 2023, at | am/pm |
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| • | man, Executive Director, s & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim Negotiator | CEO and Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

Contingent on the parties' agreement to coinciding changes made to Appendix EE — Integration of Licensed Practical Nurses and the Deletions proposal into the NBA Provincial Collective Agreement.

APPENDIX Y - MOA Re: Pension for Retirees

Effective April I, 2008, provided that the Municipal Pension Plan rules can be changed which the Employer agrees to support, the Union agrees to convert the 2008 one (I) percent market adjustment to provide funding for inflation protection and benefits for retirees who were members of the Nurses' Bargaining Association (NBA) constituent unions.

Effective April 1, 2024, the one (1) percent market adjustment will be expanded to include Licensed Practical Nurses.

| Agreed to this | day of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|---|--------|---------------------------------------|-------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | вс | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive I Negotiations & Member Serv | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

MOA Re: Cost of Living Adjustment

Definitions

"General Wage Increase" or "GWI" means the overall general wage increase expressed as a percentage.

"Cost of Living Adjustment" or "COLA" means a percentage-based general wage increase adjustment provided in accordance with this Memorandum of Agreement. COLA is an upward adjustment applied to and folded into all wage rates.

The "annualized average of BC CPI over twelve months" (AABC CPI) means the Latest 12-month Average Index % Change reported by BC Stats in March for British Columbia for the twelve months starting at the beginning of March in the preceding year and concluding at the end of the following February.

The "Latest 12-month Average Index", as defined by BC Stats, is a 12-month moving average of the BC consumer price indexes of the most recent 12 months. This figure is calculated by averaging index levels over the applicable 12 months.

The Latest 12-month Average Index % Change is reported publicly by BC Stats in the monthly BC Stats Consumer Price Index Highlights report. The BC Stats Consumer Price Index Highlights report released in mid-March will contain the applicable figure for the 12-months concluding at the end of February. The percentage change reported by BC Stats that will form the basis for determining any COLA increase is calculated to one decimal point. For reference purposes only, the annualized average of BC CPI over twelve months from March 1, 2021 to February 28, 2022 was 3.4%.

COLA

The COLA will be applied as applicable to the GWI effective on the first pay period after April I, 2023 and April I, 2024. The COLA will be calculated by determining the difference between the AABC CPI and the annual general wage increase to the maximum COLA prescribed that year in Article 63 – Wage Schedule.

April 2023

If the 2023 AABC CPI exceeds the April 2023 GWI of 5.5%, then, on the first pay period after April I, 2023 the April 2023 GWI will be adjusted upwards to reflect a COLA equal to the difference between the April 2023 GWI and the 2023 AABC CPI up to a maximum of 1.25%.

April 2024

If the 2024 AABC CPI exceeds the April 2024 GWI of 2.0%, then, on the first pay period after April 1, 2024 the April 2024 GWI will be adjusted upwards to reflect a COLA equal to the difference between the April 2024 GWI and the 2024 AABC CPI up to a maximum of 1.00%.

| Agreed to this | _ day of | _ 2023, at | am/pm |
|--|----------|---------------------------------------|-------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEA | ABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| | | | |
| James Suderman, Executive Negotiations & Member Ser | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

MOA Re: Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group

- I. The parties agree that addressing and improving diversity, equity and inclusion (DEI) in the workplace is a priority for the health sector, not only for healthcare staff, but also to better serve patients, clients and residents.
- 2. The parties have a joint interest in creating safe, inclusive work environments by developing approaches to foster positive spaces, identifying and making efforts to remove barriers to individuals of under-represented groups, and making recommendations to employers and employees to further diversity, equity and inclusion in the workplace.
- 3. Accordingly, within 120 days of ratification the parties will establish a coordinated and integrated provincial and sector-wide Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group (the "Working Group").
- 4. The Working Group will be established by Provincial Health Human Resources Coordination Centre (PHHRCC) and will include representatives from health authorities, other HEABC member representatives, and health sector bargaining associations.
- 5. The Working Group may invite subject matter experts and other relevant government ministries to attend as guests and to participate in conversations as needed.
- 6. The Working Group will meet quarterly (or as otherwise agreed) and will complete their work prior to March 31, 2025.
- 7. The Working Group's focus will be the advancement of diversity, equity and inclusion in health care workplaces and the Working Group will:
 - Develop terms of reference;
 - Engage and consult stakeholders as required;
 - Gather all necessary data in accordance with applicable privacy legislation in advance of the Working Group's meetings to inform discussions and actions of the Working Group;
 - Conduct a review and analysis of available relevant data to benchmark the current state of the health care workforce with the intention to identify current gaps in under-represented workers;
 - Support the creation of a safe and discrimination-free workplace;
 - <u>Identify solutions to address barriers to employment and career advancement;</u>
 - Review available data in accordance with applicable privacy legislation;

- Review existing health authority/Providence Health Care (PHC) DEI programs and actions to identify gaps; and
- Recommend a framework and action plan to improve diversity, equity and inclusion in healthcare workplaces, in concert with existing health authority/PHC work. Recommendations may include:
 - i. suggestions to the Ministry of Health for the supports and resources necessary to advance DEI initiatives and foster inclusive environments; and
 - ii. suggestions to the Ministry of Health or health authorities/PHC on employee DEI training, which may include anti-racism training, gender and sexual diversity training, anti-harassment training, and disability awareness training.
- 8. The Working Group will make recommendations to PHHRCC.
- 9. The parties will work co-operatively to implement and promote the framework and action plan if the recommendations are adopted by the Ministry of Health and the health authorities/PHC.

| Agreed to this 28th | day of March | _ 2023, at | am p m |
|---|--------------|---------------------------------------|---------------|
| Signed on behalf of the HEAI | ВС | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive D Negotiations & Member Serv | | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Negotiator | Chief |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

MOA Re: Gender Diversity and Inclusion

General Inclusion & Gender-Affirming Support

The parties agree to the following:

- I. The parties agree that Two-Spirit, gender-diverse and transgender people have experienced and continue to experience barriers to respect, representation and safety in the workforce. Addressing these concerns in the health sector workforce is a critical strategy to ensure equity and inclusion within the health care system for both employees and patients/residents/clients/service users. To that end, the parties will actively engage in creating culturally safe and anti-racist workplaces that are inclusive of gender diversity, which may include policies and practices with a gender inclusive lens, gender-affirming leave(s), and workspaces for gender-diverse individuals and ongoing educational resources and supports.
- 2. The parties will work together to protect the job security, privacy, and safety of Two-Spirit, transgender, and gender diverse employees at all times in accordance with the Collective Agreement and legislation.
- 3. Upon an employee's request, the Employer will work with the employee (and the Union, if requested) to prepare a gender-affirming support plan that is respectful, employee-centered, and tailored to the employee's particular needs, including how and if any name or pronoun changes will be communicated.
- 4. Employees may request that the Employer correct their personal information, such as legal name and gender changes, on employee records, directories, and workplace documents. This may include seniority lists, nametags, employee IDs, email addresses, organizational charts, health care coverage and schedules and human resources documents. Employers will correct personal information pursuant to applicable privacy law.
- 5. Gender identity and expression are protected grounds pursuant to the B.C. Human Rights Code discrimination. Gender-based discrimination can happen at the workplace or online and includes but is not limited to intentional:
 - Deadnaming (using employee's former name);
 - Misgendering (referring to someone using a word or pronoun that does not reflect their gender); and/or
 - Doxxing (intentional sharing personal information, including old photos or medical information for the purpose of harassment or online mobbing).

- 6. Employers will review current policies and procedures to ensure they are gender inclusive.
- 7. Employers will make gender inclusive resources available to employees and managers.

This MOA is not intended to limit the work of the DEI Working Group in advancing gender inclusion in the workplace.

Gender-Affirming Medical Leave

Effective April I, 2023, the Employer will grant an employee a cumulative total of up to eight (8) weeks of leave with pay for medical procedures and revisions. Additional paid or unpaid leave may be provided through collective agreement leave provisions.

Bathrooms/Change Rooms

An employee worker may use the bathroom/changeroom of their lived gender regardless of whether or not they have sought or completed surgeries or completed a legal name or gender change. Employers will:

- A) Ensure single occupant bathrooms/changerooms (where they exist) on their worksite premises are accessible by employees of any gender identity or expression by ensuring there is signage welcoming all genders and confirm this to the NBA within six (6) months of ratification and
- B) Post signage in all bathroom/changeroom facilities about diverse genders being welcome in these spaces.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm |
|---|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

MOA Re: Joint Provincial Health Human Resources Coordination Centre (PHHRCC) – Bargaining Association Consultation Forum

Social, environmental, demographic, and economic factors are increasing the demand for healthcare within British Columbia. To deliver the required services a skilled and engaged workforce is required. That workforce is integral to a robust, accessible public system with the ability to rapidly respond to key challenges.

The past few years have been a time of unprecedented change and challenge for B.C.'s health workforce. It is important for the system to have a coordinated approach to identify important themes, address challenges, and build upon existing resources to create a sustainable, equitable, and effective healthcare system.

To effectively deliver on this work the Ministry of Health has established a new Provincial Health Human Resources Coordination Centre (PHHRCC) with membership from the Ministry of Health, Health Sector Workforce and Beneficiary Services Division, regional health authorities, the Provincial Health Services Authority, the Health Employers Association of B.C., and the First Nations Health Authority. The PHHRCC reports to Leadership Council.

The PHHRCC is intended to bring significant focus, attention and discipline to key provincial-level human resource planning activities and initiatives. It will identify strategic actions, develop implementation plans for key approaches, and provide governance, oversight and monitoring of the implementation of these plans. The PHHRCC will look at both intermediate and long-term strategies and actions, as well as address urgent challenges through immediate action, including a focus on supporting Indigenous workers and supporting development of a culturally safe workplace.

In furtherance of the work of the PHHRCC, the Ministry of Health wishes to create a forum for input from Unions. To that end, on a regular basis the Ministry will convene a joint PHHRCC – Bargaining Association consultation forum for the following purposes:

- I. Seek input from the Bargaining Associations on evolution and implementation of the Provincial Health Human Resource (HHR) Strategy.
- 2. Seek input from the Bargaining Associations on issues facing their members with respect to HHR plans, including a specific focus on supporting equity and diversity in the workforce and advancing the recommendations set out through In Plain Sight.
- 3. Seek input from the Bargaining Associations on specific initiatives and plans, including a specific focus on strategies or actions to support the retention of the workforce, including mental health and wellness

Revised 2/!/2023 6:02 PM Page 1 of 2 4. Consult with the Bargaining Associations on other initiatives that may be considered by PHHRCC.

PHHRCC acknowledges the mutual covenants binding the Parties (HEABC and the NBA) through the terms and conditions of the Collective Agreement. When enacting activities and initiatives, PHHRCC shall give recognition to the process for amending these terms and conditions.

By XX, the Ministry of Health will convene the Forum and present the Terms of Reference for input prior to finalization by the Ministry.

The Ministry intends for this Forum to serve all interested parties in the provincial health care sector, not only the Nurses Subsector. To that end, the Ministry will make efforts to promote participation in the Forum on a provincial and sector-wide basis.

The Ministry of Health shall hold the Forum semi-annually, or more frequently as deemed necessary.

| Agreed to this _ | 2nd | day of February 2023, at | 1445 | am/pm |
|------------------|-----|--------------------------|------|-------|
|------------------|-----|--------------------------|------|-------|

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement by deleting the following:

- Appendix A.3 Memorandum of Agreement re: NBA Occupational Health, Safety and Violence Prevention Initiatives
- Appendix D Memorandum of Agreement re: Working Group for A Provincial Framework on Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) in Health Care

and adding the following Memorandum of Agreement

MOA Re: Provincial Occupational Health and Safety

The parties share a common interest in preventing workplace injuries and promoting safe and healthy workplaces at all worksites, throughout the health care sector.

The parties acknowledge the need for a provincially coordinated and integrated effort to improve the health and safety of health care workers and to establish systems to implement the shared objectives below:

- Promote a safe and healthy work environment and organizational safety culture through prevention of injury initiatives, safe workloads, promotion of safer work practices and healthy workforces, including pilot and demonstration programs;
- Prevent and reduce the incidence of injuries (physical and psychological) and occupational diseases;
- Support the adoption of leading (best) practices, programs or models;
- Facilitate co-operation between unions and employers on health and safety issues;
- Facilitate and provide education and training for effective functioning of local Joint Occupational Health and Safety committees:
- Share information, data, and experience across the sector;
- Improve awareness of and compliance with Workers Compensation Act, Occupational Health and Safety Regulation and relevant physical and psychological standards; and
- Support the implementation of Canadian Standards Association (CSA) Standards for Occupational Health and Safety Management and Psychological Health and Safety in the Workplace.

And where as the BC Health Care Occupational Health and Safety Society (currently known as SWITCH BC) was jointly established in November 2020 to provide the organizational basis for an innovative and collaborative initiative to influence, invest in and support province wide initiatives to improve health care worker health and safety. SWITCH BC was built on the following principles:

- Broad stakeholder engagement in governance;
- Collaborative approach;
- Transparency;
- Evidence based decision making; and
- Accountability/Commitment (Compliance).

Therefore, the parties agree as follows:

- I. The parties commit to support SWITCH BC in carrying on with occupational health and safety projects previously agreed to in support of the healthcare sector.
- 2. In the event of the dissolution of SWITCH BC for any reason, the parties will meet to discuss an alternative provincial occupational health and safety structure.
- 3. Per Appendix A.I, HEABC will contribute a sum of \$1,290,000 per annum to the NBA for occupational health and safety initiatives. The NBA may use all or part of the funding allocated to it to contribute towards provincial projects undertaken by SWITCH BC, or the NBA may choose to use all or part of this funding to, in conjunction with the member Employers and HEABC, identify and address initiatives specific to the NBA.

| Agreed to this | day of | 2023, at | am/pm | |
|--|-----------------|-----------------------------|---------------|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | | Signed on behalf of the NBA | | |
| James Suderman, Even | Sutive Director | Jim Gould, Interim | CEO and Chief | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | | Negotiator | CEO and Chief | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

MOA Re: Recruitment and Retention of Indigenous Employees

- I. The parties agree that Indigenous peoples are under-represented as employees in the health care system, and Indigenous peoples have historically experienced barriers to accessing health care services. The parties also recognize the important and significant qualities, contributions and perspectives that Indigenous nurses bring to patients/residents/clients/service users and the healthcare system. Addressing the under-representation of Indigenous peoples in the health sector workforce is a critical strategy to ensure cultural safety within the health care system for both employees and patients/residents/clients/service users. To that end, the parties will actively support employment equity programs to promote the hiring of Indigenous employees into the health care system, and to increase Indigenous representation within the NBA bargaining unit.
- 2. To support the recruitment and retention of Indigenous employees, and to improve the care of Indigenous patients/residents/clients/service users across the health care system, the parties recognize that Employers may select an Indigenous candidate, even where they are not the most senior qualified candidate, when one or more of the following circumstances exist:
 - the Employer has identified a position that provides care or services to Indigenous communities or Indigenous patients/residents/clients/service users and requires the cultural expertise or knowledge of Indigenous peoples, communities and/or nations;
 - where commitments to hire Indigenous peoples with external funding for programs have to be met; and/or
 - where the Employer has identified it is desirable to hire Indigenous peoples into leadership or mentorship roles.

Where there is more than one qualified Indigenous candidate, Employers will give consideration to, among other things, the communit(ies) involved, patient/resident/client/service user population, the candidates' Indigenous knowledge and experience and circumstances surrounding the role when determining the successful candidate.

Within the first thirty (30) days in the position, the successful candidate may elect to leave the position and return to their previously held position with that employer (if applicable). In such circumstances, they will give twenty-eight (28) days' notice to the employer.

Employers will not be required to repost and may select another candidate.

- 3. The parties agree that there may be new or existing positions that require lived experience or knowledge of Indigenous peoples, communities and/or nations. In such cases, the Employer has the management right to require such qualifications on the job description.
- 4. Further to the circumstances identified in paragraphs 2 and 3, in the absence of fully qualified applicants for a posted position, the Employer may choose to hire an Indigenous candidate who does not possess all required qualifications for the position but would become job ready through Employer-provided training, orientation or mentoring.
- 5. The parties will share information with the Forum described in the MOA re: Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples and Eliminating Indigenous Specific Racism in Healthcare regarding the use of this MOA.

| 2023, at am pm |
|--|
| Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |
| |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

Memorandum of Agreement Re: Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples and Eliminating Indigenous Specific Racism in Healthcare

The parties acknowledge the pervasive and ongoing harms of colonialism faced by Indigenous peoples. These harms include widespread systemic racism against Indigenous peoples in BC's health system, as highlighted in the 2020 In Plain Sight report.

The parties agree to uphold the *United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples*, which has been brought into the laws of British Columbia under the *Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act*, SBC 2019, c 44.

The parties commit to working together to address the ongoing harms of colonialism and racism faced by Indigenous patients, clients, residents, service users, health care staff and providers, including by:

- committing to reconciliation in health care by supporting comprehensive, system-wide changes that enable Indigenous-specific anti-racism, and cultural safety;
- working together to actively identify, address and rectify barriers in Collective Agreements; and
- working to increase the representation of Indigenous individuals in the healthcare workforce.

Accordingly, building on the work underway, the parties support the creation of a provincial forum, led by the Indigenous Health branch of the Ministry of Health, that will include representatives from HEABC, health authority Vice Presidents of Indigenous Health and other leaders, representatives of other HEABC members, and health sector bargaining associations to engage in collaborative discussions that will inform the work moving forward and best position the parties in future rounds of collective bargaining (the "Forum"). Ministry of Health may also invite representatives from other relevant groups identified by the Ministry of Health, including Indigenous Elders or Knowledge Keepers, to participate in the Forum.

By (date), Ministry of Health will establish the Forum and present the Terms of Reference that will set out the purpose:

to create a Forum for health authority Indigenous leaders and other leaders, and representatives of other HEABC members and unions to have continuing dialogue on the commitments stated above. The parties may use the Forum to present their ongoing or developing organizational initiatives, including the implementation of the HSO 75000: 2022 BC Cultural Safety and Humility Standard, complaints processes, education, and training to eliminate Indigenous-specific racism and to hardwire cultural safety and humility into the workplace;

- to discuss ways to leverage resources being developed by NCCIH and Ministry of Health, as well as raising awareness of the wealth of resources within the health system now, including the repository of work housed with the NCCIH and resources already developed by health authorities;
- to discuss ways to address recruitment and retention of Indigenous staff, which may include developing recommendations for changes to Collective Agreement language in the next round of collective bargaining;
- to provide an opportunity for Ministry of Health to solicit feedback and report out on ongoing provincial initiatives, including continuing implementation of the *In Plain Sight* recommendations and the phased roll-out of the *Anti-Racism Data Act*, SBC 2022, c.18; and
- to improve awareness of and compliance with the Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples Act, SBC 2019, c 44.

It is understood that the Forum should serve all interested parties in the provincial health care sector, not only the Nurses' Bargaining Association. To that end, the parties will make all reasonable efforts to promote participation in the Forum on a provincial and sector-wide basis.

The Ministry of Health shall hold the Forum quarterly or more frequently as deemed necessary.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at <u>4:00</u> am pm | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | | |
| | | | |
| ames Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator | | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

The parties agree to update this Memorandum to reflect the changes to the 2022-2025 Collective Agreement.

Amend the collective agreement, by changing the following:

MOA Re: Extended Work Day/Compressed Work Week

Preamble

The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement is to revise and/ or clarify certain terms and conditions of the Provincial Collective Agreement, so as to provide for the introduction or continuance of an extended work day/compressed work week.

This Memorandum of Agreement applies to employees in worksites with Extended Hours Memoranda.

It is understood and agreed that:

- (A) With the exception of the specific revisions set forth in this Memorandum, all other terms and conditions of the Provincial Collective Agreement will apply.
- (B) As a general principle and unless otherwise revised in this Memorandum, the Employer will not incur any additional costs which would exceed the costs required to provide and maintain the regular work day/work week as set forth in the Provincial Collective Agreement.
- (C) As a general principle and unless otherwise revised in this Memorandum, the employees will neither gain nor lose any benefit(s) presently contained within the Provincial Collective Agreement.
- (D) For the purposes of this Memorandum and where revised, "days" have been converted into working hours, so that one (I) day shall equal seven point five (7.5) paid hours. For example, three (3) days compassionate leave is converted to 3 X 7.5 = 22.5 working hours.
- (E) Any change deemed necessary in this Memorandum may be made by mutual agreement between the parties at any time during the life of this Memorandum.

Revisions to the Provincial Collective Agreement

ARTICLE 1.02 – DEFINITIONS

Shift

means the normal consecutive working hours scheduled for each employee (regular full-time, regular part-time or casual) which occur in any twenty-four (24) hour period. In each twenty-four (24) hour period there will normally

be two (2) shifts, namely, day shift and night shift.

Day Shift means a shift in which the major portion occurs between 0700 hours and

1900 hours.

Night Shift means a shift in which the major portion occurs between 1900 hours and

0700 hours.

ARTICLE II - DEFINITION OF EMPLOYEE STATUS AND BENEFIT ENTITLEMENT

11.3 Regular Part-Time Employees and

II.4 Casual Employees

It is understood and agreed that any of the above mentioned employees who agree to work the extended work day/compressed work week shall be bound by the terms and conditions of this Memorandum.

Any regular part-time employee(s) or casual employee(s) working in an area where the extended work day/compressed work week is in effect, and who do not agree to work same, shall be bound by the terms and conditions of the Provincial Collective Agreement.

ARTICLE 13.03 – SENIORITY – MAINTAINED AND ACCUMULATED

Seniority shall be maintained and accumulated under the following conditions:

- (E) absence due to lay-offs, for the first one hundred fifty (150) hours;
- (F) absence due to a general unpaid leave of absence, for the first one hundred fifty (150) hours.

For time periods in excess of those expressed above, seniority shall be maintained but not accumulated.

ARTICLE 17 – VACANCY POSTINGS

17.02 (A) Temporary Appointments

The Employer may make a temporary appointment, without posting, to a vacant position, provided such position is one in which the former incumbent has terminated employment with the Employer. The temporary appointment shall not exceed two hundred twenty-five (225) working hours, unless the Union and the Employer mutually agree to extend this time limit.

ARTICLE 19 – LAY-OFF AND RECALL

19.02 Advance Notice

Regular employees who are laid-off by the Employer and who have been regularly employed by the Employer for the periods specified below, shall receive notice or pay in lieu as follows:

- (A) Regular Full-Time Employees
 - (1) Less than five (5) years' service twenty-eight (28) calendar days' notice or regular pay for one hundred fifty (150) working hours.
 - (2) Minimum of five (5) years' but less than ten (10) years' service forty (40) calendar days' notice or regular pay for two hundred twenty five (225) working hours.
 - (3) More than ten (10) years' service sixty (60) calendar days' notice or regular pay for three hundred (300) working hours.
- (B) Regular Part-Time Employees

Regular part-time employees require the same notice,

however, pay in lieu of notice shall be calculated as follows:

| hours | paid | per | month | *(exclud | ing | overtime) |
|-------|----------|----------|-------|----------|-----|-----------|
| x | (working | hours)** | in | lieu | of | notice |
| 142.5 | | | | | | |

162.5

19.03 Benefits Continue

- (A) Employees with one (I) or more years of service who are laid-off shall accrue benefits for one hundred fifty (150) working hours, and shall have their benefits maintained for the balance of a one (I) year period of time.
 - (Reference Article 37 Leave General.)
- (B) Employees with less than one (1) year of service but more than three (3) months of service who are laid-off shall not accrue benefits for one hundred fifty (150) working hours but shall have their benefits maintained for a one (1) year period of time.
- (C) Probationary employees who are laid-off shall not accrue benefits for one hundred fifty (150) working hours but shall have their benefits maintained for three (3) months.
- (D) For the first one hundred fifty (150) working hours of lay-off as expressed in (A) above, the Employer shall continue to pay all premiums under the Medical Plan, Extended Health Care Plan, Dental Plan, Long-Term Disability Plan, and Group Life Insurance Plan. For the balance of a one (I) year period, or the time periods expressed in (B) and (C) above, employees who remain laid-off may continue to be insured under the above named plans upon payment of the appropriate premium to their Employer at such times as may be required pursuant to the said plan(s).

ARTICLE 25.06 – WORK SCHEDULES

25.06 Requirements of Work Schedule

- (A) The Employer and the Union agree to waive that portion of Article 25.05(E) reading:
 - Each regular employee shall be scheduled off-duty an average of not less than one (I) weekend in every three (3) weekends in each nine (9) week period.
- (B) Nursing Staff Work Schedules may take the form of either a two-shift or single shift rotation.
- (C) A regular employee shall not be scheduled to work more than four (4) consecutive shifts unless agreed to between the parties.

For the purposes of this article, (A) and (C) refer to schedules with shifts greater than eight (8) hours in length.

ARTICLE 26 – HOURS OF WORK, MEAL PERIOD, REST PERIODS

It is understood and agreed that the hours of work as set out hereunder are specifically revised to conform to the requirements of the extended work day/compressed work week.

26.01 Hours of Work

There shall be (as noted in the individual worksite's Memoranda of Understanding) work hours per day and an average of not more than thirty-seven point five (37.5) work hours per week over the period of weeks in the rotation. The weekly hours of work will be computed as follows:

^{*} Includes leave without pay up to twenty (20) work days. (Reference Article 37 Leave – General.)

^{**} Entitlement as in (A) (1), (2) or (3).

The number of work hours per day x The number of work days (excluding overtime) in a work schedule

Number of weeks in the work schedule

The daily full shift hours and weekly full shift hours shall be exclusive of meal periods.

26.3 Meal Period

- (A) Two (2) meal periods of a continuous one-half (0.5) hour each will be provided during each employee's shift of ten (10) hours or more.
- (B) When an employee is designated either expressly or implicitly to be available for work during a meal period; and
 - (1) The employee is scheduled to work ten (10) hours or more and receives two (2) meal periods (of thirty (30) minutes each, exclusive of the shift hours), then the employee shall receive regular rates of pay for the total time. (Example 11 hours + 60 minutes = 12 hours regular pay.)
 - (2) The employee is scheduled to work ten (10) hours or more and does not receive the two (2) meal periods, exclusive of the shift hours, then the employee shall receive regular pay for the shift worked plus sixty (60) minutes pay at time and one-half (1.5) the regular pay.

26.4 Rest Periods

Employees working a full shift of ten (10) hours or more shall receive three (3) rest periods distributed evenly throughout the shift. Employees working less than ten (10) hours shall receive one (1) rest period for each four (4) hours of work.

ARTICLE 27 – OVERTIME

27.01 Definition

Overtime means authorized services performed by an employee in excess of the normal daily full shift hours or weekly full shift hours as set out in Article 26.01 of this Memorandum.

27.3 Employee's Right to Decline Overtime

(B) Work On A Scheduled Day Off

A regular full-time employee may be requested by the Employer to work on only one (I) of his/her scheduled days off per week. The decision to work the scheduled day off remains with the employee.

27.4 Application

(A) The accumulated balance of an employee's bank shall not be reduced as a result of the September 30, 1993 reduction in the work week to thirty-six (36) hours per week.

27.5 Overtime Pay Calculation

- (A) Pursuant to Article 26.01 of this Memorandum, overtime at the rate of time and one-half (1.5) will be paid on the following basis;
 - (1) for the first two (2) hours in excess of the daily full shift hours;
 - (2) for the first seven point five (7.5) hours in excess of the thirty-seven point five (37.5) hours in one (1) week.
- (B) Pursuant to Article 26.01 of this Memorandum, overtime at the rate of double time will be paid on the following basis:
 - (1) for all hours in excess of those worked in A(1) above;
 - (2) for all hours in excess of forty-five (45) hours per week;
 - (3) for all hours worked on a regular full-time employee's scheduled day off, and for regular part-time employees for all hours worked on additional shift(s) to their regular schedule resulting in the part-time employee working:
 - (a) (i) in excess of four (4) consecutive extended shifts where the shift

- length is greater than eight (8) hours.
- (ii) in excess of six (6) consecutive shifts where the shift length is between seven point five (7.5) and eight (8) hours.
- (iii) in excess of five (5) consecutive shifts where three (3) or more of the five (5) are greater than eight (8) hours in length.
- (iv) in excess of six (6) consecutive shifts where four (4) or more of the six (6) are between seven point five (7.5) and eight (8) hours in length.
- (b) more than two hundred twenty-five (225) straight time hours over the course of three consecutive bi-weekly pay periods.

Employees will not be entitled to overtime under more than one of (a) or (b), where overtime premiums have already been paid under either of these provisions.

- (C) Pursuant to Article 26.01 of this Memorandum, overtime at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times the appropriate holiday rate will be paid:
 - +for all overtime hours worked on a calendar statutory holiday;
 - (2) for all overtime hours worked on a day which had originally been scheduled as a statutory holiday but was changed by the Employer with less than fourteen (14) calendar days' advance notice.

ARTICLE 28 – SHIFT PREMIUMS

28.01 An employee shall be paid a shift premium of \$.70 per hour for all hours worked between 1530 hours and 2330 hours, and three dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) between 2330 hours and 0730 hours.

For shifts of eight (8) hours or less, the shift premium is payable only when one-half or more than one-half of the hours of work fall within the defined evening or night shifts. In such cases the shift premium shall be paid for all hours worked.

ARTICLE 30 – RESPONSIBILITY PAY

An employee designated to relieve in a higher rated position with-in the bargaining unit, or a DCI, PSI, or CHI level general duty nurse designated in charge of a unit, department or worksite shall be paid an allowance of \$1.25 per hour, for each hour they relieve.

For small Employers such as adult day care agencies, mental health and home support, the following shall apply:

For shifts in excess of eight (8) hours, a special allowance of one dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) per hour will be paid to nurses designated in charge of a worksite.

An employee cannot receive both premiums referenced above on any given shift.

ARTICLE 33 – LEAVE – COMPASSIONATE

33.02 Leave - With Pay

Compassionate leave of absence with pay shall be granted for twenty-two point five (22.5) working hours.

Up to fifteen (15) additional working hours with pay shall be granted for travelling time when this is warranted in the judgement of the Employer.

ARTICLE 34 – LEAVE – COURT APPEARANCE

(B) An employee in receipt of their regular rate of pay and benefits while at court shall remit to the Employer any witness or jury fees received for the length of the extended work day that they are normally scheduled to work, providing these do not exceed their regular pay. Travelling and meal allowances paid by the Court and not by the Employer shall not be remitted.

ARTICLE 35 – LEAVE – EDUCATION

35.03 (C) The Employer shall grant an educational leave of absence with pay, subject to the approval in Article 35.03(B) for normally scheduled work hours, as posted, that an individual regular employee gives of their own time. Such educational leave of absence with pay is not to exceed sixty-seven point five (67.5) hours of Employer contribution from April 1, 1992.

ARTICLE 37 – LEAVE – GENERAL

37.01 Application

An employee granted unpaid leave(s) of absence totalling less than one hundred fifty-seven point five (157.5) working hours in any year shall continue to accumulate all benefits. Any excess over one hundred fifty (150) working hours in any year shall be deducted from the length of service in the computation of benefits and for increment progression purposes, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon by the Union and the Employer.

For the purposes of this Memorandum, all reference to the twenty (20) working days of Article 37 in the Provincial Collective Agreement, shall be deemed to be one hundred fifty (150) working hours.

ARTICLE 39 - LEAVE - PAID HOLIDAYS

39.01 Paid Holiday Entitlement

Each regular employee shall receive seven point five (7.5) paid hours off on or for the paid holidays outlined in Article 39.01 of the Provincial Collective Agreement, and for any other general holiday proclaimed by the Federal or Provincial Government.

39.3 Work on a Paid Holiday

- (A) Regular Employee
 - A regular employee required to work on one of the paid holidays listed in Article 39.01 shall be paid at the rate of two (2) times for all hours of work in the day, provided that Articles 27.05, 29.04 and 39.04 are not applicable and, in addition, each regular employee shall receive seven point five (7.5) paid hours off as a statutory holiday. The rate of two (2) times will be paid for all hours of work within 0001 and 2400 hours on the named day.
 - (2) Super Stats (As Applicable)

Employees who are required to work on Christmas Day, Labour Day or Good Friday, shall be paid at the rate of two and one-half (2.5) times for all hours worked in the day provided that Articles 27.05, 29.04 and 39.04 are not applicable, and shall receive seven point five (7.5) paid hours off as a paid holiday. The rate of two and one-half (2.5) times shall be paid for all hours of work within 0001 and 2400 hours on the named day.

(B) Casual Employee

A casual employee who works on a paid holiday listed in Article 39.03 (A)(I) shall be paid two (2) times their rate of pay for all hours of work within 0001 and 2400 hours on the named day. A casual employee who works on a paid holiday listed in Article 39.03(A)(2), shall be paid two and one-half (2.5) times their rate of pay for all hours of work within 0001 and 2400 hours on the named day.

39.4 Premium Rates of Pay

(D) Changes in Schedule with Insufficient Notice

Should the Employer change the work schedule without fourteen (14) calendar days' advance notice and as a consequence the regular employee is required to work on the paid holiday, then the employee shall be paid at the appropriate overtime rate for all hours worked on the day and, in addition, shall receive seven point five (7.5) paid hours off on or for the paid holiday.

39.07 Scheduling of Paid Holidays

For the purposes of this Memorandum the statutory holidays outlined in Article 39.01 of the Provincial Collective Agreement are incorporated into the work schedules during off duty days. All such statutory holidays shall be identified and recorded in ink in the nursing staff work schedules on the basis of seven point five (7.5) paid hours. Every effort shall be made to spread the statutory holidays off evenly throughout the year.

ARTICLE 42 – LEAVE – SICK

42.1 Accumulation

Regular full-time employees shall receive eleven point two five (11.25) working hours' sick leave credits for each month of service and such sick leave credits, if not utilized, will be cumulative to a maximum of 1170 working hours.

Regular part-time employees shall receive sick leave credit on a proportionate basis, and such sick leave credits, if not utilized, will be cumulative to a maximum of 1170 working hours.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, employees with accumulated sick leave credits in excess of 1170 working hours, will retain the accumulated balance to their credit. Where this accumulated balance exceeds 1170 hours, no further credits shall be earned until the accumulated balance is reduced below 1170 hours, in which event the accumulation of sick leave shall be reinstated, but the accumulated balance shall not again exceed 1170 hours.

42.2 Payment

Regular full-time employees shall receive regular pay for each shift of sick leave credit utilized. Regular part-time employees shall receive regular pay for scheduled work hours lost.

42.09 (B) Appointments

When an employee's doctor refers the employee to a specialist then any necessary travel time to a maximum of twenty-two point five (22.5) hours for the employee to visit such specialist shall be paid for and deducted from sick leave credits.

ARTICLE 43 – LEAVE – SPECIAL AND PERSONAL

43.1 Special Leave

(A) Accumulation

An employee shall earn special leave credits with pay up to a maximum of one hundred and fifty (150) hours at the rate of three point seven five (3.75) hours every four (4) weeks. Special leave shall be granted to a maximum of the accumulated leave at the time the special leave is taken.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, employees with accumulated special leave credits in excess of one hundred and fifty (150) hours (20 days X 7.5 hours) as of the first pay period following June 5, 2006, shall retain the accumulated balance to their credit. Where this accumulated credit exceeds one hundred and fifty (150) hours, no further credit shall be earned until the accumulated balance is reduced below one hundred and fifty (150) hours, in which event the accumulation of special leave credits shall be reinstated, but the accumulated balance shall not again exceed one hundred fifty (150) hours.

(B) Application

Special leave shall be granted as follows:

- (I) marriage leave thirty-seven point five (37.5) hours;
- (2) parental leave thirty-seven point five (37.5) hours;
- (3) to provide care to an immediate family member who has a serious illness up to eleven fifteen (+15) hours at one time;
- (4) to assist an immediate family member who has a serious or potentially lifethreatening illness with obtaining health education related to the serious or potentially life-threatening illness up to seven point five (7.5) working hours per calendar year;

- (5) leave of seven point five (7.5) hours may be added to three (3) days compassionate leave;
- (6) leave of seven point five (7.5) hours may be taken for travel associated with compassionate leave;
- (7) leave of up to twenty two point five (22.5) hours for absences resulting from the employee or employee's dependent child having experienced domestic or sexual violence.

43.2 Personal Leave

Preamble

The parties agree to create a leave structure that better reflects the realities of the lives of working nurses.

Effective April 1, 2020 – seven point five (7.5) personal leave hours per calendar year;

Effective April 1, 2021 – fifteen (15) personal leave hours per calendar year.

Such personal days are subject to operational requirements and cannot be attached to other leaves of absence, including vacation and paid statutory holidays.

The parties agree to meet prior to April I, 2020 to discuss a joint interpretation regarding the granting of personal leave.

ARTICLE 45 – LEAVE – VACATION

45.01 Vacation Entitlement

- (C) Regular employees will be entitled to a vacation away from work, when the qualifying year(s) of service are attained before July I, as follows:
 - 150.0 working hours after I year of continuous* service
 - 150.0 working hours after 2 years of continuous service
 - 150.0 working hours after 3 years of continuous service
 - 150.0 working hours after 4 years of continuous service
 - 157.5 working hours after 5 years of continuous service
 - 165.0 working hours after 6 years of continuous service
 - 172.5 working hours after 7 years of continuous service 180.0 working hours after 8 years of continuous service
 - 187.5 working hours after 9 years of continuous service
 - 195.0 working hours after 10 years of continuous service
 - 202.5 working hours after 11 years of continuous service
 - 210.0 working hours after 12 years of continuous service
 - 217.5 working hours after 13 years of continuous service
 - 225.0 working hours after 14 years of continuous service
 - 232.5 working hours after 15 years of continuous service
 - 240.0 working hours after 16 years of continuous service
 - 247.5 working hours after 17 years of continuous service
 - 255.0 working hours after 18 years of continuous service
 - 262.5 working hours after 19 years of continuous service
 - 270.0 working hours after 20 years of continuous service
 - 277.5 working hours after 21 years of continuous service
 - 285.0 working hours after 22 years of continuous service

292.5 working hours after 23 years of continuous service

300.0 working hours after 24 years of continuous service

307.5 working hours after 25 years of continuous service

315.0 working hours after 26 years of continuous service

322.5 working hours after 27 years of continuous service

330.0 working hours after 28 years of continuous service

337.5 working hours after 29 years of continuous service

(Reference Article 51 – Portability)

*continuous service means years of service with the Employer but does not include any of the following periods:

- a. Time spent as a casual employee
- b. Time spent on an unpaid leave of absence beyond 20 work days in any year.
- c. Time spent on layoff.
- d. Time spent in receipt of long-term disability insurance plan benefits.
- (D) Regular part-time employees are entitled to vacation leave on a pro-rata basis as follows:

 Hours paid* excluding overtime x regular pay x yearly vacation entitlement to June 30 (inclusive)

 1950

(E) Regular employees with less than one (I) year's service on the July I cut-off date will receive vacation leave calculated as follows:

Hours paid* excluding overtime x regular pay x yearly vacation entitlement to June 30 (inclusive)

1950

Any fraction of a day shall be given as paid time off at a time mutually agreed to by the Employer and the employee. Application of the foregoing will not be governed by the provisions of Article 45.04 – Scheduling of Vacation.

45.3 Supplementary Vacation

The supplementary vacations as set out below are to be banked on the outlined supplementary vacation employment anniversary date and taken at the employee's option at any time subsequent to the current supplementary vacation employment anniversary date but prior to the next supplementary vacation employment anniversary date.

- (A) Upon reaching the employment anniversary of twenty-five (25) years of continuous service, employees shall have earned an additional thirty-seven point five (37.5) working hours' vacation with pay. This provision applies when the qualifying date occurs before July I in each year.
- (B) Upon reaching the employment anniversary of thirty (30) years of continuous service, employees shall have earned an additional seventy-five (75) working hours' vacation with pay. This provision applies when the qualifying date occurs before July I in each year.
- (C) Upon reaching the employment anniversary of thirty-five (35) years of continuous service, employees shall have earned an additional one hundred and twelve point five (112.5) working hours' vacation with pay. This provision applies when the qualifying date occurs before July I in each year.

^{*}Includes leave without pay up to one hundred fifty (150) working hours.

^{*} Includes leave without pay up to one hundred fifty (150) working hours.

- (D) Upon reaching the employment anniversary of forty (40) years of continuous service, employees shall have earned an additional one hundred twelve point five (112.5) working hours' vacation with pay. This provision applies when the qualifying date occurs before July I in each year.
- (E) Upon reaching the employment anniversary of forty-five (45) years of continuous service, employees shall have earned an additional one hundred twelve point five (112.5) working hours' vacation with pay. This provision applies when the qualifying date occurs before July I in each year.

45.4 Scheduling of Vacation

(D) Notwithstanding Article 45.04(C), employees may hold back up to forty-five (45) hours in the annual vacation planning process. This remaining vacation must be requested and approved by August 1st of each year. Any remaining vacation not scheduled may be scheduled by the Employer.

ARTICLE 61 – EFFECTIVE AND TERMINATING DATES

61.01 This Memorandum of Agreement is effective from April I, 1985, for those departments, program or units on the extended work day/compressed work week as of that date. In those departments, programs or units for which the extended work day/compressed work week was implemented after April I, 1985, this Memorandum of Agreement is effective from the commencement date of the extended work day/compressed work week.

This Memorandum will continue to be in effect until terminated by either party, or until a new Memorandum is prepared to coincide with a new Provincial Collective Agreement, whichever occurs sooner.

Either party may terminate this Memorandum after serving twenty-eight (28) calendar days' written notice to the other party of its intention to terminate the extended work day/compressed work week.

| Agreed to this day of | 2023, at am/pm | |
|-------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, | im Gould, Interim CEO and Chief | |
| Negotiations & Member Services | Negotiator | |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

Memorandum of Agreement Re: Local and Provincial Emergencies

Where a local or provincial emergency is declared that impacts bargaining unit employees, the Employer will notify the Union as soon as reasonably possible.

The Employer will provide relevant information to the Union.

The Employer and the Union will meet as soon as reasonably possible to discuss the details and impacts related to the emergency.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 ampm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |

Renewal of the 2019-2022 Nurses Bargaining Association (NBA) Collective Agreement

Amend the collective agreement, by adding the following:

Memorandum of Agreement Re: Pandemic Information Sharing Forum

The parties acknowledge the hard work of employees, Employers and Unions in responding to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, the parties recognized the value of collaboration and cooperation, and convened a provincial occupational health and safety forum to share information and address provincial-level issues as they arose. The parties found this forum was effective in supporting the pandemic response and addressing health and safety concerns.

The parties acknowledge the importance of learnings from previous public health emergencies, such as those outlined in the 2003 Ontario SARS Commission final report.

The parties acknowledge the importance of providing timely information to employees and JOHSC.

Accordingly, the parties agree to establish a pandemic information sharing forum (the "forum") where a public health emergency is declared by the Government of British Columbia that creates a health risk for a significant number of employees.

The forum will consist of one (I) representative from each participating Bargaining Association, HEABC, Employer representatives, and a senior representative from the Ministry of Health. The forum may also include a representative from Doctors of BC, WorkSafeBC or other relevant groups as agreed to by the participants.

The purpose of the forum is to promote information sharing related to pandemic occupational health and safety matters, with the following principles:

- Open, transparent and respectful communications
- Focus on provincial level issues
- Interest based approach

The forum will determine the meeting frequency.

The forum will be provided with relevant information related to health care worker safety.

| Agreed to this 28th day of March | 2023, at 4:00 am/pm |
|--|--|
| Signed on behalf of the HEABC | Signed on behalf of the NBA |
| | |
| James Suderman, Executive Director, Negotiations & Member Services | Jim Gould, Interim CEO and Chief Negotiator |



